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PUBLIC UTILITIES COMNISSION OF OWID

In tha mattar of the
Two=Yaar Raviaw of
tanteriar Energy
ctorpoaration's Environmantal
compliance #Lan Pursuant
10 Section 4913.05, Revised
Code

Case No, 94-1698-EL-ELP

Dapasttion of RICHARD HOAG, a Witness callad
for the purpose of testifying in the sbove matter,
befors me, Ellen A. Nancik, Registsred Professionsl
Aeportar and Motary Public within and for ths Statre
of Ohio, at the offices of Centarior Energy Corporation,
6200 o4k Tres Bouleverd, Indepsndence, Ohio on
monday, the Tth day of April, 1997 st 2:50 p.=.
fome portions of this tranacript ars mada sephrata
and under confidential seal.

RICHARD HOAG, of lawful age,
cailed by the Ohio Valley Coal Company
for the purpose of testimony in the
above matter being by me first duly sworn,
as hercinafter said as follows:

EXAMINATION OF RICHARD HOAG

BY MR. PERLIS:

LPOFPLOP OX»O
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Good afternoon, Mr. Hoag.

Good afternoon.

For the record, you've sat through all of
the deposition of Mr. Kovach?

That's correct.

Both parts?

Yes.

And Mr. Stead's deposition, as well?

Correct.

Thank you. Would you swate for the record
what your job title is at Centerior
Energy?

1 em the Production Strategies Manager,
and Emission Allowance Manager.

And what, I'm sorry, the production?

Strategies Manager.
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Yeah. And to whom do you report in those
two roles?

Eiieen Buzzelli, B-U-Z-Z-E-L-L-I.

In both those roles?

Yes.

And do you know to whom she reports with
respect to these iterns?

Stan Szwed, $-Z-W-E-D.

How long have you been the Production
Suaategies Manager or performed those
functions under a different job
description?

Since mid January.

Of what year?

1.

And what was your position during calendar
year 1996?

If it'll make it briefer, during the study
period, 1 was the Acting Manager of
Resource Planning and the Emission
Allowance Manager.

And when you say during the study petiod,
that includes both the 1995 study and the
1996 supplemental study?

No, just for the 1996 update. I took over

Robert J, Rua & Assoclates
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1] Now I've given you some
2] latitude.
3] MR. PERLIS: Iintend to
4] follow pre?ty much along the same
3] lines. I do not intend this
[ 6} inquiry to be even extensive or
£71 direct into the methodology,
[ 8] underlying data, etc. I'm
9} intcrested primarily in process in
0] understanding roles, so with that,
11) ray I proceed with my questions?
12] MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, you may
[13] and T would ask that you come to
[14] some conclusion on this quickly.
15] MR. PERLIS: 1 will try.
16] BY MR. PERLIS:
17] Q My understanding from the carlier
[18] depositions in this proceeding that we're
19] focussed on the 1995 study was that there
20] was a committee of five including yourself
[21) that worked at bringing that study to
22} fruition. And would you say that’s a fair
23] characterization?
24] A Yes
{25] Q  And that those individuals were yourself,

Q

o>

in terms of developing the directives, if
you will, the course of action for how the
study was going to proceed, you basically
formulated that yourself?

No. T used the same methodology that was
used in the ‘95,

I didn't — okay, but who made the
decision to follow the same methodology as
was used in 19957

1 did. Because that was the same type of
methodology in *92 and '95 and for
coasistency’s sake, we did it for '96.

T understand. You say that what you did
in 1996 was you sought updated information
from the fuels and the ratcs departments,
is that correct, among other updared
information that you may have sought?

That is correct.

Were there other departizents within
Centerior that you sought additional
information from, data in preparation of
this 1996 study?

Okay, information that we would have
updated for thig study would bave been the
fuel pricing, the allowance pricing, and
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[1] Mr. Kovach, Mr. — I believe it’s Evans

[2] and Mr. Krueger and Mr. Fink; is that

£3l roughly —

{4 A  That sounds about right, yes.

I5] Q  Okay. Now when yon undertook the work in

[ 6] the 1996 study, did you similarly have a

[N committee ot did you basically take most

{8] of the responsibility that that committee

[9] had and undertake it personally?

[10} MR. REGULINSKI: May I enter

[11] an objection? Just a moment, and

[12] give the wimess a chance to write

{13] down the five peopie who worked on

[14) the 95 study 30 he can recall

[15] them-sorrectly.

6] THE WITNESS: Okay.

n7n MR. PERLIS: Okay.

[18] MR. REGULINSKI: Please

[19} continue with your questioning, or

{20; we can read the question back.

1 -

[22} (Record read.)

[23] ---

[24f A 1 would have to say that I'd undertook
most of that responsibility myself.

>

or» LOPOF» O

the load forecast.

Not system utilization?

What do you mean by system utilization?

The extent to which the generating plants
were going to run.

That would fall out as part of the load
forecast.

1 see. Did you produce any or seek to
produce any data or information regarding
projected wholesale sales of power or
purchases of power in connection with the
1996 study? -

No, 1 did not. That's not our
standardized methodology for approaching
studies. We did everything on a service
territory, native load customer basis.

Service territory, native load, and
customer?

No, service territory, native load.

Basis?

Right.

And that's the methodology that you'd
always followed in the past?

Yes.

Has the level of wholesale sales and

Robert J. Rua & Assoclates
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purchases been increasing for Centerior as
a system?

MR. REGULINSKE: Objection,
relevance.” Without waiving the
objection, let the witness answer.

1 couldn’t answer that right now. I
really don’t know,

But you said that you were in charge of
the wholesale sales for the company.

MR. REGULINSKI: He didnt
say that. 1 object. That'sa
very bad characterization of the
earlier witness's testimony.

Well, then let me rephrase the question
this way. What is your responsibility
with respect to wholesale sales and
purchases in the company?

I provide information to our wholesale
power traders, our whoiesale power
marketers. They actually make the deals
and again, I've been doing that since
Janvary, early January of this year.

You cvaluate all of the deals, and sce all
of the deals?

No, 1 provide them information.

Q

o»

o »0>0>» O »

Other than that, did you change the
methodology in any way from the previous
studies?

Not from the *95 smudy, no.

And you did not seek other information.
Now as you sought that information, whom
did you seek the fuel pricing information
from?

We requested that from the Fuel Supply and
Planning section of procurement.

And from whom did you receive the
information?

1 believe it was Joe Lang.

And the allowance pricing information?

I provided that.

And the load forecasting information?

That came from our 1996 LTFR thar was
approved by the Commission in May of *96.

And when you say the load forecast came as
approved by the Commission, what does that
mean? Was it a specific set of numbers as
to what the load was going to be?

We provide on an anoual basis to the
Commission & load forecast, and that is
worked up cvery year and submitted, and

o » O»0 >

o>» O»

So the power marketers have the authority
to make deals for the company without your
approval?

They have their own person that they
report 10.

Person?

They do not report to me.

They report to a person within C.EI. ora
person within the power marketing company?

Within Centcrior's wholesale power
marketing.

I sec. When you say — when you consulted
the wholesale power marketers, you mean
Centerior wholesale power marketers?

Yes. o

As opposed to outside third party power
marketers?

Correct.

1 misundersiood that. So returning then
to the three items that you sought
additional information for in preparing
the 1996 study, fuel pricing, allowance
prices and load forecasts, those were the
three areas you cited, correct?

Correct.

o» OF

o>

o>

they approved it, and then we incorporated
it into our models.

And do you incorparate it as the only load
forccast that you look at or do you have a
high, medium and low load forecast that
were all equally approved?

For this study, it was the only one.

And over what period did that load
forecast run?

It's a 20 year forecast.

Now when you do your work to prepare load
forecasts, when the company does its work
to prepare load forecasts, for let's say,
submission to the Commission, you say they
do that on ao annual basis,

Yes.

Do they run multiple computer models and
evaluation of posaible load forecasts for
projections?

I really don’t know.

From whore do you get the load forecast,
just out of the published reports and you
don’t — do you not deal with specific —

did you not deal with specific individuals
in preparing the '96 study?

Robert J. Rua & Associates
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A 1 did not deal with a specific individual.
Q  Mr, Hoag, with respect to the fuel pricing
information that you received from
Mr. Lang or others from the Fuel
Department, or the Planning Department, is
all of the information that you received
incorporated into the various tables, some
of which were filed under confidential
seal in the 1996 study or was there
substantial information that you looked at
and chose not to include in the study?
MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
that question re-read, please?
(Record read.)
MR. REGULINSKI: Can T ask a
clarification question?
Substantial information not
included, ate you referencing
loads information, or just fuel
pricing information?
MR. PERLIS: That was & very
lengthy question. Perhaps 1
should just strike it and start

mean that you did not request at that time
from Mr. Lang in the Fuel Department fuel
price projections for 6.0 pound coat for

use at Bastlake?

That is correct, because 6.0 pound coal if
burned exclusively would put us aver aur
SIP limit which T believe is like 5.65.

‘Now you've heard testimony earlier today
by vour colleague that in 1996, and as
reflected in supplemental responses to
document production requests, that in
1996, there was a mixture of fuels at
Eastlake,

Why did you not request cosl price
projections for different mixes for these
different coals?

Those coals were selected because it’s the
same ranges we have used in the '95 study
and it was information that was available
from the EVA study.

Which EVA study is this that you're
referring 10 now?

The one that the Fuel Procurement
Department used in developing those
numbers to provide to us.
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[1 over again.

[2] BY MR. PERLIS:

[3] Q  With respect only to the fuel pricing

14 information that you received from

[5] Mr. Lang and the Planning Department, did
[ 8 they submit to you information that is not
[N included in the various tables that were

(8] submitted under seal in this case?

[9] A TNl answer it by saying that the Fuel

[10] Supply Planning group provided the

[11} information we requested which is the fuel
[12] pricing. If they provided more, I'm not
13} aware of it because the data &id not come
[14] directly to me.

151 Q  So looking-at table number 2, not under
[16] seal in the study, it's the delivered coal

17 cost plus the S02 cost for the Eastlake

[18] plant. The delivered coal cost which

[19] would have come from Mr. Lang and others.
[20] The only numbers that you wonld have

[21] requested from them wonld have been for
2] 1.2, 1.6, 2.5, 3.8 pound coal?

23] A Yes.

[241 Q  And under 6.0 you have NA, not applicable,
[25] because of the SIP limitation. Does that

o>

o»

So when you got fuel pricing information,
wert you getting two separate sets? Obne
from Mr. Lang or one was from EVA or was
it that Mr. Lang took EVA's and then gave
you & Centerior fuel price forecast that
was based on the EVA numbers?

Okay, Mr. Lang took the EVA study, applied
his knowledge to it and gave us the fuel
price forecast that we used.

You did not independently evaluate the EVA
numbers?

No, I did not. T've never seen it.

You have no knowledge as to whether the
EVA numbers are based on long term coal
contracts, spot contracts, etc.?

That is corroct.

So again, you felt that in preparing the
1996 study, that there was no need for you
to go ouwside the bounds of the prior
study, and all that was required was to
update the precise factual data that had
been included in that prior study?

That is correct. Based on the years of
planning that we’ve done through the Clean
Air Act up through 95, and updating this

inhm.).nu&m
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small portion of our plan.

And do you know whether EVA updated their
fuel price forecast between the 1995 study
and the 1996 study?

No, T do not.

And did you ask Mr. Lang to make sure that
he was relying on up to date figures?

When 1 go to a gentleman and ask him to
provide me a fuel price forecast, what he
gives me is my up to date numbers.

Did you have a budget for the preparing
the Supplemental Fuel Switching Study?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Relevance.

MR. PERLIS: T want to know
whether or not it was budgeted to
retain outside consultants to work
on the 1996 study.

MR. REGULINSKI: We provided
responses to that already. I'll
allow this question but I don't
think T'll allow anything more on
this. You may answer this
question.

Let me explain our budget procedures done
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[1 recali how long it took from when the

[2] commitment first started meeting to when
[3 the report was finished?

] MR, REGULINSKI: Objection,
5] relevance. Without waiving the

[ 6 objection, T'lt allow the witness

(7 to answer.

[8 A No,Tdon't remember the time span.

[9] Q@ Do you belicve that working on the 1996
[10] study, you spent more or less time than
1] the group spent in 19957

[12] MR. REGULINSKI: Same

13] objection. Without waiving, the
14] witness can answer.

15] A Well, since T can’t remember how long it
16] took in *95, T really can’t say whether it
17] was more or less now,

18] Q Do you remember how much time it took you
19] in 1996 to work on the study? How many
20] man hours you put in on the study?

21] A I would only be guessing.

[22] Q T'm willing to cntertain your guess.

23] A Just within my group only, T would say
24] maybe 160 man hours.

25] Q  Now, you took the numbers from fuel
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in September, October, November. I took
over in July. Whether there was money
included or not, T cannot definitely

angwer and normally that kind of money
would not be budgeted at my level, That
would be done in another area. In this
case, specifically down in Fuel
Procurement to update a fuel study.

But you made no request of Fuel
Procurement to retain ouvtside consultants
to update the cutside consultant’s study?

I made a request to Fuel Procurement to
provide me with updated numbers for the
supplemental study.

And howeuer they chose to do that, they
could have chosen to rely on the older
study and just adjusted it from their own
knowledge of the fuel price market and
they could have gone out and hired an
outside consuitant to have done it; it was
entirely up to them and you didn’t inquire
as to how chat was done?

That is correct.

Now when you worked on the 1995 study as
part of that committee of five, do you

PAGE 28
[1] pricing, your group came up with the
[ 21 allowance numbers, and you took the load
[3] forecast aumbers out of the LTFR. Why did
{4 it take even 50 hours to do the study?
[5] MR. REGULINSKL: T'll object,
[ €] come on. He said this was a
7 guess. He said maybe he'd be
8} gucasing on the number.
9] Q  I'll rephrase the question. What was the
10] bulk of the 160 hours spent on or whatever
1 the number of hours was, what was the bulk
12, of it spent on? Producing tbe allowance
13 forecasts?
[14] A  No, you have data requests, you receive
15] the data, enter the data, evaluate
16] production runs, eveiuation.
17] Q When you say evaiuate the data, in what
18] sense did your office evaluate the data
19] that you received from fuel pricing or
20] load forecasting?
21] A Well, you want to make sure that the —~
22] that if the data is trending upwards,
23] somewhere in the middle, you don’t have a
[24] bogus point that comes down and goes back
[25) up so it's inspection of the data.
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Basically a quality check, just to sec
that the curve looked like it was going in
the right direction?

Right. -

Considering that, whether the number’s 160
hours or 100 hours, did it take more than
& couple of hours 1o evaluate Mr. Lang’s
date to see that it looked like it was
consistent? Did your office evaluate it
for any more than an kour or two?

Again specifically, I can’t answer that
because Mr, Lang's data did not come to
me. It came to a gentleman who worked for
me.

So it's possible it weat back and forth to
Mr. Lang a few times?

Oh, very well could have. [ don’t know if
that's correct or not.

Who is this gentleman who worked for you?

Rob Martinko.

MR. REGULINSKI: M-A-R-T-
I-N-K-O.

Now with respect to the aliowance price
forecasts that you produced in your own
department, correct?

Emissions Exchange, and I think the
publication is the Clean Air Compliance
Review publication, the EATX, as well as
market contacts that I've developed
through being in the position for over
four years.

In 1995 with the emission allowance
forecast, what was that based upon, the
one used in the 1995 study?

T believe that was based on an EVA
forecast that they prepared for us.

And did that turn out to be accurate or
off by a fair degree?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Relevance.

Very short ran?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
relevance, Without waiving the
objection, T'll let the witness
answer.

I can't really say as if T went back and
compared the market to what their forecast
was.

If they project a fall in 1994, would have
been when they did the projection, -
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[ 1 A
2] Q
3
4
5] A
6 Q
7
8]
9 A
10] Q
11
12]
13]
f14] A
ns] a
f16]
N7
18] A
9] @
[20]
[21]
2] A
23] «a
[4]
5] a

Yes.

Did you produce that personally or did you
rely on others within your department to
produce it?

No, T produced that myself.

Did you rely on other people within your
department for factual information that
you utilized in making that forecast?

No.

So you brought to bear your experience
since 1993 on what you knew about the
allowance market in coming up with that
allowance price forecast?

Correct.

And you did not retain gny outside
consultant to prepare an allowance price
forecast for you?

No.

- Did you look at third party projections of

allowance prices in reaching your
asscssment of future allowance prices?
Yes, 1 did.

Can you tell me whose projections you
looked at?

I used Canter Fitzgerald as one source,
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correct? Did they project that there
would be any fall in allowance prices
between then and 19977

MR. REGULINSKI: This is for
the "95 study?

MR, PERLIS: Yes.

MR. REGULINSKI: Same
objection. Without waiving it,

Mr. Hoag, you can answer.

I don’t believe their forecast indicated a
downward trend.

At that time, did you have any reason to
project for the company’s purposes, that
there would be a decline in emisgion
allowance prices?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
This is still about the 95 study?

MR. PERLIS: Yes, it is.

MR. REGULINSKI: That's
enough.

MR. PERLIS: [It's going to
the relevance of reliability of
studies.

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, but
your witness has admitted under

~ Robert J. Rua & Associates
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oath that the forecasts prepared
are not unreasonable, and I have a
protective order precluding review
analysis, underlying data and
studies in the *95 study.

MR, PERLIS: We're not asking
the question ag to whether the
forecast itself was reasonable or
unreasonable as a forecast. We're
asking whether it turned out to be
accurate after the fact,

MR. REGULINSKI: And the '95
study is not reievant to the '96
study. Therc was a stipulation on
the '95 study. TI've given you
latitude on the "95 study but T've
got & protective order on the 95
study.
MR. PERLIS: TI'll rephrase
the question in another way then
to avoid this,

BY MR. PERLIS:
Q  Mr. Hoag, you have at icast four years of

experience from 1993 through now, 1997, on
emission allowance forecasts. Have you
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[1] As you've looked at all the prior

[2] ones, had any of them projected a decline
[3] in allowance prices for the coming year or

[ 41 twa or three?

[5] A  All of the previous forecasts that T've

[ 6] ever scen going back to the signing of the
(7 Clean Air Act where it said $800, and then
(8] scrubber prices came down to $600 and then
(9 down to $400, everything bas been trending
[10] down.

[11] Q  Now that’s the actual prices?

[12] MR. REGULINSKI: Forgive me,
[13) I dop't know if the witness has

[14] completed his statement and [

(15] would ask the — T would ask that
6] the attorney wait until the

nn witness has completed his answer
(18] before following up with another
9 question.

{20] BY MR. PERLIS:

[21] Q  Excuse me, and please interrupt me if [
[22] interrupt you.

[23] A  Those forecasts had becn trending down.
[24] When we got the EVA forecast, it was

25] showing an increase. We went with that

o

o» DPOY»

been preparing annual forecasts each year
for internal use here at Centerior?

Okay, the first forecast that was used
with my knowledge because there were ancs
before me, and 1 can't attest to any of
their validity, but the first one that we
usced was the EVA in December of '94.

And have there been subsequent forecasts
that you have developed internally here?

Yes, T have developed them internally on a
periodic or as needed basis depending upon
what was being studied.

Have there been other needs than juat the
Supplemental Fuel Switching Study for such
projections4e be made?

Yes.

And you've always done them yourself?

Correct.

You haven't retained other outside parties
like you did with EVA that first time?

No, they've always been intemal,

Now as you've taken all those allowance
projections and forecasts together, do you
find that they are ~ or let me strike
that.

or O»

(o3 4

forecast. Then in '95, based on my
knowledge of the market, based on
allowance prices, it was decided to go

with our own forecast, and not even in our
forecast, do we show a decline down.

In fact, are you aware of Canter
Fitzgerald or Emission Exchange or the
other Clean Air Compliance, BATX that
you've referred to, are you aware of any
of them having forecasted the decline in
emission allowance prices that actually
occurred in 19967

That occurred in "96?

‘95 and '96, between the time of the first
study and the time of the second one.

Long term forecasts, ng. Short term, yes.

Did any — s0 you are aware of some having
projected a redaction short term, even
though EVA didn’t show that in their
study?

Right. :

Now with respect to the load forecast that
you've gotten out of the 1996 LTFR
approved by the Commission in 1996, that
load forecast tells — in what way did you

Robert J. Rua & Associates
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use that ioad forecast?

I don’t see a chart or any tabie that
says load forecast the way I do for
allowance prices or coal prices. How did
you use the load forecast?

Well, the load forecast gives you a
projected peak for the month in the energy
for the month, and then you use that to
project generation at each plant, ‘

And what use did you make out of that in
the 1996 Supplemental Fuel Switching
Study?

Well, that was the load we used for the
analysis to come up with a gencration for
each plant, the fuel that was burned at
each plant and be taken back out to get
the amount of SO2 generated and allowances
needed.

So is it fair to say that the exclusive
use of the load forecast information was
to gencrate table 5, the projected system
EA bank?

MR. REGULINSKI: May we sce
5, please?
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(n

Q
A

Q

Does it affect the delivered coal cost?
It may affect delivered coal cost but
those are evaluated costs in the table.
Right. What does evaluated coal cost
consist of? Is it not simply the sum of
delivered coal cost plus the SO2 cost?

MR. REGULINSKI: We've had
two withesses speak of evaluated
coal prices prior to Mr. Hoag
being deposed from the Procurement
Department.

MR. PERLIS: Right, becausc
that was our understanding but
this is the man who everyone has
told me is the one who did the
study, and this is what's in the
table. T'ma asking him to explain
whether the evaluated cozl price
in this study is anything more
than the sum of what's stated in
the top of the table, delivered
coal cost plus SO2 cost.

MR. REGULINSKI: T was
wondering if you were going back
to the previous depositicns

(Record read.)

That was one of the uses. T would not say
exclugive.

Can you tell me what other uses, useages
were made of the load forecast?

T just didn’t want my response to be
exclusive. There could be others but I
don’t recall what they are.

Looking at tables t to 4 in the study, was
it used »t all in producing those numbers?

It would definitely not have been used for-
table 1. More than likely was used
associated with tables 2, 3 and 4.

How might-it have been used for tables 2,
3 and 47

It would be used to arrive at the numbers
for those tables based on the genesation.

So tables 2, 3 and 4 show that the
delivered coal cost plus the SOZ cost for
differcnt pounds of SO2 coal.

Does the load forecast affect the $O2
cost, the aliowance cost that you wouid
have used or just the delivered coal comt?

It does not affect the SO2 cost.

tegarding the evaluated coal price
for procurement. You've
clarified, thank you.

BY MR. PERLIS:

Q

(o] J

Just for purposes of this study, the
evaluated coal price that appears in this
study, is it simply the sum of the
delivered coal cost plus the SO2 cost?

Tf delivered on that table inciudes
ransportation, yes, but otherwise, you
have to include mansponation aiso.

So delivered coal cost.itself has two
components; one is transportation and one
is the mine cost?

Mm-hmm.

And in what senge does the load forecast
affect either component of the delivered
coal cost?

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
the question re-read, please?

(Record read.)

MR, REGULINSKI: Perhaps it
helps to review what was the
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either in that question,

MR. SIEGFRIED: Excuse me,
Mr. Petlis. This is Stuart, with
the staff. T just wanted to let
you know there is another
gentleman with the staff, Mr. Ray
Strom is here as well. He's with
the Commission staff also.

MR. PERLIS: Thank you.

{Record read.)

In tables 2, 3 and 4, the — 1 was
incorrect in saying that the load forecast
would impact those tables. That is
delivered cost, plus S0O2, plus
transportation only.

Delivered cost meaning FOB mine, plus
transportation, plus SO2 costs?

Correct.

And the load forecast, now that you've
re-asycssed the question, did not affect
the entries in the study for the delivered
coal cost transportation and $O2 cost?

Correet.

o>»0 O owr

o»

(Record tead.)

It does take into account native load, and
it does grow at an escalated rate.

In fact, during the last 12 months of
1996, did the load grow for C.E.L. at all
or did it contract, do you know?

1 do not know that,

Did you take into account at all the
emergence of competition in both the
retzil and wholesale markets in preparing
the 1996 study?

No, [ did not.

Why not?

1 didn’t feel that it was necessary to do
that for our planning study, far this
supplemental study.

Arc you familiar with FERC Order 8887

1 have heard of it.

Have you heard of the Mega-NOPER that
preceded it that had been published before
your October study was submitted?

Yes, 1 had heard of it.

S0 you were aware at the time that
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So then is it the case then that the load
forecast really oniy affected table 5
which was the projected bank?

Yes.

And thers were no other tables attached to
the study. Were there other factual
tables that were prepared by you in the
course of prepering this study that were
not appended to the study, and not
submitted to the Commission?

1 do not believe so0.

Now with respect to the load forecast, you
said that that — I think we earlier in
this depasition, you stated that that was
based on tha service territory and the
native load of the utility.

Yes.

Docs that load forecast and therefore, the
emisgion allowance bank on which it's
based, docs that take into account
possible changes in the size of native
load in the future, or does it assume a
fixed native load or one that grows st a
constant escalated rate?

Could you read that again, please?
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11} you were preparing this study, that FERC
[2] was going to propose rules that would

[3} provide much more opportunity for

[ 4] wholesale power competition?

[ 81 MR, REGULINSKI: Objection an
[ 6] two grounds. One is relevance and
[T two is characterization. The

[ 8] witness has indicated that he had
[9] heard about the Mega-NOPER and he
ha had heard about the Rule 888.

{11 BY MR. PERLIS:

f12) Q  TH resiate the question. When you say
{13} you had heard about them, did you

[14] understand that that was going to have any
[15] affect on the wholesale power market that
(16} C.E.1. would confront?

17 MR. REGULINSKI: Purther
{18} objection on relevance. Without
[19] waiving the objection, T'll let

[20] the witness answer.

f21] ---

{221 (Record read.)

{23] -.-

[24] A Again, if you're talking wholesale power
[25} sales, our study dealt with native load.
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That is not wholesale power sales.

But by native load then, you mean the
demand that consumers within your service
territory piace upon the system for power?

Correct.

And so you assume that that is cotively
satisfied out of system generation?

For the purposes of the study, yes.

And do you believe that during the period
of 1997 through 1999, that an increasing
percentage of the consumer load might be
satisfied out of power purchased from
other suppliers’ generation facilities?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Relevance. Without waiving the
objection, T'll let the withess
answer,

That conld or could not kappen.

Are you aware of any developments that
might cause it to happen? Any factors
that would tend to increase the
importation of power by Centerior to
satigly its native load?

No.

Wonld Centerior be obligated to import

or» 0O»

Q»

be entirely purchased power but it could
be increasing percentages of purchasing
power versus generated power?

And those percentages could vary over
With the emergence of — do you agree that

there’s been — that there is now cmerging
a much more vibrant wholesale power

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.

Relevance. Without waiving the
objection, the witness can answer.
At times, there is, ves.
Does that provide perhaps oppertunities
for C.E.L to sell power in the whoiesale
market more often than it may have in the

We have power traders and power marketers
that are out there trying to sell our
power on a day to day basis.

And in doing a 20 year emission allowance
bank forecast, why did you not undertake
some analysis of what the likely effects

PAGE 46 PAGE 48
1 power if it couid do so at cheaper costs [ 1] of competition both in the wholesaic and
2 than it could do 80 by generating from its 2] retail markets would be?
3 own units? [3] A  Again, our study addreases native load
4] MR, REGULINSKI: Can we [ 4] system requirements onty. Wholesale power
5] clarify obligated for retail [5] sales are not included, unless they are
6] customers? Obligated for [ 6] known and contracted and signed at the
7] wholesale customers? [ 7} time and in place.
8 Q  Yes, For its retail customers, for its [8] Q Tn yowr capacity of reviewing and working
9 native load, if Centerior is able to [ 91 with the wholesale power marketing people
10] satisfy that native load more cheaply by [10} in the company, do you get the sense that
1] buying power from others, is it generally [11] the company belicves that the wholesale
(21 obligated to try to do that, in lieu of 12} paower market is going ta be more active
13} running its own generation units? [13] for C.E.I. over the next 20 years?
14] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as [14) A  Potentally.
15} to relevance. Without waiving the 15] Q  What about at the retail level? Do you
16] objection, T'll let the witness 16] foresee that there may be retail
17 answer. 17] competition for your native load customers
[18] A 1t is our policy to provide the power to sl in the next 20 years?
[19] OuUT customers at the cheapest least cost [19) MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
[20] possible. [201 scope and relevance. Without
21) T that's generation plus purchase 21] waiving the objection, I'l let
[22] power or generation only, whichever way, 22] the witness answer,
23] that's the way we do it. 231 A Therc may be.
24] Q  Or purchase power only, in some cases. {24] Q  Are you familiar with efforts made by a
[25} Well, never — you're saying it will never (251 number of other states to open up their
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markets, retail markets to competition?

MR. REGULINSKI: Same
objection. Without waiving, let
the witness answer.

On a gross basis, I am, yes.

Are you aware that Federal legislation is
expected ta be introduced and seriously
debated this year?

MR. REGULINSKIL: Objection.

That wounld give an impetus to retail
competition?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.

No, I am not awate of that.

If retail competition doea come for Ghio
as well as other neighboring states, I
assume Centerior would be able to try to
sell power to other customers’ native
load, other utilities’ native load?

MR. REGULINSKI: T'll have &
continuing objection to retail
competition, so T won't have to
continue to interrupt, but the
record will note 8 continuing
objection to this line of
questioning as irrelevant.

PAGE 51
i1] plants?
[2) MR. REGULINSKI: May T have
{3} that question again, picase?
[4] ---
[ 5] (Record read.)
{6 - -
(n MR. REGULINSKL: T'll note
{8 for the record that not only did

9] the Examiner grant a motion for
10] protective order on the ‘95

1 Environmental Compliance Plan but
12 also granted a mation for

13 protective order on the analytical
14 methodology, underlying data and
15] studies and alternatives and

16 scenarios and conclusions of each
17] for the May 30, 1996 iong term
(18] forecast report.
[19] And while T bave again
20] permitted substantial leeway into
21 questions that are related to the
22] long term forecast report, which
[23} includes not only load growth
[24] forecasts, but also includes how
[25) the company will meet that load
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Without waiving that objection,
T'll let the witness answer.

As Mr. Kovach stated earlier, if you're
going to come play on my basebail ficld,
'm going to come play on your baseball
field.

And when you go to play on these bascball
fields, are you going to be playing
basically on cost and scrvice?

I would think that might be the -

Do you think the least cost suppliers of
power are likely to have an upper hand in
the competitive markctplace?

I would think so.

When yowundertook your study, did you
undertake any evaluation as to whether or
not the Centerior plants were below
average in cost compared to other regional
electric generation facilities?

No, I did not.

You did not see the need to do that?

No.

Now in undertaking the ioad forecast, does
Centerior consider poasible retirement or
reduction in utilization of particuiar

PAGE 52

[ 1] growth for generation planning. I
12 don't believe it's appropriate and
{3] the Examiner I believe also agrees
{4] it's not appropriate and so I

5 wouid ask that the attorney wrap
[ 6] up his 1996 LTFR questions and I
(7 would object to this question but
[8] permit the witness to answer.

[ 91 MR, PERLIS: Just for the
[10] record, counset would like to

[11] remind Mr. Regulinski that our
[12} view, of course, is rather

[13] different of paragraph 7 of the
[14] Order, but the witness has been
[15] instructed to answer the question.
[16] MR. REGULINSKE: [

17 understand.

[18] THE WITNESS: May I piease
[19] ask for it 1o be re-read?

[20] .-

[211 (Record read.)

2] .-

[231 A The utilization or reduction or retirement
[24) of plants is not an input to the load

[25] forecast. The load forecast — those
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might be outputs from it, but the load
forecast is not dependent upon our current
generation,

The emission allowance bank that's
projected in table 5, docs that depend
upon the degree of system utilization of
cach of the plants within the Centerior
system?

Yes.

Did you undertake a study in preparing the
aliowance back in number 57 Do you
preparc any anaiysis of the company's
plans with respect to general — the
utilization of gencrating facilities?

Table 5 reflects any changes that were
made at the time of the study to
Centerior’s generation and then those
would be refiected in this table as a
difference compared to the "95 table.

Does the aliowance bank forecast,
therefore, not take into account the
company's announced plans to reduce
utilization of severai of the coal fired
units?

Table 5 does reflect the announcement for

Q

o>

o» o0 »

> 0r» D >

And how did you decide what the total
consumption or output of electricity was
going to be during each of those years?

That comes from the load forecast.

So is there anything other than the load
forecast that was relied upon in preducing
table 57

I guess I don't understand what you're
driving at or —

Does the load forecast contain an ountput
of system electricity production?

The load forecast, no.

So where does that come from? You take
the number of kilowatt hours to be
consumed &3 your load and what do you do
to that to come up with the emission
allowance?

It's run through a production costing
model.

Who did the runs on the production cost
model?

Personnel in my area.

And how many runs did they do to come up
with the emission allowance bank?

I really don’t know how many runs they

the changes at Ashtabula and Eastlake.

Which changes are those you're referring
to?

In the fait of last ycar, we
decommissioned two units at Asheabula C
plant, and we mothbzlled a third unit at C
plant, and there’s potentizl cycling
activity at Eastlake for weckends for onc
unit.

And all thosc effects were incarporated
into the load forecast output and the
emission allowance bank forecast in
table 57

Reflected in this table but again, those
have pothing to do with the load forecast.

S0 you took the load forecast — in making
table 5, you took the load forecast and
then you factored in certain — what eise
did you factor in thep besides the load
forecast to come up with the table 5
erission allowance bank? How did you —

You have your starting year allowances,
you have your carry over from the previous
year, subtract out your consumption for
that calendar year.

PAGE 56

Q

did.

Did they do extensive sensitivity analysis
on any paricular factors that would
affect the size of the emission allowance
bank?

The sensitivity that was done was the
various sulfur levels as indicated through
tables 2, 3 and 4.

Other than the sulfur levels, for each -
they did the sulfur levels, s0 in other
words — well, actually, it’s a good ~

MR. REGULINSKI: Mr. Perlis,
we've been going at it for two and
a half hours. Is this a good
time, or do you want to kecp going
befare a break?

MR. PERLIS: I'm happy o
take a break if the witness wants
one,

MR. REGULINSKI: Let's take a
five minute break.

MR. PERLIS: That's fine.

(Short recess had.)
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[1] Q  Mr Hoag, let’s continue if we might.

{2] A Allrgh
[3] @ TIdlike to return to the manaer ib which
[ 4] yoli constructed table 5 in the study.
Again, I'm not asking for the
6] specific numbers but the methodology that
| was used in constructing the table.
8] You say you took the load forecast
9] output for system demand for kilowatt
10] hours, is that correct? And then you ran
(11 some models.
12) Could you ¢xplain in a tittle bit
13} more detail what you did to the output
14] from the load forecast to come up with the
15} column of cmission allowances that we sce
16) in table 57
[177 A Okxay. To get the projected system EA
[18] bank, you start with initial allocation
(19} for each year. You subtract from that
[29] your aliowances or your SO2 generated
[21) which iz equivalent to EA's.
22} One ton of SO2 is equal to one
[23) allowance. The SO2 generated or the EA's
24 consumed is the output from a preduction
[25) costing model which utilizes the load

o»

monthly energy that will be consumed, or
generated.

The production costing model tells
you how that energy is going to be
dispatched throughout the month.

Okay. We'll get to the dispatching, but [
just want to focus on what you called
originally the load duration curve.

Does that consist of any judgment or
adjustments made in your office to the
load forecant?

No, it does not.

So you get this monthly peak energy
generated, and then you have to determine
from which plants that generation i3 going
to come, and the reason you have — the
witness is shaking his head yes — and is
the reason you have to determine that so
that you can then determine which plants
will be operating and what their emissions
will be when they're s0 operating?

Would you read that back, please?

(Record read.)

PAGE 58
1] duration curve to come up with specific
2} generation for each plant, and then it
3] gives you specific sulfur consumed.
[4] Q  Thank you. For my heip, I'd like to break
5} that down into pieces.
6} MR. PERLIS: Conld T ask the
court reporter to read back
[ 8] starting with the output of the
E 9]] production costing model?
10 ---
(11} {Record read.)
12] ---
13] Q  When you speak of the load durgtion curve,
14] I take it that is the consumer demand in
15} kilowatt bouss over time that was the
[16] output from the load forecast?
[t71 A Yes
f18] Q  Are any adjusuments made to the load
9 forecast as approved by the Commission to
[20] come up with a load duration curve, or you
{21} just take the numbers oux of the load
[22] forecast and it's one unique load duration
[23] curve?
{24 A The load forecast gives you the — I
[25} beiieve it’s the monthly peak and the

o>

I'm not sure T fully understand the
question.

Shali T try to rephrase it?

Please

I'a not as artful here in the terminology
48 you are, so please bear with me and
we'll get it right. T'll oy to get it
right.
You said before that you utilize the
load duration curve in the production
costing model to come up with specific
generation for each plant.

Correct,

Why — what do you do when you get the
specific generation from each plant to
produce this table?

The plants in the medel are dispatched
hour by hour. That tells you how much
coal is burned.

You have your assumption for what
value of suifur coal is being used. That
allows you to say for that gencration, you
consumed 50 many tons of coal at a certain
sulfur level, and then you can back into
what the amount of SO2 generated is for
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[1 the month. [1] PROMOD for the right to use the model?
(2 Q  And then you add up the total 502 [2] A 1 believe it's a lease, yes.

[3 generated, and you determine how many [3] Q Do you make modifications to PROMOD that
[4 allowances would therefore be consumed in {4 are only Centerior specific or do you take

[s that period of time by the company? [5) PROMOD the way it iz provided to all the

[ 6] A Correct. {8 other utilities and use it as received?

[77 Q Okay. Now in applying these production {71 A Use it as received, but the PROMOD input,
[8 costing models to determine which (8l it has to be customized to your corporate

[9 generating facilities are going to run, {9] situation.

f10 that's what you mean by a digpatch model, f10] Q  And among the inputs would be fuel prices,
1] correct? [11] including transportation, aliowance

[12] A  Correct. 1 prices, outage schedules, and wholesale

[13] Q@  Now this dispatch model, is this a 13 power sales?

[14] dispatch model that makes predictions for 14] A Those are some of them, yes.

[15] 20 years, or is it sort of a current 15 Q  Are there any other major inputs that you
[16] dispatch model that tefls you what would 16] have to customize?

7 happen today under certain circumstances? 17] A Their program, the instruction manual is
[18] A This model is a model that we use that 18 three volumes about that thick,

{193 will do for the next 20 years. It can [19] (Indicating.)

{20} look ahead 20, 30, 40 years. 20] Q TI'm asking in general terms, I'm asking in
[21] Q  What are the major factors in the 21 general terms what are the major factors,
[22] production costing model that determine 22] the major inputs that bave significant

{23} which generating facility is going to be 23 effects. 1f you were to give a list of

[24] dispatched? 24 the top ten, you've given me four here,

[25] A There are several. Number one, being fuel 251 what else would be on the list?

PAGE 62 PAGE 64

[1] price which includes the transportation, [1] A 1 would think those four would be

[2] ellowance price, outage scheduling, any [2] sufficient.

[3] wholesale power sales that you might have. [3] Q  Okay. Let's start with wholesale power
[4) Those are the big ones that I can think of [ 4] salcs, if we might, When you made or when
[5] right now. [ 5] your department made the inputs for

[6] Q  Let's start with the iast one, wholesale i 6] wholesale power sales, who decided what
{n power sales, 7 the wholcsale power sales were going to be
[8] Before 1 do that, the production [8) as an input into the model?

9 costing model which you are referring to, [9] A  Again, if there was no existing sale on
[0} is this a proprietary model of a third [10) contract that was not aiready included in
(1 party? [(3]] the load forecast, we would have included
[12} A Yes, it is. - [12] it, but there were not any.

[13] Q  And would that be PROMOD?T [13] Q 1don't understand the response. Let me
[14] A  Correct. [14] ask it in pieces again. Are you saying

15] Q And that'agpelied for the court reporter, 15] that whatever wholesale sales there were
16] P-R-O-M-0-D, all caps? 16] taken into account in the load forecast?
17 A  Right. 177 A  That's correct.

18] Q@  And does Centerior lease the model so to 18 Q  And there were some wholesale sales taken
19] speak to do — doeg Centerior run the 19 into account in the load forecast?

20] model itself or does it rety on the third 20] A  For which there are long term contracts,
21] partics to run the —~ proprietor of FPROMOD 21 yes.

22] to run the model? 22 Q  And those are different wholesale

23] A We run the model. 23 contracts than may have existed back for
[241 @  And you do that under some sort of fee 24 the January, *95 swudy?

[25) arrangement, where you pay the owner of [25] A They couid be. 1 don’t know specifically.
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[11 Q Going forward now for the 20 year planning
[2 horizon, do you agsume any changes in the
[3 wholesale power contracts going forward
[4 for the 20 years, or do you just take the
[S contracts that were in place as of that

[ 6] time?

[T A 1100k the contracts in place as of that
[8 time, and as I said before, the study,

[9 dealt then with strictly system native

10} load.

[11] Q  Well, when you say the study dealt with,
[12 by that you mean that the way in which you
[13 provided inputs into the production

[44 costing model just used the native

[15] forecasting load and made no adjustments
[i6 for increascs or decreases in wholesale

{17] sales in the future that were not already
[18 committed in contract?

{19 A  Correct.

[20] Q  Okay. Did you do any sensitivity analysis
21 that would have indicated what would have
[22 hzppened if you assumed a five or a ten
[23 percent increase in wholesale sales?

[24 A No, I did not.

{25 Q  Or wholesale purchases? Did you do any

PAGE 67
(1 a

So if you do the planning from the five
year increments, whatever the first five
years is, you just assume that that will
be replicated in each of the next five
year segments that make up the 20 year
period roughly?

Approximately. It's not exactly five for
five.

With respect to allowance prices, in what
sense are allowances prices an input into
the generation production costing model?

MR. REGULINSKI: Pardon me,
Mr. Perlis. Have you given any
consideration on hiring an expert
on PROMOD to assist you in
development of your case?

MR. PERLIS: 1 don't believe
1 have to answer that question.

MR. REGULINSKI: We could
spend the rest of the day here
explaining how PROMOD works o you
or you could hire yourself an
expert who could sit down and
explain for a fee how PROMOD works
and how utilities work FROMOD.
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[1) sensitiviy analysis of changes in

[2) wholesale purchases?

[3] A No.

[4 Q Soin effect, you made no real adjustments
[ 51 of your own for wholesale power sales as

I 6} an input into the production costing

[7 model. You took what you got from the
[ 8] load forecast?

{99 A Correct.

[10] Q  Outage scheduling, explain what you mean
[11] by the input for outage scheduling.

{12 A  On ap annual basis, all of our turban
[13] generators, boiler equipment need

[14] maintenance, both short term and lang
[15] term. We pian that on a four year cycling
[16] or five year or three year maintenance
T cycle.

(18 So in a calendar year, you might have
[19 a specific maintenance cycle coming up.
201 That all has to be input for I believe we
[21 do a five year planning horizon for

[22 specific outage schedules. After that, it
f23] just goes into a cycle mode thar this unit
[24] is going to have three weeks this year,
[25] three weeks five years from now.

MR. PERLIS: I'm asking this
gentleman how he approached the
utilization of PROMOD in preparing
the study and the output in
table 5.

MR. REGULINSKIL: And if you
had this expert, these quéstions
would take a lot shorter time.

You don’t know the first thing

about PROMOD, you don’t know the
first thing about system dispatch

and that's apparent from your
questions.

Naw if you had an expert
instead of wasting our time with a
court reporter explaining to you
what PROMOD is, how it works, what
digpatch is, what a generation
outage is —

MR. PERLIS: 1 think T didn’t
take very much time on Wholesale
power sales. T'm not going to
take very much time on the other
factors. There are only two more
to go.
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BY MR. PERLIS:
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Now in allowance prices, Mr. Hoag, could
you explain to me how gencrally the
production costing model takes allowance
prices into account ag an input?

Allowances for every — we enter the
forecast that T create into the database,
and then for every allowance that's
generated, it's charged that forecasted
rate for that year.

And the purpose for that is that you're
trying to get an all-in or an exclusive or
what you might call an evaluated price?

Correct.

For fuel and the allowance and so that
fuel price would be transportation and the
mine mouth costs, and then you add the
allowances?

Correct.

And then you come up with an all-in cost
of running each of the particular
generation units, and the production
costing model is supposed to schedule them
20 that the ieast cost one wouid run first
and then going up to the next highest cost

o>

o»

(Record read.)

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
to relevance. Without waiving the
objection, let the witness explain
how PROMOD works to the attorney.

If any plant has an existing fuel
contract, just like these were for
Ashtabula and Eastlake, the same
methodology is used to come up with the
delivered cost, pius SO2 there as was used
for -

And in order to use the PROMOD moadel, you
have regularly or periodicaily revised
estimates of what the fuel costs are for
all of your generating facilities?

Yes.

With respect to the fuel prices for
EBastlake and Ashtabula, do you know from
what date those prices were forecast when
used in your 1996 study?

No, I do not.

Going forward into the future for the 20
year period, you're relying on then the

Z;EET:TJ’:E
m

o» 3

o»

o»

one, ete.?

Correct.

Now as you do that, what do you assume the
allowance cost is for a unit of fuel
consumed at Bastlake and at Ashtabula when
you run your PROMOD model?

I guess 1 don’t understand the question.

Do you assume that the allowance price is
the projected market cost of allowances or
do you assume some other basis of
allowance costs?

The allowance cost is what was in the
allowance forecast supplied for the study
which T believe is table 1, yes.

Okay. And then for the fucl prices, is it
also — it says that you just use the fuel
prices that are in the projections in this
study, as well?

That is correct.

And what about for the other Centerior
units that aren't in the study that are in
the PROMOD model? What do you use for
their fuel prices?

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
that question again, please?

o>

fuel prices and the atlowance prices that
are forecasted in the srudy for Eastlake
and Ashtabula?

Correct.

So then if I sum up then, at least with
these four major factors, if we're looking
at the adjustments that are made, the
judgment, if you will, that’s imparted by
you &nd your office to the PROMOD modei,
you don't do anything on the wholesale
power sales; you take the outage

acheduling that the company has developed
for a myriad of purposes in the use of
PROMOD, and you just use the allowance and
the fuel prices for Bastlake and Ashtabula
that are in the study that you got from
either yourself, in the case of allowance
price, and in the case of fuel prices, in

the case of Mr. Lang supplying them to
you?

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
that question re-read, please?

(Record read.)
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[1] A  Yes
[2] Q  Now does the PROMOD - did your
{3] development of table 5 with the use of the
4] PROMOD modet take into account any changes
5] in plant utilization other than from these
6] factors? Any sort of, let's say, any
7 projection of any reduced utilization of
8] any particular plant?
9] A AsTstated earlier, table 5 did incinde
10] the September shutdowns of the two units
11 at Ashtabula C plant, the mothballing of 8
12] third plant and the weekend cycling of an
f13] Eastlake unit,
14] Q  And those were il changes from what might
15] have been assumed for PROMOD back when the
16) 1995 study was done?
['7] A  Correct.
{18] Q Looking forward 20 yecars, does it make -
[19] are there any efforts made to project any
{20] other similar changes in plant
121} utilization, cycling, shutdowns, etc.?
[22] A T do not beiieve s0, but I cannot
{23 specifically recall.
[24]) MR. REGULINSKI: T would also
f25) note for the record, that again,
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1 help you to have the sealed

[2a portion?

{31 A  Onpage 4 of the study, it talks in the

[ 4] middle of the bottom paragraph, that the

[ 5] Centerior’s pians are to be one in which

[ 6] it uses both coal and/or emission

[1 allowances at these units so that it may

[ 8] reserve allowances based on & tate of 2.4
[9] to 3.8 pounds of SOZ per MM BTU 30 I would
f10) have to say that table 5 goes back to

1] probably a coal in the range of 2.4 to

12] 38

13} Doesn't the PROMOD model have to have used
14} a specific pounds per MM BTU?
{15] A It probably did, and I'm saying I can’t

16} definitely tell you which one of those two
17] it used.

181 Q Do you think it's — unfortunately, I

19] can’t find this citation but T recall

20] aceing that it was 2.5 pounds per MM BTU
21]) at Bastlake. Is that possible that that

22} was the oumber that was used?

23] A 1 would not want to hazard a guess.

24] ©Q  Ts there any reason to believe that what
25] you used was the mix of fractions of 2.5,
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[1} this question appears to go for
{2 the long term forecast report

[3] which includes not only the

[4] company's forecasts of load but
)| also includes a plan and method to
[ 6] meet their loads using local

| generation, power purchases,

{8] cycling and other aspects so these
[9] matters are and have been reviewed
[10} by the Commission, and the

[11] company’s long term forecast

(12§ report and that the Examiner fully
f13) recognizing that, granted a

[14] protective order 50 we wouldn't
f1s) have 1p waste our time discussing
i16} these matters in deposition.

(171 MR. PERLIS: Thank you,
f18] Mt. Reguiingki,

(19 BY MR. PERLIS:

[20)0 Q  Now with respect to the fuel and aliowance
[21) prices, when you ren the PROMOD modei to
[22] come up with table 5, what did yon assume
{23) was the composition of fuel at the

[24) Eastlake pfant?

[25} MR. REGULINSKI: Would it
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1 3.6 and 6.0 coal that appeared in OVCC-27
[ 2 that was referenced in Mr. Kovach's

3 deposition?

4 A Thighly doubt that becatsc the OVCC

5] document number 27 was prepared well after

6] the study.

7 Q  Bat at this time, you're not sure exactly

8] what the pounds of SO2 per MM BTU were

9] that you asmumed for purposes at Eastlake
10] in running the PROMOD model?
[ A Of whether table 5 was —
(12 Q  Yeah.

13, A — between the differential of 2.5 to 3.8?

14 No, T can't tell that off the top of my

15} head. :
16] Q But that number would be available to you
17 somewhere in your records?

18] A 1 would imagine it would be.
[19] Q  And the same thing goes for Ashtabula.
[20] You'd be able to determine from your

21] records what the exact pounds of $O2 per
22] MM BTU werc assumed for purposes of that?
23] A T think T could, yes.

24] Q  Now you would agree that it will make a
25 difference whether you use 2.5 or 3.8 for
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number 29 from the OVCC
Interrogatories.

Would you take a moment to look at that
question and answer?

Okay.

Do you remember preparing this?

Yes, I do.

Thank you. Does thig response indicate
that the actual cost of your allowances is
a small fraction of the evalusted cost of
allowances that you used for purposes of
this study?

The cvaluated cost we used for the study
is market price, okay, pius escalators and
adders and whatever other conditions I
figure that the market is going to go
through or gyrations it’s going to go
through,

Don’t you say in your answer here that the
average cost basis of allowances consumed
during 1997 through 1999 gshould be well
below five dollars per allowance?

Yes, [ do, and that relates to what we
charge our customers on a monthly basis as
part of our BFC process, electric fuel
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A

>0

The Fuel Planaing Supply Department
purchases the least cost coal for the
units and that is passed through the EFC
process 1o our customers.
Just the delivered fuel portion of it.
T cannot specifically state which portions
of it arc passed throngh.
Well, is it generally the case that the
delivered fuel cost —
MR. REGULINSKL: We will
stipulate for the record that
under Ohio law, acquisition and
delivery cost of fuel is recovered
from our customers, under Ohio
law.
MR. PERLIS: Currently. Ona
current basis?
MR. REGULINSKL: It's done on
a semiannual basis. There's
reconciliation adjustments based
upon whether or not the numbers
that are projected are actuals.
It's an entire process. We will
stipulate to that process.

(25] BY MR. PERLIS:

{191

clauge. That's the weighted average cost
of the inventory you're seeing there,
$1.94.

So you only charge your customers either
§1.94 or five dollars. You don't charge
them the ninety dollars that you estimated
as the 97 allowance cost, do you?

Correct. We charge them the $1.94, the
weighted average cost of the inventory at
that month,

And when you change your fuel decision
from 6.0 to 2.5 or 3.8, are you able to
pass through the entire fuel price, the
delivered fuel price to your customers on
& current basis?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
The pass through of fuel costs is
not & part of this proceeding.
It’s part of the electronic fuel
component proceeding as this
witness has testified but
recognizing that, recognizing the
abjection to relevance, we will
not waive the objection, and ict
the witness answer.
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Q

» 0

So is it the case then, Mr. Hoag, that for
charging your customens for the allowances
that you use up in 97 through "99, you're
only collecting five dollarg from them but
you're able to collect the full amount of
the delivered cost of coal difference
between the lower sulfur and the higher
sutfur coal?

We are charging the customer the weighted
average inventory which is §1.94 and since
1 didn’t project any purchases, I said it
would be less than five dollars.

Fine.

Ag far as the fuel goes, as I said, we are
allowed to pass through the cost of the
fuel to the customer through the EFC
mechanism,

So by passing through that difference,
aren't you obtaining allowances that you
will nse in the future rather than the
once that you're charging to your
customers today at the lower five dollar
or less than fve dollar cost?

MR. REGULINSKI: May we have
that question re-read, pleasc?

" Robert J. Rua & Associates
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M a

(Record read.)

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
We're comparing apples and oranges
here. You're comparing fuel costs
to weighted average inventory
emission atlowances. Can you
restate the question, please?

[10] BY MR. PERLIS:

I'm asking whether you evaluate the effect
of your program as being the incurring of
costs today that you can fully recover
from your rate payors for the benefit of
acquiring allowances that will not be used
until the furure?

Would you re-read it, please?

{Record read.)

I'm going to have to go back to what [
said before and that is, you know, we
charge the customer on the weighted
average inventory basis and the fuel flows
through the fuel clause adjustment
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[1] switching would be to purchase them in the
[2) open market?

[3] A  Yes, you can do that,

[4 Q  Which individuals in the company make the
[ 5] decision as to whether the company will

[ 6] purchase allowances?

[71 A 1make the recommendation to management to
i8] purchase. However, with this plan that we
[9 have laid out, T see no need to purchase
[10] right now.

[11] Q  What about other purchasing decistons that
[12) have been made in the past? You've made
[13] those recommendations for the decisions to
4] purchase?

f15] A  Caorrect.

{16) @ Okay. And what sources of information
n7n have you congidered in doing so, when you
[18] have decided to purchase allowances?

191 A  The consumption of the plants over a

[20] certain timeframe showed me that at the
{21] end of the year, we would not

{221 significantly meet our reserve, emergency
{23] status that we set up of 60,000, and other
{241 cases where Fuel Procurement has gone out
[25] and purchased coals whereby I had to
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] Q

proceedings, and if in the process we bank
allowances, then that happens, yes.

Does the company have a set of criteria to
guide it in determining how much it should
try to bank, or how it should evaiuate
what the cost and benefit of a bank in
increasing the bank would be or do you
just automatically, do you have such a
criteria?

We ate uging the '92 plan, the *95 plan
and the '96 plan updated as that is what
we want to do, that table 5. That is our
new goal that we're shooting for.

Under what criterin did you determine that
it was impostant to have the bank mn out
in 2012, rather thar 20087

We are trying as part of our Environmental
Compliance Plan to push any advanced
technology options such like a scrubber or
any new technoiogy that comes along
between now and then as far into the
future as we possibly can. We are trying
to limit capital spending.

Isn't it true that another way of
obtaining allowances other than the fuel
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[1 account for the differential between what
[2 they were supposed to be buying according
[3 to the plan, and what they actually
[ 4] bought.

5] Q  But again, T come back to the criteria

6 then is simply the plan. There's no

7] independent criteria to determine what the

8] appropriate bank level is above the

9 margin?

10) Do you have any criteria that tells

11 you you'd like to have the bank at 100,000
12 rather than 200,000 or 200,000 rather than
[13 100,000 allowances?
[14) A No.
[1S] Q Do you have any criteria by which you
[16] measure what the cost to the company is of
i having a bank that's 50,000 allowances
[t8] larger in phase two than it would be under
[19] an salternate srategy?
[201 A  No, other than the expiration of the bank
{211 being further out in time, which fuifills
(221 a management objective,
{23 Q Do you recognize that for the increased
[24} costs of fuel consumption of the lower

sulfur coal, in the current years when you
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make the fuel switch that that cost has a
carrying cost to it in terms of when the
benefit will be realized in phase two?

I don’t follow your question,

Do you undertake - do you ever factor in
the time value of money or the company’s
cost of capital in determining whether or
not it is a good idea to purchase the

Y iy gy P S ey pr—
LR L)
o>

{9 allowances today for use in the future?
[t0) A  That's what your levelized at ten percent
f11] docs. It's accounts for the company's

f12] cost of capital.

fl3l Q@ How does it do that? Would you explain
[14] that levelized ten percent line

[15] generically? You don't have to do it by
[16) reference to these numbers.

(171 A That's wking the net present value of all
(18] those calculations, all those costs,

[19} bringing them back to today's value at a
[20] ten percent rate.

[211 Q My question was when you make a purchasing
223 decision for allowances, do you take into
23] account the cost of money, time value of
[24) money, the cost of capital, however you
[25} phrase it, do you take intc account that
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it allowances, does it consider the time

[2 value of money in the time period between
[3 when you purchase the allowances, and when
[4 you might use them in phase two?

[ 5] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[6 Relevance. Without waiving the

[7 objection, you can answer the

[8 question.

[9 A Again, I'd like to restate that our

[10] purchases have been few, and therefore,
[17] they have been for consumpticn in that
[12] year in order to maintain our reserve

13] levels, and in view of that, T don™t

[14] foresee purchasing now to hold for the

[15] future,

[16] Q  And how do you evaluate whether it would
7 be cost effective to purchase allowances
[18] today for use in phase two? Does the

(191 company cvaluate whether it would be cost
201 effective to purchase allowances today or
21 at any time for use in phase two?

[22] A T have not, no.

[23] Q  Have you ever considered purchasing any
[24) options or entering into any forward

[2s} contracts for delivery of allowances in
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[ COBL -~

[2] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[3] Q - when you purchase allowances?

[ 4] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[5] The purpose of this proceeding is

[ 6] to determine whether the projected
[N gystem bank of emission allowances
[ 8] over the 20 year planning horizon
[9 is reasonable and appropriste and
0] supported by the evidence.

[11] Likewise, the different costs

[12] that could be incurred for

k)] different fuel levels over a 20

[14] year planning kerizon.

[15] -The ixsue in this proceeding

[16]) is not the costs including

07 carrying costs when Mr. Hoag makes
[18] an individual purchase decision.

19] But rather, whether to project it,
[20] the emission allowance bank is

[21] appropriate. Given that

22] objection, can you rephrase the

[23] question?

24] BY MR. PERLIS:

25] Q  When the company evaiuates purchasing of
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(1] the foture?

2] A T bave considered some of those type of
3] transactions.

4] Q  And when you consider that, how do you

5 evaluate what the costs and benefits of
6 such a trangaction would be?
7 A Tdoit on an economic basis.

[8] Q Could you explain what the type of
9] economic calculation is that you wmake?

0] A 1 might do a net present value analysis.

11 That's the main one that T use.

12 Q In which you would look at when the cost

13 ia incurred and determine what the preseat

14 value of that cost is?

15] A Right.

6] Q  And what about the use of the allowance?
[t7] When you make that determination, how
[8 do you factor that in?

[19 A T don't undenstand what you mean.

[201 Q If you were to do a forward contract,
[21} you — strike that.

[22] Has the company had opportunitics to
23] purchase gllowances for use in future

[24] years?

[25] A I have not solicited for that. I have not
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asked for it. I really don’t even
entertain the brokers when they cail me
and talk to me about it,

But if you waated to, you're aware that
there are brokers out there who would be
interested in trying to arrange sales of
future year allowances to you?

After being in this market for four years,
T would sure kope to know that there arc
brokers that would sell me allowances in
any year 1 want.

And are there people selling allowances
for use in future years?

Therc are some, yes.

And are there some that are doing this on
& forward basis, where vou don't have ta
pay for the allowances today but can pay
for them in the future?

Yes.

C.E.L. has never undertaken such a
transaction, has it?

No.

Earlier, you stated that the EVA forecast
of emission allowance prices did not show
the drop in actual prices that occurred.

{1 a

But it iz least cost only in the sense of
determining what the cost of allowances
that you use in the future will be,
correct?

It’s ieast cost in the delivered fuel cost
plus allowances, plus transportation over
the 20 year planning horizon.

Should C.E.I. be purchasing allowances
whencver the cost of purchase is less than
what the future value you're projecting
will be for those allowances?

I can't answer that yes or no because it
depends upon what the cost is out in the
future, and we have a rather hefty
carrying charge of ten percent oa our cost
of capital and money.

So you do factor in the ten percent cost
of capital in making decisions as to
whether or not you would purchase
allowances?

Yes.

You don’t factor that ten percent in for
purposes of doing thc assessment of fuel
gwitching in years *97 through *99.

That's oot a cost on the allowance.

[1]
(2
[3)
[4

5}
(6]

-
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A
Q

Correct.

In *95 and '96. When that happened, why
did Centerior not consider purchasing
allowances of what would have seemed lower
than the projected farecast price for
allowances?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
to relevance, Without waiving the
objection, if the witmess can
answer.

Again, after reviewing our bank and the
bank levels, and our plan, T didn't see
the need to go out and spend additional
corporate funds in order to bank more
allowances.

Then why'i8 there a need to do the fuel
switching to bank additional allowances?

That’s not the purpose of the
Environmental Compliance Plan, to bank
aliowances.

The purposc of the Environmental
Compliance Plan is to comply with the
regulations and do it as a least cost
methodology and becausc of 3.8 being least
cost, that gives us that bank,

PAGE 112
11 Q

So in other words, you don’t view as
comparable economic decisions fuel
switching today, and obtaining allowances
that you can usc in the future, and
purchasing the allowances today for use in
the future?

Would you re-read that, please?

(Record read.)

T guess T'd ask you to elaborate on that
because I'm still confused by what you're
looking for or wanting.

H the company has two opiions, one is to
fuel switch and obtain additiona! phase
two allowances, and the other is not to
foel switch and to buy the allowances in
the market today for use in the future,
how do you decide which of those two is a
betier economic option?

We haven't done that analysis because we
arc going for the fuel switching. Again,
by my analysis and my bank, we don't need
to go out and purchase. So therefore, I
don't really consider that an option at
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(1 Q

B
>0

this point in time.

Why do you need to incur the additional
cost today of fuecl switching to create the
bank in the futurg?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
We have not testified that there’s
addidonal cost. If you make &
clarification between delivered
cost and evaluated cost.

Additional delivered cost.

Yeah, I'll go back to the 20 year planning
horizon. The levelized cost of the 20
year level showed 3.8 is the smaller
amount, and again, to fulfill a management
objective to defer the capital cost as far
into the future as possible.

To defer the capital cost. By that, you
mean cost that would not be passed through
currentty as a cost of service?

I'm saying the capital cost that would be
associated with any new technology that
was installed in the plant in fiture
years.

Or the capital cost associated with
purchasing allowances today for use in the
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[g a five minute break, if you like.
2] MR. PERLIS: No, I would like
3 to just go on. I'd Hke to finish
4] as soon a3 I can. Of course, if
5] the witness needs a break.
6] THE WITNESS: No, keep going.
71 BY MR. PERLIS:
8] Q Could you piease tcli me, as best you can,
9] what you view as the difference between
10} the decision to buy an allowance today for
11 use in the future is from the decision to
12} incur higher delivered fuel costs today to
f13] obtain additional allowances in your bank.
[14f A  It's not a decision between thase two-
[15] It's a decision of the least cost to the
[16] customer over the 20 year planning
[17] horizon.
[18) Q  Have you compared the lcast cost of the
[19) fuel switch to a purchase of aliowances in
[20] your study?
[21) No, because we don't feel we need to
[22) purchase allowances.
23] But then how can you make a judgment as to
[24] whether it's least cost or not as between
I25] purchasing allowances, or engage in the
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[1
2]
3]
4
5]
6]
1
3|
9]
100 A
1] Q
[12]
13
[14
[15)
16]
17]
18
19]
20] Q
21 A
22]
23
24] @
25]

future, that would be a capital cost also,
wouldn't it?

I'm not sure how our accounting group
would handle that,

Well, do you agree that the higher the
delivered cost — that the greater the
difference in delivered cost between the
lower suifur coal and the higher sulfur
coal, the less degirable is a fuel switch?

Say that again, please?

Do you agree that the greater the
difference between the delivered cost of
coal, the higher — at the lower sulfur
compared to the higher sulfur coal, the
greatcr thax differcnce, the less
degirable it is to fuel switch?

MR. REGULINSKI: A
clarification. You're talking
about at delivered prices again?

Yes, yes.

If the spread is great, you would want
to — I hate to do this to you, would you
restate that again, please?

I think we'll just go on.

24R. REGULINSKI: We can take
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[ 1] fuel switch?

2] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.

3] I believe this is — we've gone

4] through this several times. You

5 keep circling beck around to this.

6] T think we've been through

7 this before. Without waiving the

] objection, the witneas can answer.

9] Agguin, our plan was to assess the least

10} cast of these options, all right?

11) So you did not -~ the company has not
[12] considered comparing whether or not it is
13] least cost to fuel switch versus

14} purchasing allowancea?

15] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[t6] Asked and angwered. We've done
v that one. ;
[18] MR. PERLIS: Could we please
[19] let him answer that?

20] MR. REGULINSKI: Once again,
21] once again, but this is the last
[22] time for this question.
[23] A No,1 did nat.
[241 Q  You did not consider whether it was least
[2s] cost to purchase allowances rather than to
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(4 fuel switch? {1 He's indicated he doesn’t know.
[2] A Corect. [2] MR. PERLIS: T'll restate it.
[31 Q Now if you do buy aliowances for future [3] My question’s different.
[4] use, would you censider there to be 3 risk [4 Q  Have you had occasion to inquire as to the
[ 5] that it might turn out to have been a bad [5] treatment of the emission allowance
[ 6] investment because of price volatility in [ 6] prices?
[ 7 allowances? [71 A  TI've had no need o inquire because of our
[8] A  With any purchase, you have volatility and [ 8] pian stating that we were going to bank
[9 risk. [91 aliowances in phasc one for use in phase
{16} Q Is that — does that also apply to the [10]) two.
{11} fuel switch? Is there volatility and risk {111 Q  So in your emission allowance capacity, if
{12 that affects the 20 year benefits for fuel 2) you determine that you could get
(13} switching? [t3] allowances today more cheaply than what
[14f A  According to my last statement, T would [14) you project into cost in the future, would
[t5] have to say yes, that there is. [15} you consider purchasing the allowances
[16] Q  And yet, the company isn't considering [18] today?
n buying allowances in part because of that [17 MR. REGULINSKI: I'm sorry,
18] risk, but you're willing to consider doing [18] read that question back apain,
[19] the 20 year fuel switch? [19] please.
(20} MR. REGULINSKL: Objection. {20] .--
[21] That's argumentative. 2] (Record read.)
{221 MR. PERLIS: Ill strike the (2] ..
[23) question. [23] A Again, if 'm going to have a surplus bank
[241 Q  Before you said that one of the reasons [24] that per table 5 is growing through phase
[25] you don’t want to purchase allowances is [25]) one, I don’t see & need to purchase
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{1 because of the high cost of capital to the
[2] company; is that comect?
[3] A Comect.
[4] Q 1s there a sense in which capital is
[ 5] scarce at the company, and that that
[ 6] factors into your consideration?
7 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
8] relevance. I think we've had
9] testimony from Mr. Stead on this
10] very issue earlier from
11] Mr. Weissman.
12} MR. PERLIS: Mr. Hoag is the
13] Manager of Emission Allowances in
14] making those decisions.
[15] MR. REGULINSKI: Without
f16] waiving the objection, if the
17 witness can answer the question.
[18] A  Again, I will statc T do not know whether
[19] an allowance purchase would be a capital
[20) or an OM expensec at this point in time.
[21] Q  You've never had occasion to inquire as to
[22] that critical fact in your emission
23] allowance management function?
[24] MR. REGULINSKL: Objection.
[25} Objection. That's argumentative.
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[ 1] sllowances.

[2Z] Q Do you agree that prices of aliowances are
[3 somewhat volatile?

[4 A  You bave volatlity in any market. This
(5} bas experienced up and down swings in
[ 6] that.

[71 Q In percentage terms, is it any more or
[8] less than for fuel costs?

[99 A  That, I can’t tell you.

[10] Q@ Andin terms of the reliability of the

[11] forecast, de you try to track how reliable
[12] your forecasts are year to year?

[13] A T have not specifically tracked it, no,

[14] but I believe it to be close.

[15] Q  Given those unceneinties, why did the
[16] company not present sensitivity analysis
17 with respect to emission allowance prices
[18 and delivered fuel costs?

[19 A Ib regards to allowances, I think my

[20 forecast is close enough that it doesn’t

{21 need to be, and as far &s fuel costs, we
[22 are doing sensitivity when we evaiuate the
[23 different sutfur costs for using different
[24] fuel costs, but I did not do a sensitivity
[25] around each one of them, and based on my
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il experience, T didn't think it was (] back in -
[2] necessary. {2 MR. REGULINSKI: July of '95.
{3] Q In 1997, has Centerior purchased any [3] MR. PERLIS: '95, right.
[4] allowances? - [ 4] MR. REGULINSKI: I can hand
[5] A No (5] this to the —
{6] Q Have you been - did Centerior participate [6] Q T'm reading from the *96 arder because [
{71 by making a bid in the auction in 19977 [ 71 can't find my "95 one but it's the same
{8] A No 8] scven criteria.
[99 Q Did C.E.IL submit a bid in any prior [9 Criteria No. 6 is a consideration of
[10) year's auction? [10] the impagt of reduced consumption of Ohio
My A Yes. 1] cozl and the resulting impact on
{121 Q Did you do one in 19967 [z] Centerior’s customers.
[13] A I believe we bid in '96, yes, [13] Could you, please, describe for me if
[14] Q Did you receive any allowances? [14] you will, the nature of the analysis that
[1I5 A Ne. f15] you undertook to determine the
{16 ©Q  Is that because your price was below the [16) consideration of the impact of reduced
n7n market clearing price? 7 consurption of Ohio coal?
f18] A  Thar's obvious. [18] A  Okay, obviously you and I are reading it
v Q Have you ever purchased any allowances at [19} differently because [ don't read it that
[20]) the auction? [20] way.
[21] A Yes. 211 1 read it as "and the resulting
[Z2] Q Do you recall what year that was? 22 impact on Centerior customers.” 1 don't
[23] A Well, if T didn’t get any in *96, I didn't 23] separate the two or make the distinction.
[24] get any in 93, probably 94 and I'm not [241 Q T see. Just o clarify the witness's
§25] sure if T got any in the *95 one or not [25} answer, you view item No. § as principally
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[1 but that’s all docurmented through the BPA,
[2] ©Q  Would you say that the company has made a
{3] deliberate decision not to purchase

[ 4] allowances for future use?

[5) MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
{6] asked and answered. Agein, one
[T more time.

[8 A 1 think I've stated several times that

[9 we've made the decision to only purchase
ha on an as needed basis for specific

[11] situations.

{12 And other than that, with our bank
HLE)] level growing, we're not going to plan to
114] purchase.

[15] MR. PERLIS: I'd tike to take
[16] just a couple minute break, and

%17] see if [ have any other questions.
18] ---

[19} (Short recess had.)

[20] .-

{21] BY MR. PERLIS:

(2] Q T'mlooking now at the seven criteria that
[23] the Commission asked the study to address
[24} in its order of, if I remember, November
25} 12, 1996 — not that one, it’s the order
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focussed on impact on Centerior's
custoraers?

That is definitely, yes.

Okay. In what way might reduced
consumption of Ohio coal affect
Centerior's customenrs?

Well, again we're not looking so much at
the reduced consumption of Ohio coal as we
are looking at the least cost to Centerior
customers.

What methodology of the procuring
coal, maintaining compliance with the
regulations and at the least cost to our
customers.

And did you consider or undertake any
analysis of what might happen in the Ohio
coal market in conducting this study?

Agsin, we looked at it only from our
customaers’ viewpoint. We do not.

Right, and how did you reach any
conclusions that you reached about the
impact on your Centerior customers?

We reached the conclusions by again, going
back to tables 2, 3 and 4, and looking at
the 29 year levelized cost that that is
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[ 1} the least cost for our customers. [11 Q D'l start a new different way. In your
{2z Q  And does that levelized cost assume that [2] reading, did you notice that any existing
[3 there's going to be any change in the Ohio [3] Ohio coal contracts were cancelled or
[ 4 market for coal? ~Does it take the [4] terminated and replaced by the Ohio Valley
[ 5] existing Ohio coal market as a given [ Coal Company’s coal?
{6 forever? [ 6] I don't recail seeing that in any of the
{71 A As far as the Ohio coal market goes, I can [7] articles that 1 read or reviewed.
{8 only speak to what I pick up every now and 8] Q  Hypothetically, if the Ohio Valley Coal
{9 then in the different journals or 9} Company coal was replacing coal that would
[10] periodicals, 10] otherwisc have come from Chio mines, would
{111 Q TI'm not — excuse me. [ the sffect of your fuel switch then have a
121 A  Let me finish, please. [12] net affect on Ohio coal mine production?
[13] Q TI'msorry. 1 apologize. 13] A I think you're asking me to evaluate
{14 A Such that when I read those journais and 14] something that's two or three items down
5] articles, I see that Ohio Valley Coal 15] the line and away from our plan and I
[16) Company is selling coal to other Ohio 16] don't want to hazard a guess on that.
na utilities, and therefore, I don't see that 171 Q  Okay. Let's go on to item No. 5,
{18) if this particular contract with Ohia 18] uncertainties concerning Centerior's
(9] Vailey Coal is lost, that it would put 9] anticipated need and price of allowances
[20] them out of business, [20) in future years.
[21] Q  Of course, that wasn't my question. My I21] Speaking again of the study itself,
[22] question was what did you — not what [22] how specifically did the study evaluate
{23] do you see when you're reading the papers, [23] the uncertainties?
[24] but what did you do for preparing the 24) MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have
[25) report, the Supplemental Fuel Switching 251 table 57 Do you have it handy?
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[ 1} Study, to evaluate, if anything, what

[2] would happen to the Ohio coal market?
[3] A  Again, getting back to No. 6 that we read
(4 it differentiy, T address it as from the

{ standpoint of Centerior’s customers.
[6] Q  Andso other than the analysis that's set
7 forth in sort of the comparison of those

[ 8 columns in table 2, you did not analyze

[9] the potential impact on the Ohio coal

[10] market and any collateral consequences

[11] that that might have?

[121 A  Again, we didn't read No. 6 the way you're
[13) reading it, and that's not the way we

[14] approached it. So, no, I can’t give you a
[t5) response on that.

[16] Q In your reading, as you've noted that the
i17) Ohio Vailey Coal Company may have entered
{18] into certain additional sales of coal for

f19] the phase one period, are you aware of

[20) whose cosl was being displaced when the
21} Ohio Valley Coal Company catered into

{22} these contracts?

23] MR. REGULINSKI: Could you
[24] clarify that question, by whose

(251 coal is being displaced?
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[1] Or table 1 1 guess. Do you have
[2] the confidential - these are the

[ 31 non-confidential. Do you need

[ 4 to see the prices?

[ 5} THE WITNESS: No, no.

[ 6] MR. REGULINSKI: I'm sorry.
[7T A  Well, the second half of that, the price

[ 8] of the allowances is table 1. The

[9 uncertainty concerning Centerior’s

[10] anticipated need, that comes out of the
[11] production costing model, and it shows our
[12) bank growing through phase one; declining
[13] during phase two.

[14) Q  You didn't do any sensitivity analysis

[15) cancerning Centerior’s anticipated need
[16} under different assumptions for the PROMOD
171 moadel, did you?

[18] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[19] Asked and answered.

[20] MR. PERLIS: I think in the
[21] context of answering specifically

[22) whether or not he evaluated these
[23) uncertainties, in light of the

[24] wilness's previous answer, [ think
[25] a follow up is permitted. Will
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1] you instruct him to please enswer?
[2] MR. REGULINSKI: T thought we
[ 3] were concluding. Silly me. 1f

[ 4] the witness can answer the

[ 5] question.

[6 A Again, our bank balance is growing through
[7 phase one. The uncertainty as 10 need

[8 during phase one, we have our need covered
[9 for compliance purposes. '
(o) And in phase two, we are taking that
m surplus and using it for when we are not

[12] complying in phase two.

[13 Q  And do you read No. 5 as uncernainty only
[14] applying to anticipated need or also to

[ts] uncertainty about price of aliowances in

[16] future years?

171 A 1 read them rogether.

[18] Q  So would you please t2ll me how the study
[19] identifies uncertainties in emission

[20] allowance prices in future years?

[21]] A 1 developed the forecast. That forecast
[22] was used in the planning models. No, T

231 did not do sensitivities around it. 1

[24]) didn't feel it was necessary.

[25] I felt the forecast based on my
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[11 know whether the prices are out of line

[2] at all with what you had forecasted the

i3] prices to be at this time?

[4f A 1 would say those prices compared to my
[5] study forecast, the prices are high.

{6l Q And-

[7] A  Which a higher allowance price makes &
| higher sulfur coal even less attractive.

[9]1 Q Did you anticipate those higher priccs

f10] when you did your 1996 forecast?

{11] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
12] Objection.

131 ©Q  Okay. T'd just like to look at & couple
14} of the answers to Interrogatories. Number
15] 1,

16] MR. REGULINSKI: T'm placing
17] before the witness 2 set of the

18] Interrogatories which he’ll have

19] before him during these questions,
[20] & set of the Interrogatories and

21) Centerior's respense thereto.

22] BY MR. PERLIS:

23) Q Do T understand the process that you

24] followed in making your allowance forecast
25) would first be to determine the probable
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1] experience was good enough, so 1 did not
2] do any sensitivities around that.
3] Q  Andin the less than one year time since
4] you undertook that projection of emission
5] allowance prices, have emission allowance
6] prices pretty much tracked what your
7 projection was?
8] A I would say that there bas been a wmall
9] perturbation in the market that was not
[10] anticipated, but other than that, it's
[} been very close.
12 Q  And what do you think may have accounted
[13] for that small perturbation, do yotu have
[14] any idea?
15] A T would have to say from what I know of
16) the emission allowance market, it's your
17] client going out and trying to pursue
18] allowances in the November, December
19) timeframe.
[200 Q  What about the 1997 auction conducted by
[21] EPA, did that represent a pesturbation, as
[22] well?
(23] A 1 really haven't studied the auction
24} results sll that much yet.
25] Q Do you know whether the — so you don’t

PAGE 132

[1] market price for current vintage

[2] allowances?

[3] A  That's part of it, yes.

[4 ©Q  And then the next part of it would be to
[5] determine an inflation and escalation

[ 6] factor to apply to the current vintage

[N allowances for determining future years’

[ 8] allowance prices?

[9] A  That's correct.

[10] Q Is there anything else, or do you wish to
[11] expand on the way in which you conducted
[12) the aliowance forecast beyond that, or
3] does that pretty much capture it?

[14] A  No, that captures it.

[15] Q  What is the difference between the

[16] inflation factor and the escalation

f17] factor? Is there a difference?

[18)] A  The infistion factor is & corporate

[19] established number as what we see as
{20) inflation for the next years in our

21} economic models and escalation refers to
[22] what 1 feel the market is — the allawance
23] market is gaing to do with the allowances
[24] if no inflation were imposed upon it.

[25] Q  So the inflation is the purely general
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[1] economy wide inflation and the escalation {11l Q  And was that price above or below where
[2] factor is an emission allowance market in [2 you projected in the 1995 study?

[3] real dollars - [3 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
[4] A  Correct. - [4 relevance. Without waiving the

[5] Q  —factor. And what are the factors that {s objection, go ahead and answer.

(6] you congider in determining the { ol A [ can’t remember if it was above ar below,
[7] escalation, the real market increase? 71 Q  Okay. Have you considered at all whether
[8] A  Basically, my knowledge in the market, 8] new environmental regulations now being
[9) reviewing different documents that 1 have 9 proposed in Washington might sficct the
[10] in my possession such as the RDI study, 10] trend in future market prices for emission
(1] and EPRI, E-P-R-] study, along with the [11] allowances?

12} fact that in 2000, the permitted level or [12] A No, I have not.

13] the allocation level drops from 2.5 down [13 Q Do you think that the proposed emission
14) to 1.2. Taking alt that into account, 1 14 restrictions on smalt particulate matter

15} developed an escalation rate. 15] might affect eventual strategies for that
[16] I& it pretty much a constant escalation 16] type of pollution and therefore, have 2

17] rate throughout the 20 year period? [3i7] collateral affect on the demand for sulfur
18] A In my forecast, T generally tend to 18] dioxide emission allowances?

19] probably do pear term pretty close and 19] A 1f those types of proposed regulations are
20} then as T get out, I do increase in 20] nearing going into the Federal Register,
21] escalation a little bit just becausc of 21] our Environmental Department adviscs us
22] the time difference, but it's not that 22 and then we start planning appropriately.
23] large a difference. {23} So to date, no, T have not done anything
{4 Q Mmbmm. 24] with particuiates.
[25) - [25] Q  Question No. 4, if you will. Take a
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{2

[3]

[4 a

=
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(At this time, Ms. Mooncy left
the deposition.)

And in the last three ycars, has there
been any escalation at all in emission
allowance prices?

T would say yes.

So starting from the beginning of that
three year period to today, there’s been
an escalation in emission allowance
prices?

Okay, if we start at calendar 97 and go
back three years, that puts us at calendar
‘94, correct?

If my memory serves me correctly, 1
think through calendar 94, the price of
allowances dropped slowly, and then when
we hit the auction of 93, they dropped
dramatically, and then by the end of —
let me take that back, that was "96.

By the end of *96, the 96 auction,
the prices dropped drastically and then by
the end of '96, the prices were right back
up to where they were at the beginning of
96 within two or three dollars.
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minure to just read it.

Okay.

Call your attention to the last sentence
there, the second paragraph of the
response. “To the extent —" and I quote
now —~ "To the extent that uncertaintics
affect this bank projection and irs
implications for Centerior’s anticipated
need for allowances, Centerior will buy
allowances at the market price as nceded
to achieve least cost compliance.”

What strategy is this that you're
describing to buy allowances at market
prices?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
We've gone over this stuff before.
We will let this question go and
try to answer, but I remind you,
Mr. Perlis, that we've gone
through the purchasing of EA's to
some great extent, and whether or
not Centerior is going to be
purchasing EA’s or not and why
they are or are not. We've gone
through this in great detail.
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BY MR. PERLIS:

Q  Let me rephrase the question then. By
this, do you mean that you will continue
the policy that you've described carlier
in this depesition? That you'll purchase
allowances on a year by year basis as you
need them to keep your reserve level at
60,000 or whatever it is?

MR. REGULINSKI: Well, the
record will reflect what the
witness has said previously. With
that objection, we will allow the
witness to respond.

A  TIn my opinion, this reflects two things.
It reflects, yes, that we will buy to
maintain our bank level, but it also
indicates that we will buy allowances in
conjunction with fuel, whichever is the
least cost to our customers, or buy
allowances to supplement & fuel purchase
such that the ¢oal vendor doesn’t have to
supply the allowances, if he doesn't want
0.

Q  Okay. Question No. 8. You were here
carlier today when T was inquiring of

PAGE 139

(21 A

B
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was prepared?

For the terms of that contract, it is my
understanding that, yes. In other words,
when that contract expires in 1997, that
then we switch to the EVA fuel price
forecast at that point in time so, yes, up
until September of "97, of this year and
through whatever ity contract date is, we
waould use the OVCC coatract.

And what were the EVA forecasts based
upon, to the best of your knowledge?

I don't know what the EVA price forecast
was based on.

Do you know if they provided you with &
spot forecast for the fourth quarter of
‘97 and for any partion of *98?

No, 1 da not. T do not know.

Given that the company is pursuing a
strategy of purchasing oonly at the spot
market for 1998, and for the fourth
quarter of 1997, do you not think it would
be very important to know what the
forecast — whether you had forecasts of
bid prices in that period?

No, T don’t think so.
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[1] Mr. Kovach about this response and he
[2] deferred to you.
[3] "The coal price forecast —* I'm
[ 4] quoting now -- "The coal price forecast
5] used in the Supplemental Fuel Switching
6] Study was developed based upon C.E.L’s
7 long term coal supply contract prices in
8 place on the date the forecast was
[ 9] prepared.”
10] Were there any such long term coal
1 supply contract prices in place on the
12 datc that the forecast was prepared for
13] Eastiake and Ashtabula?
[14] A  The only long term contract | know that
[15] was in place gt that time is the current
[16) Ohic Valley Coal Corporation contract.
7 Was your coal price forecast based upon
[18] that contract?
[191 A  Again, it's not my coal price forecast.
[20] It comes from the Fucl Department under
[21] Mr. Kovach.
[22] Q  Was Centerior’s fuel price forecast
23] included in the Supplemental Fuel
[24] Switching Study based upon the Ohio Valley
[25] Coal contract in place when the forecast
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Why not?

Because you're talking about a spot
market, and I'm talking about a 20 year
long range plan.

So that the EVA - that the coal price
forecast in the Supplemental Fuel
Switching Study it a long term coal
forecast, looking at more long term prices
than is the spot market that you've
entered now?

I believe that's truc. :

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
that question and answer re-read,
please?

(Record read.)

Okay. Looking at the next paragraph in
your response to No. 8, T quote, "The
transportation price forecast was
developed based upon the zail rates in
place on the date the forecast was
prepared. Then the rail rates are
escalated at an annual escalation rate per
the terms of the rail agreement.” Close
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[1 quote. [1 potential allowance deal, but I have not
[2] The reference to rail rates in place [2] published anything to the company.

[3] here, does that refer exclusively to the [3] ©Q  Burt there was something published for
[ 4] rail rates for the teased engines and cars [ 4] purposes of evaluating the fourth quarter
[5] that we discussed earlicr with Mr. Kovach [ 5 bids or a document?
16} this mormning? [6] A Tdon't know if it was specifically for

7 A Ido not have knowledge of that. I do nat [7 that, or T just updated it in October as

8] know. [ 8 general purposes as to the way the market
9] Mr. Kovach said he wasn’t sure and said [9] had been maving. T can't remember which
10] that I should ask you since you prepared {10} of those two reasons why.

11} the study. [11] Q  Would that have been a 20 year forecast or
12) A I preparcd the study, but ke does the fuci [12] just for ‘977

13] price forecast. [13 A No, Whenldoit, Idoit~

14] You don’t provide any independent analysis {is) Q  For 20 ycars?

15] or review of the transportation price IS A Yes.
[16] forecast or the delivered coal price [16] Q  This may be one of the last two guestions.
7 forecast? 7] When you have evaluated high sulfur coal
(18] A  No, that's not my area of expertise and 1 [18} prices at the 6.0 level in the study, are
[19} don’t have knowledge in that area, as T [191 you relying on any coal prices being
[20] said before. {20 charged or expected 10 be charged by
[21] @  Who in the company do you think knows what [21 producers other than the Ohio Valley Coal
[22} the ransportation price forecast was [22 Company?
[23] based upon? 23] ---
[24) A Who do I think knows? It would either be [24] (Record read.)
{25] Mr. Kovach, Mr. Stead. That would be my [25] .-
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twWo guesscs.

I see. Mr. Kovach, what role, did you
play as the Emission Allowance Manager in
helping Centerior evaluate the '97 fourth
quarter bids?

Can I ask you a question? You addressed
me as Mr. Kovach.

¥'m sorry, Mr. Hoag.

Same question applies?

Yes, a different answer T hope.

I supply them with my emission allowance
price forecast and then they roll that
into their analysis.

And was that the same emission allowance
price forecagt as vtilized in the 1996
study?

Probably not.

So it was an updated forecast that you
provided?

Yes. Sometime in October, I provided it
but I don't know if it was before or after
their analysis.

Has that forecast been subsequently
updated gince October?

For my use only on evaluation of a
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[1] A  That'sayes and no answer. Again, we use
[2 the current Ohio Valley contract through
3 its termination, and then we go with a 6
4 pound sulfur coal that would be indicative
5 of Ohio cozl.
6] Q  And that's based on the EVA estimate?
7 A That's correct.
(8 Q  But you don’t know whether the EVA
9 estimate looks at other producers of Ohio
10] coal?
[t1]] A  No,Idon't.
[12] Q  When I was questioning Mr. Kovach, he
(13} mentioned that he thought there might be
[14} guidelines that the company has with
[15] respect to emission allowance banking.
[16] A  There are guidelines that were presented
[N by EVA in their anslysis they did for us
[18} in *94. I am following those but there’s
[191 no approved corporate guide for them.
[20} I mean they have not been ultimately
[21] shown to upper management for approval.
[22] Q Can you give me just a rough idea what the
[23] nature of these guidelines arc, what they
{24] guide you in?
[25] MR. REGULINSKI: Without
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[1] revealing any confidential {1] STATE OF QHIO, ) CERTIFICATE

[2 proprietary information from EVA, )

[3 please. [2] COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

[ 4 Q Righ. - [3 I, Ellen A. Hancik, a Notary Public

[5 A It lays out a couple formuias for buying [4] within and for the State aforesaid, duly

[ 6] and selling allowances; what criteria we (5] commissioned and qualified, do hereby cenify

[7 should use in evaluating those purchases [ 6] that the above-named RICHARD HOAG, was by me,
I8 or sales. [ 7] before the giving of his deposition, first

[91 Q  When you say generally, you've been trying [ 8] duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole

10 to follow those as guidelines in your {9] wuth, and nothing but the truth; that the

1 decisions to purchasc or sell emission [10] deposition as above set forth was reduced to

12 allowances — 11}  writing by me by means of stenotype, and was

13 A  Correct. 12] later transcribed into typewriting under my

14] Q I take it those guidelines are not 13]  direction; that sai¢ deposition was taken in

15] dependent on a specific emission allowance 14] all respects pursuant to the stipulations of

16} price forecast that may be in place at a 15] counsel herein contained, and was completed

17] given point in time? 16] without adjournment; that the forcgoing is the

18] A  It's been quite a white since T referred 17] deposition given at said time and place by said

[19] back to them. T wouldn’t want to hazard a 18] RICHARD HOAG; that T am not a relative or

{20 guess. 19] attorney of cither party or otherwise interested

[21] Q  You didn't evaluate how those guidelines 20] in the event of thig action.

{221 might be applied for purposes of the 21] N WITNESS WHEREOQF, T hereunto set my
[23] Supplemental Fuel Switching Study, did 22] hand and seal of office, at Cleveiand, Ohio, this
[24] you? [23] Sth day of April, A.D., 1997,
[25] A (Indicating no.} [24]

Ellen A. Hancik, RPR, Natary Public
[25] My commission expires: 2/1098
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MR. PERLIS: Okay. I don't
think T have any further
questions.

RICHARD HQAG
(Deposition concluded.
Signature not waived.)
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PAGE 3
FURLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF Onip (4 Tt
[2] FRANK R. STEAD, of lawful age,
ter avron ot ; (3] called by the Ohio Valley Coal Company,
cantersor Enargy ' 4 for the p sc of testimony in this
S anea rian surmoane | uen e MoieN-aL-ter E S% matter, b:zgo by me first duly sworn,
;:‘:l:tloﬂ 4913.05, Reviaed : [ 6] as hereinafter said as follows:
T E;} MR, WEISSMAN: Mr. Stead, by
(o T, R T T, e sl [9] way of inmoduction, my name is
nl‘on.-::h:ll.:n A nan:iz.ﬂ:oehu:-d —::f:n!on'al [10] Andy Weissman. I'm an lljtomey
mawertar ane otary UL cln e rar nstats [t1] with the lawfim of Dickstein,
6200 Oak Tras Roulaverd, Indepandance, Ohio an [121 Shaplm in w“hingtgn, D_C.
friday, the 2ist dey of ‘_ll::f. 1997 at 10:20 a.m. [13] T'm here reprelenring Ohio
14} Valiey Coal Company in connection
[15} with the present matter before the
[16] Public Utilities Commission of
17 Ohio, and what I'd like 1o do this
[18] moming is ask you what [ expect
[19] wilt be a relatively smalt number
{20] of questions pertaining to the
24} company's Environmental Compliance
[22} Plan, and the role that you may
[23] kave performed in connection with
[24) deveioping that plan, and some of
[25] the assumprions that were used in
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EXAMINATION OF FRANK R. STEAD

BY MR. WEISSMAN:

Q

orO ¥

>

With that, with that general background,
can you please state for the record what
your current position is with the company?

My current position is the Director of the
Supply Department.

And when did you assume that position?

December of 1995.

Could you describe — just describe
briefly for the record what the scope of
your responsibilitics are in that
position?

In that responsible area, I'm responsible
for the purchase of materials, and
services and fuel for Centerior Encrgy
Companies which are Cleveland Electric and
Toledo Edison.

How many individuals report directly to
you in that position?

The department consists of about 236
individuals doing suppiy chain activitics,
You know, covering entire scope of supply

Robert J. Raa & Associetss
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PAGE 13 PAGE 15
[1] determination was made as to whether to () a long term basis at cither Eastiake or
{2] engage in additional fuel switching at {2} Ashuabula, or any of the other company's
[3] cither Eastlake or Ashegbula? [3] generacing units?
{4 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as { 4] MR. REGULINSKI: Let me have
[5] to relevancy, but 'l let the [ 51 the quesrion re-read, please.
[ 6] withess answer. { 6] .-
[l A T would expect that they would be. [ {Record read.)
(8l Q Wy [ 8 -
{9 MR. REGULINSKI: Same [9] MR. REGULINSKI: General
[a] objecrion, if you can answer. [10) objecton to other units and then
[11] A I would think that the purchasing [t1] ask to clarify what you mean by
[12] individuals might have information that [12] long term basis.
[13] might be reievant to the study. [13] BY MR, WEISSMAN:
[14) Q  What sort of information might they have [14) Q@  Let me ask another question as a predicate
[15] that might be relevant? [15) to that.
[16] A  Projections of cost of fuel. 16] Mr. Stead, do you believe it’s
[171 Q  Ts that the only information that would be (t7 appropriate for the company to Ty to
(18] relevant from your perspective? [18) develop a long range plan as to what fuel
[19] A  That's the only one that comes to mind, [19] or fuels it might use at each of its
[20} yes. [20) generating units?
[211 Q  The - do you have any opinion as to what 24 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
22 long term might be the appropriate fuet {22} to each of its generating units.
[23] procurement strategy for either Eastiake {23] Go abead and answer if you like or
[24] or Ashtabuia? {24} if you can.
[25] A  Yes, Ido. [251 A 1 guess T have to give a yes and no

(1
[2
(3]
(4
5]
[ 6]

PAGE 14

Q
A

Q

o»

What is that opinion?

The one that creates the least cost for
Qur customers.

And what steps have you taken to attempt
to determine what's likely to be the least
cost long term strategy for Eastlake or
Ashuabula?

1 would have looked at the possible
sources of fuel that could be utilized for
those facilities.

When you say you would have looked at the
possible sources of fuel, could yon
explain in a little bit more detail what
steps you have taken to examine the fuels
that might be used on a long term basis at
those faciligigs?

We've discussed with the Operations
Departnent what ranges of fuel that they
could utilize at their Incilities.

Are there any other steps that you've
taken?

None that T recall.

Is there someone reporting to you who bas
principle respoansibitity for evaluating
the issue of what fuel cught ta be used on

PAGE 16
[1] answer.
[2] Q  That's fine. Could you explain what you
[3 mean?
4 A Onec aspect of your question is confusing
5} to me because I have no idea what you mean
6} by long term and therefore, I'm having
T difficulty understanding what you're
8} wanting ~ what you want me 1o respond to.
[9] One year, five years, 2 hundred years?
(10) Q  What do you think is an appropriate
[11} planning horizon as 10 evaluate fuel use
12] at & unit?
13] A There's two aspects of that. There’s two
14] different perspectives on that question
[15) becsuse it speaks o the other part of the
[16] questian that you asked me that was
71 confusing to - with respect to what
[18] you're really asking me. :
{19] On the one hand, there are long term
[20] determinations as to whether or not there
2t} are fuels available that we'll be able to
[22] support the operation at those units on
[23) a long term basis.
[24] There's alsa very short term
[25] questioning with respect o the things

Robert J. Rua & Associates
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[1] that we deal with in terms of our [11 Q What durations have you considered?
[2) procurement cycle. It tends to be a one {2] A  Tiunc periods from ane o five years.

3] to twa, three or four year cycle and what [31 Q One to five years. Have you considered
[ 4] we're doing in the immediate future, what [ 4} purchases for periods of more than five
{51 some folks mighCconsider that aiso to be {5] years?

[ 6] long term because it’s more than a one {6] A No

[ 7] year cycle. There are different ways of [77 Q  Whynot?

[ 8] looking at the question, and you get [8] A  We can't adequately predict where we're
{9 completely different answers. [9] going with our unit operarions, or what
[10] Q  That's why T asked the question [ did and [10} the market conditions will be.

[11] T'll now repeat it, What is the planning [11] Q  What are the uncertainties as to unit

[12] horizon over which you believe the company [12] aperations that cause you to limit your
[13) should evaiuate fuels to be at particuiar (13) evaluation to five years?

[14] units, and that just 10 be ciear about it, [14] MR. REGULINSKI: T'm going to
[15] it may be that you want to specify more [15} abject to this line of

(16} than onc planning horizon for different [16] questioning. As you know, the
7 purposes. 17 focus of the hearing has been on
[18} To try to cut through the fencing [18]) two piants, Eastlake and

[19) back and forth that seems to be occurring, [19} Ashtabula, and the round of

[20} T would simply like you to tell me the 20} questioning that we appear to have
[21] planaing horizon or horizons over which {21] been discussing are well beyond
{22} you believe such evaluation should be f22) those two particular plants,
[23] made? (23] MR. WEISSMAN: If it will
[24] A Well, for the purpose of complying with [24} help, I'lt be giad to restrict the
[25] the DCP requirements, the horizon is 20 [25] questions 1o Eastlake and

PAGE 18 . PAGE 20

[4 years. [1] Ashtabula.

[2) For the purpose of making decisions [2) MR. REGULINSKI: I would
[ 3] for what fuel to burn in 1998, it's ane [ 3] appreciate that. Thank you. With
f4 year. [ 4} the understanding that the

[5] Q  Okay. And are those the only two planning [ 5] question is related to Eastlake

{ 6] horizons that your group uses in [ 6} and Ashtabula, can you answer the
[T evaluating fuel procurement options for [T question?

[8] Eastlake and Asbtabula? You look at a one [8] A  1If you repeat it.

19 year horizon, you look at 8 20 year [9] Q Tl be glad to rephrase it o save a

(0] horizan, but you don't look at anything in [10) little time.

[t1] berween? 11} A Jum restate it.

[12] A  That's what we're currently looking at, [12] Q TIn looking at fuel procurement for either
[13] yes. [13] Eastlake or Ashtabula, have you considered
[14f Q  That imn't my question. Are thase the [14] the possibility of purchasing coal for

[t5] only two — [15] more than one year?

[16] A  The answesis yes. [18] A Yes, we have,

[177 Q - time periods you look at? [17] Q  And over what duration have you considered
[1B] A  The answer is yes. [18 entering into — let me rephrase that, I'm
[199 ©Q  Okay. Have you considered — has the [19 s01TY.

[20 company considered at any time since you [20} What's the longest term contract

[21] assumed your cureent responsibilities, the [21 you've considered entering into during the
[22] possibility of entering into coal [22 iast 15 months with respect to either

[23] purchases for periods of more than one [23 Eastiake or Ashtabuia?

[24] year? {24 A  Obe year

[25] A We've considered it, yes. [25] Q  So you've not considered entering into

Robert J. Rua & Associates
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contracts of any longer duration than one
year, at those t(wo planta?

T guess T would have 10 revise my angwer
to say it went from periods of one to five
years, we've looked at.

But you've not looked at periods of longer
than five years; is that correct?

Na, we have not.

Why not?

Qur experience in the last number of years
has been that long termn contraces have oot
been advantageous to the company,
Contracts that go longer than those
periods of time.

There’s also a lot of volatility in
the current market and as a result of
that, it wouldn’t be prudent to try to
enter into a term of a contract much
longer than that.

Why is volatility in the market relevant?

It affects the current offers that are
being made.

In what ways?

Teads to make them more costly.

Tends to make them more costly. Why does

A Coals that have sulfurs less than the SIP
limits now for those plants. Coals in the
one, two, three, four pound range.

Q Are you buming any coals at that plant

now with sulfur contents in excess of four

pounds?

Yes.

Is there anything in the SIP requiremenis
that would preciude you from continuing to
burn those coals at Eastlake?

There cauld be, yes.

My guestion is, is there anything in the
current SIP requirements that preclude you
from continuing to burn those coals? 1

o »

o»

MR. REGULINSKI: And he
answered that question by saying
there could be.

MR. WEISSMAN: T'd like 1o
repeat the question and ask that
he angwer it.

Q  1s there currently anything in the SIP
requirements pertaining to Eastlake that
currently preclude you from bumning those
coals?

A Which coais?

> P> 0O >0

o

volatility by itself make an offer more
costly?

Well, in the short period of time, the
last 15 months, chere's been considerable
pressure on the coal market because of
some things that have happened in the
industry that’s caused some of the coals
in the ridge in the grades that we use
them to become in somewhat short supply
and that’s put the price np.

And therefore, the bidding tends to
be higher during that kind of a timeframe,

What coals are you referring to?

Couls that we burn at our plants at
Eastlake and Ashtabula.

What coalsare you currently burning at
Bastlake?

Types of coals, yes.

‘What types of coals are you currently
burning at Eastiake?

Coals that have ranges of sulMurs, you
know, that allow us (o meet onr SIP limits
for operation at the facility.

Can you categorize those for me in any
way?

PAGE 24
11 Q  The coals with a suifur content in
2] excess —~ the coals that you are currently
3} burning with the sulfur content in excess
[ 4} of four pounds?
[5] A  Depends on the quantity. And [ stand by
6] the answer I gave you before.
Ui MR. WEISSMAN: Can we go off
8] the record?
[9] MR. REGULINSKL: Yes.
[10] .-
f11} (Discussion off the record.)
[12) ---
{13] MR. WEISSMAN: Let's go back
[14] on the record.
[15] Again, we've been off the
[16] record for an extended time period
7 and rather than asking the
(18} reporter to read back the
f19} transcript, let me just start this
[20] way.
[21] BY MR. WEISSMAN:
[22) Q Do you know, Mr. Stead, is the company
23] currently buming coal at Eastlake with a
[24]) sulfur content in excess of four pounds
[25] SO2 per million BTU?

Robert J. Rus & Associates
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PAGE 25 PAGE 27

[1] A Yes, itis. [1] continuing to burn the quantities of

[2] Q  Are you aware at least in approximate [2] roughly 6.0 pound coal that it's using at
[3] terms of the sulfur content of that coal? [3] Eastlake?

[4 A  Yes, 1 think so. [4 A  Are you asking me are there current issues
[5] Q  What's your understanding? [ 5] or are you asking me how I responded?
[6] A It's basically six pound coal. [6§ Q TI'm trying to clarify your answer. I'm

[71 Q  It's basicaily six pound coal. To your [ just rying to understand. 1 genuinely

[ 8] knowledge, is there anything in the state [ 8 don't know what the answer is.

[9 implementation plan limitation currently [9] Are there currently problems that

[0} applicable to the Bastlake plant that [10] exist at Eastlake that might prevent the
[11] would preciude Centerior Corporation from [} company from continuing to burn the same
[12] continuing to burn approximately the same [z} quantities of approximately 6.0 pound coal
[13} quantities of that coal that it's burning f13] that it's now burning?

[14] now? [14] A Not that T know oL

[15] A  No, I don't know of anything. [15] Q@  When you refer to operational difficulties
[168 Q  You're not awarc of any current limitation [16] that — T don't want to put words in your
[17] that would prevent the cornpany from 17 mouth — I'm trying to paraphrase as best
[18] continuing to use the same quantities of [18] I can what [ understood you to say just a
[19] that coal? [19) few minutes ago.

[2080 A In terms of the SIP program you [20] 1f at any point I misstate what you
[21) referenced? [21} indicated, please stop me immediately.

[22] Q Yes [22} Are there operational issues that

[23] A Yes. That's my answer, [23] might prevent the company from continuing
[24] Q  Are there other factors that would — that [24] to bum the 6.0 pound coal in the future?
[25] cusrently would prevent the company from 251 A Well, again, as | had answered the

PAGE 26 PAGE 28
[1] burning ~ continuing to bum the same {1 question before in terms of any coel that
[2] quantities of that coal? 2] might be burned in the future, there are
[3] A  Well, there always are factors. It's not 3] going to be some physical changes at the
[4] particularly that coal but any coal. 4] plant in terms of the way they operate to
[ 5] Again, our responsibility is to procure 5 meet other regulations, and that could

6] fueling at the iowest cost for our 6] require physical equipment changes which

customers and that’s the ultimate Y| could affect certain coals.

[ 3] determining factor. 8 I can't tell you which ones, but

9 Q Socostisa detenmining factor? 9] those operating conditions would be

10} A  Evalating cost, yes. 10} evaluated by the operating folks and we
1]  Q  Are there other — are there any other [11} would be informed of those.
3 factors that you are aware of that [12) Q  So there apperently may be physical

13 currently exist that would prevent the [13 changes at the plant in the future; is

14] company — that might prevent the company [14] that correct?

15] from continuing to burn the same [15] A There could be, you know, (0 meet other
[16] quantities of that coal at Bastlake? 16 compliance requirements.

171 A There are some potential technical issues 17]  Q  But the company hasn't determined yet
18 with respect to changes in aperation of 18 whether those changes will be neceasary,
19 some of the boilers, and some coals could 19 is that correct?
20 cause technical problems with operations 20] A T belicve there's a plan to make some of
21 and operations will have to advise us on 21 those changes already.
22 what those are, and what the consequences [22 Q  What changes iz the company planning to
23] of those would be. 23] make?
[24 Q  Are there problems that currently exist 24] A T believe we have a project to change our
[25] that would prevent the company from [25] burners at Eastlake 5 unit sometime in the
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next two years.

Sometime in the next rwo years?

Yeah.

Do you know when that change is planned to
occur? -

No, I don't.

Has there been any evaiunation yet of the
affect that that change wouid have on the
coals that the company can burn at
Eastlake?

I don't know.

Let's focus on Ashtabula for a second. De
you koow, is the company currently
burning - it’s probably more than a
second to be precise. Let's switch focus
to Ashtabula,

1s the company cumrently burning
coals at Ashtabula with the sulfur content
of six pounds per miliion BTU or greater?

Approximatety, ves.

Are there any current environmental
requirements that would preclude the
company — that would prevent the company
from continuing to burn that coal?

Not that I know of.
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content as that ¢oal. No, there wouldn’t
be.
Are there any other factors other than
cost that might prevent the company from
continuing to burn the same coals at

Ashtabula 57

During what period?

Any other factors that you're aware of
other than cost that at any time in the
future might prevent the company from
continuing to burn the same coals at
Ashtabula 57

I don't know what the — there may be.
There may be.

And what are those?

There may be future environmental
restrictions sometime in the future that
may change thart.

Are there any such requirements that have
becn proposed by state or Federal
officials that are currently pending? Let
me rephrase that.

Are there any proposed changes in the
environmental requirements applicablic to
Ashuabula § that are currently pending?

o>

Are there any other factors, other than
cogt that might prevent the company from
burning that coal in the future?

Yes.

What are they?

Reduced operation.

Reduced operation. And how would reduced
operation -~ let me back up a second.

When you refer to the possibility of
reduced cperation at Ashtabula, what are
you referring to?

Pm referring to the company’s plans to
stop operating some boilers at Ashuabula.
And if T focus specifically on Ashtabula
5, is the company curreatly buming coals

with a sulfug content in excess of six
point ~ of six pounds per million BTU ax
Ashtabula 57

Yes, they are.

Are there any current environmental
requirementa that would — to your
knowledge, would prevent the company from
continuing to burn the same quantities of
such coals at Ashtabula 5?

Tt would have to be the same sulfer

Not that I know of.

Is there the possibility that Ashtabula 5
will be shut down at some point?

There's a possibility of that, sure.

When might the unit be shut down?

1 don’t know.

Do you know if there's been any
evaluation, study or evsiuation or
analysis of any kind of potentially
shutting down Ashabula 5?

1 guess I'd rather not answer that
guestion. 1 don't think it's relevant to
the scope of this discussion.

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go
off the record?
MR. WEISSMAN: Certainly.

- -

(Discussicn off the record.)

(Record read.)

With respect to the ECP work that was done
and filed, there was no studies related to
that.

I'm afraid that's not my question. 1

~ Robert J. Raa & Associates
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(1 MR. WEISSMAN: Yes.

[2 ..

[3] (Discussion off the record.)

(4] -

[ 51 MR. REGULINSKI: Back on the
[ 6] record, please.

[7] BY MR. WEISSMAN:

[8 Q  Mr Stead, is it important in your

[ 9} judgment for Centerior Corporation to cut
[10] costs? '

[11] A Yes, itis.

2] Q@ why?

[13] A  Well, I'm assuming by your question that
[14] you're speaking to the issue of being

{15] competitive, and surviving in a

[16) competitive market.

n7n Q  Weil, I'm just trying to ask the questions
[18) ane step at a time, Is it important — {
[19] am just frying to — you've said it's

[20} important to cut costs.

21 T just would appreciate your

[22] describing to me why that’s important and
[23] again, I'm not trying to play any games.
[24] T just want 1o understand the basis
[25] for your answer. T don't want to put

>

o»

MR. WEISSMAN: On what basis?
MR. REGULINSKI: Go ahead and
answer the question, to the best
of your knowledge.

My previous answer was in the context of
any business.

Well, I'm asking about Cesterior
Corporation. Centerior Corposation in
particular.

Arc there any reasons why it's
important for Centerior Corporation in
particular 1o try to cut costs?

1 think I just answered that question.

No, 1 think you gave me an answer
regarding businesses geaerally. I'm not
interested in that.

T'd like to know whether there are
any factors that differentiate Centerior
from other corporations, other utilitics
in the United States, that might make it
particularly important for Centerior to
cut costs.

Well, Centerior is & high cost producer in
terms of electricity, you knaw, in the
market at least from information that we

PAGE 46

[1] words in your mouth. That's precisely why
[2 I'm simply asking what you meant and you
f3l tell me what it is that you mean and P'm

[ 4] trying to give you a fair opportunity to

5] simply explain to me directly as part of

[ 6] the record in this proceeding what you

[7 meant by what you said, and I'm sure you
[ 8] have a perfectly fine answer, 1 just

[9] don't want 10 put words in your mouth
[10} and ~

[11] A  And your question was?

[12] Q  Why is it important for the company to cut

[£3] costs?

[14] A In any company, you know, the cost of its
[t5] product determines its ability to be a

f16) viable company,

7] In our case, cost is very important.

8] You know, to allow us to have a visble
[19] product in a competitive market and we're
[20] preparing ourselves to be in 2 more

[21] competitive market.

[22] Q  1s there any question as to whether

[23] Centerior will remain o viable company if
[24] it fails 1o cut costs?

[25] MR. REGULINSKE: Objection.

have.

Is it important for a high cost producer
to cut its cosis?

If it wants to continue in business, yes.

Fine. Have there in recent years also
been constraints on the funds that are
available for capital expenditures or
other projects that might be necessary or
help improve the company’s efficiency?

MR. REGULINSK]: Objection.
That's well beyond the scope of
this proceeding.

Mr. Stead, is this a company that has
enough money to do everything that's cost
efficient for it 1o do?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
That’s well beyond the scope of
this procecding.

MR. WEISSMAN: No, we don’t
think it's irreievant at all. The
company's proposing to spend some
twenty million doliars for fael
switching at Eastlake and
Ashtabula in 1998 and "99.

It's not necessary for acid

“Robert J. Rua & Associntes
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[1] rain compliance in those ycars or [1] confine it to the period since December of
[2] for many years 10 come. [2] 95 when you assumed your current

[3] MR. REGULINSKI: That's [3] responsibiliries.

[4] relevant. Whether the study is [4 A  No, T have not been.

5] good or bad, that’s relevant. [51] Q  There has been enough funding for

[ 6] Whether the company has adeguate [ 6] everything you thought was cost effective
(1 cash to do whatever it wants to do (7 to do; is that correct?

(8 is simply not before the [ & MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[ 9] Commission at this time. {91 to the scope of the question end

o} MR. WEISSMAN: Well, we have [10] o the relevancy. Without waiving
[t1] a different position. We think [t1] the objection, the witness can

[r2] that knowing whether the company [32) answer.

n3j has adequate cash is relevant in [13) A I guess I would have to answer, I can't
[14] determining whether to undertake a [14) answer the way you ask it because T

(15) discretionary expenditure of at [15) haven't categorized the things I have

[16} least ten, fifteen, perhaps twenty [16} requested in terms of cost effective or

nn million dollars for fuel switching 17 not cost effective.

[18] that’s not necessary for immediate [18] T have not been refused of any

[19] compliance. (19] request that I've made of my management to
[20] BY MR. WEISSMAN: [20] carry out projects that were important for
[21] Q  And therefore, T would like o know, does [21] the company.

[22) the company have adequate funds at this [22] <Q In determining what funds to request,

[23} point to make all discretionary [23] have — what criteria have you used o

[24] expenditures that wounld be cost efficient? [24] determine whether to make the request?
[25) MR. REGULINSKI: And I object [25] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
PAGE 50 PAGE 52

[1 with respect to relevance and I'll i1 Can we go off the record again,

[2 ask the witness to respand to the [2] please?

[3] best of your knowledge. {3 ..

[4 Q Fine. [4 (Discussion off the record.)

[5] A Idontknow. [ 5] “--

[6] Q  Has there been any instance in which [ 6} MR. WEISSMAN: Let's go back
[7] you've been told, "Mr. Stead, we'd like to [7] on the recard. Are you going to

[8) pravide you with money to hire additionat [8 allow the witmess to answer or

(9 people or undertake a particuiar project. [9 not?

f10] We think the project makes sense, but 10] MR. REGULINSKI: Let's take &
[11] there aren’t funds availabie?” 11 ten minute break, if we can,

[12] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 12] colleet our thoughu.

13] to relevance, but I'll let the (13] MR. WEISSMAN: Certainly.
14] witness answer it to the best of (4] MR. REGULINSKI: Thank you.
15] your knowledge. 15] .--

1] A 1Ihave not been, no. 16] (Short recess had.)

17] Q  You've never been told 0o to any request 17] .-

18] you've made on the basis that the funding (18] BY MR. WEISSMAN:

19] was limited? 19] @  Mr. Stead, is Centerior Corporation

20] MR. REGULINSKE: Same 20] currently considering a broad range of
[21] objection. 21 options to cut costs?

22] A Well, with respect ta that question, T {22 A Yes, we are,

[23] have worked for this company for 31 years {231 Q  Tsait fair to say that that's becanse

[24) and [ can give you a long list of cases. [24] Centerior, its management believes that

25] Q  Let's confine — that’s fair. Lets [25] it's particularly important for Centerior
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criteria to be. As you understand it,
does the company have any flexibility or
discretion or options — let me back up,
and let me phrase it this way.

1 believe wé've esmblished
previousiy that there are no factors that
would immediately — that would compel the
company to reduce cansumptien of high
sulfur coal at ecither Eastlake or
Ashtabula 5.

T believe aiso that you have
testified that nonetheless, the compaay
may engage in additional fuel switching
based on cost considerations. Could you
explain 10 me what that means?

Whenever we make a decision to procurc
fuel for use at our pians, we do that
based on evaluated coat.

When you say evaluated cost, what do you
mean?

Evaluated cost is the total cost of
getting that fuel to the plant so it can
be burned.

Okay. Do you know — let me ask it this
way. When you say the cost of getting the

>0

the question.
(Record read.)

You've got a lot of pre-conditions on the
question, but if the lowest cost fuel when
you take into consideration all of the
evaluation parameters, the evaluated cost
as | defined evaluated cost, would
determine what foel we would purchase for
usc at that plaot.

When you say would determine —

For us, you know. When you said required,
I don’t know of anything that requires
anything. So [ guess [ don’t understand.

Well, that's essentially, Mr. Stead, what
I was trying to get at when [ asked you
ten minutes ago whether the company bas
any discretion in determining whether to
engage in additional fuel switching.

And | guess my answer to you is we have no
discretion. Whatever the evaluation says,
it says, and that's what we do.

What the numbers say, the company does,
correct?

fuel to the plant so that it can be
bumned, could you piease describe to me
what the components are of that cost?

In the context of evaluation, those are
cost of the coal iself from the supplier,
cost of any wransportation, cost of —
well, an evalustion of the sulfur content,
you know, and other technical factors, you
know, that apply to fuel such ss ash,
grindability, moisture. Those are the ~
all the factors that go — 1 think those
are all the factors that go into an
evaluated cost of getting the fuel to the
plant.

Is it your position that the company, if
it is required 1o engage in additional
fuel switching st Eastiake and/or
Ashtabula §, if adding together the
delivered cost of the coal itself, and the
projected cost of 502 allowances to offset
the emissions associated with that coal,
fuel switching appears to be cheaper?

MR. REGULINSKL: Can we have

that question re-read, please?
MR. WEISSMAN: Tl rephrase

o¥»r O > o
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That's correct.

And those numbers are based in part on &
projected value for allowances, correct?

No.

No. What arc they based on then?

When 1 do an evaluation for procurement, 1
use the actual bids that are presented to
me. There's no projections involved in
that.

$0 in determining what coal to burn at
Eastiske 4 and 5, for example, what have
you done to get actual bids for SO2
allowances?

I don't kaow. I don't believe we've done
anything,

I'm sorry, you said "1 don't believe we've
dope anything?"

I don’t think we have.

Then, [ guess I'm stiil a little bit !
confused. Let me ask though first, who
makes the decision as 1o what coal to burn
at Eastlake 4 and 5?

Well, there are a oumber of people
involved on making that decision.

Is there —
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{1 5, or Ashtabula 57 [1] was ever made as to whether to engage in
[2) A I guess I'm confused by your question in [2] addirional fuel switching at Eastlake or

[ 3] terms of the previous answers I've already [3] Ashtabula 5?7

[ 4] given. We cvaluate proposals and make [4] A The study that was completed showed that
[ 51 decisions based on least cast. [ 5] there was a particular fuel source or type
[6§ Q  One way to put it, Mr. Stead, and I'm [ 6] rather, that would be optimum from a cost
[n trying to understand who the "we” is, what [N standpoint for the period of the study.

[8] the process is, and to try to limit the [8] Q T'm not oying to be difficult. What 1

[9] objections, I'm just trying to ask it one [9] don't understand is that, is there any

[10} step at & time. [10} individual or committee within the company
[11] T'll be glad to start at the other 1} thet made a specific decision as 10 -

2] end of the spectrum and rather than asking [12] that looked at the results of the study

[13] it one piece at a time, could you describe [13] and made a specific decision up or down as
[14] for me in terms of the individuals [14] to whether based on the study, or in

[15] involved, what the process is and will be [1s] whatever other information might be

[16] internally for deciding whether to switch [16] relevant, there should or shouldn’t be

nn fuels at Eastlake 4 and 5 or Ashtabuls 57 [nn additional fuel switching?

[18] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. [18] Mr. Hoag, as T eatlier stated was

[19] Relevancy, breadth, scope. You're [19] responsible for that study.

[20] overbroad. It's completely f20] So you assume Mr. Hoag made a decision one
[21} irrelevant to process and the [21] way or the other as to whether additional
[22] peopie. [22] fuel switching was appropriate?

[23] With that objection, T'll see [23] A  The results of the study indicated that.
[24] if the withess can anawer. Can [24] Q  That additional fuel switching should be
[25] you answer the question, [25] done?

PAGE 74 PAGE 76

[1] . Mr. Stead? [1] A  That's what the results of the study say,
[2] A 1don't believe I know at this time. [2] yes.

[3] Q Do you know whether any process has been [3] Q 1 assume, therefore, that the Fuel

f4 established? [4] Procurement Group has attempted to

[5] A  1don't think I know that answer to that. [5 implement Mr. Hoag's decision in that

[6] Q Do you know whether prior to ~ [ 6] regard; is that correct?

(7 MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go [l A  We are implementing the results of the

[ 8] off the record just a minute, 18] study, yes.

[ 9 please? {91 Q Are you attempting to switch fuels at this
[10] .- {10] point?

f11] (Discussion off the record.) [11} A We just did that in our most recent

[12] .- (12} bidding operation, yes.

[13] Q  Mr. Stead, prior to submitting - [133 Q I'm sorry, when you say we just did that,
[14] Mr. Stead, to the best of your knowiedge, (14} could you explain to me what you mean by
[15] prior to submitting its October 1st, 96 [15] that statement?
[18] Environmentai Compliance Plan Review, did 16§ A Yes, when we went out for our fourth
nn the company attempt to engage in any 17] quarter bidding for fuel for those plants,
{18] specific process to determine whether to 18 we asked for a range of fuel supplies that .
{19} engage in additional fuel switching at 19 were, you know, that were addressed in
{20] Eastlake 4 and 5 or Ashtabuls 5? [20] that study, and we did the evaluation
2] A 1t conducted a study to determine if it [21] according to the stipulation which we have
[22] should do that or not, 22] cntered into, and we made an award to the
[33] Q  Who panicipated in that study? 23 ieast cost provider of fuel.
[24} A Other than Mr, Hoag, T don't know. 24 Q Was there just one bidder selected?
[25] Q Do you know whether a specific decision 25] A 1 think there were a number of bidders
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that were sclected to meet the total
requirements of the company.

I'm trying to focus now just on Eastlake 4
and 5, and Ashtabula 5. For Eastlake 4
and 5, was there more than one source of
coal selected?

No, I believe there's only one.

And do you know at least in general terms,
what the sulfur content of that coal is?

Yes, in general terms | know.

What was it?

Greater than six pound.

Greater than six pounds, So that for the
fourth quarter, I guess, Mr. Stead, it's
really a very simple question. I'm just
trying to understand, T really am.

Who makes the final decision — who
made the final decision in the fourth
quarter as 10 what coals the company would
or wouldn't procuse for Eastiake 4 and 57

I make that decision.

You made that decision. That's fine. And
in making that decision, prior to making
that decision, or as part of the
evaluation procesi, did you elicit bids

And do T understand correctly that you
will do that solety and sirictly based
upon the evaluared cost methodology
currently being used by the company?

That’s correct, and compliance with the
STP requirements of that plan.

And do I also understand correctly tha:
you believe that you arc required to —
rephrase that.

Do I also understand correctly that
assuming that the coals being considered
are suitable for compliance with the SIP,
the S-I-P, and are otherwise technically
acceptable, do T understand correctly that
you belicve that in every instance, the
decision as to which coals to purchase
should be made by applying the company’s
evaluated cost methodology?

Yes, thar's what we've agreed to in 8
stipulation and we'll do that.

And am T also correc: that in applying
that methodaiogy — I'll rephrase it more
neutraily.

Do you intend in the future to
continue to rely on whatever SC2 allowance

PAGE 78
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for $O2 allowances?

Not to my knowledge.

Then what information did you use in order
to evaluate the cost associnted with the
difference in sulfur content between
different coals?

We were provided information as to what
values to use.

By?

By Mr. Hoag.

By Mr. Hoag. Do you know whether that
information was based upon an effort to
obtain actual bids?

I don't know that, no.

Do you expect that in determining which
coals to uxeat Eastlake in 1998, that you
will also make the final decision?

With respect to specific contract awards,
that’s correct.

Will you make the final decision as to
whether to fuel switch — to engage in
additional fuel switching at Eastlake 4
and 5?7

1 will make the decision with respect 1o
what contracts to award.

projections Mr. Hosg might supply to you
in applying that methodology?

That's our practice, yes.

You don't have any present plans to change
that practice, do you?

No, we do not.

Okay. And am I correct aiso that in the
end, that what you'll do is that you will
add together the cost, again we're talking
about coals that are acceptable, given the
SIP fimitation and other technical
factors, that in the end, that what you
expect will happen is that you will make a
decision as to which coals to use by
adding together the delivered cost for
each coal, and the values that Mr. Hoag
supplies to you regarding the projected
price of atlowances?

And the other factors that ere included in
the evalugtion that I told you about
before.

All those factors, so that all the
coals are considered on an equal and fair
basis, and the decision will be made based

oo least cost to our customers,
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[1} Q  When you refer to other factors, am [ [1] correct?
[2} correct that you're referring principalty [2) A In terms of which award 1o issue, that's
[3) to further cost adjustments that are made [ 3] correct.
[ 4] to reflect differenses in ash content, and [4 @ Wil you take into account in any way the
5] other constituents of the coal? [ 5] year in which the — in determining, will
[ 6] A Yes, ash, BTU, grindability, whatever. {9] you take into account in any way the year
(7 All those factors are, so that's it's done (7 in which the company is projected to need
[8] on a fair basis. [ 8] additional allowances to covef its
[9] So that the decision becames fairly [9 aggrcgate system wide SO2 emissions?
[10) mechanical in nature then? [10] MR. REGULINSKI: May I have
[11] A Well, it's straight forwaed in namre, 1 [1%) that question, please?
[12] guess 1 would say, yes. [12} ---
[13] Q  Mr. Stead, and therefore, that you believe [13] (Record resd.)
[14} therefore, a3 the decision-maker in f14] -
[153 determining which coals to select, you [15] A  Again, answering the questions that you're
fie} believe that you are obligated to pick — [16] asking me in the context of a decision for
nn to select the coal that has the lowest nn 1998, no. At least [ don't know of any
[18] cost under your evaluation methodology, [18] pians to do that.
[19] irmespective of what the company's needs [191 Q@ 1 assume -
{20} may of may not be for SO2 allowances? (200 A T have no pians to do that.
f21] MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have 2] Q@ TI'msorry?
[22] that question re-read to us, [221 A T have no plans to do that.
[23] please? [23] Q  Would you expect to make the decision —
[24] e [24] as of this point in time, you expect to
[25] (Record read.) [25] make the decision regarding 1999, 1
PAGE 82 PAGE 8+
1] “-a [11 assume. Would your answer differ in any
2] A T belicve that's commect, yes. [2) respect for 19997
3] Q In making your decision as to what coals 3} Well, [ don’t know what basis we might use
[+ to select for 1998, do you intend to take [ 4 in the future, but T can speak to 1998.
[ 5] into account in any way the size of the 15] Mm-hmm. But you really don't know what
6 company’s allowance bank? [6] the criteria would be for 1999 at this
T A 1 don't believe 30, [7 point?
8| Q Do you intend to take into account in any 8] It may change, 1 don't know. T just don’t
9] way potential uncertainties regarding the [9] know.
10] potential furure value of SO2 allowsnces? [10] Q Do you have any reason to expect that it
11 A In terms of the evaiuation of the bids, if [113 would change?
[12] that's the question you're asking me, I [12] A  Well, the world changes as time goes on,
13 believe that’s still the context you're [%3) and one of tke things that T've ieamed in
[14 asking this question? [14] this job so far is that, you know, you
[15 Q Yes, itis. [15] need to be very flexible in terms of
[16] A No,!Idon'r : [16] recognizing that the world does change,
171 Q  And just to be preciac, really what I'm [17 and that you need to use different
[18 looking for, in addition 10 evaimate the [18) evaluation techniques in the future.
[19 bids, I'm referring specificaily to the [19] Q Does the fact that the worid changes in
[20 decision as o which bid to accept. [20} general mean that shorter term commitments
21 As [ understand it, you will make the [21] are better than longer term commitments?
[22] decision as to which bid to accept, and in [22] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[23 doing so, you will not take into sccount [23} to the relevance of the question.
[24] any uncenainties regarding the potential [24] Notwithstanding the relevance of
[25] future value of allowances; is that 251 whether a short term commitment or
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long term commitment is relevant
to the scope of this proceeding,

T will ask the witness if he can
answer the question, to answer it.

In terms of my belief today, short term
commitments are justified rather than long
term commimments. However, that could
change.

Could you explain briefly why you think
that's true?

MR. REGULINSKI: Same
objection. If you can answer.

It's my belief that it's to the company’s
economic advantage, you know, to use
shorter term contracting at this time.

Why is that the case?

MR, REGULINSKI: Same
objection.

We have demonstrated over the ast year,
that we are able to have a significant
impact on our cost of fuel and vltimately
cast to the customer by focussing more on
short term contracting.

That preference for short term practicing
is pretty common in — the short term

commitments?

T don’t know.

Have you thought about that issue art all?

No, I don’t buy SO2 allowances so | don't
know.

As far as you're concerned, you don’t make
any decisions that involve the purchase of
$02 allowances?

I don’t know.

Would you feel qualified to make that
decision, do you feel?

No, [ would not.

Why not?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objecrion.
Objection. Andy, come on. Come
on. This is a professional job
here. He said he was not
qualified. He doesn’t make that
decision. Leave it at that.

MR. WEISSMAN: I want to
ask —

MR. REGULINSKI: You don't
need to dig into why he's not
qualified, He's not qualified and
he said he wasn’t. Andy, leave it

purchases is pretty common in the utility
industry these days, in't it?

Yes, I think it is.

That in general, that many utilities have
concluded that in buying coal, it's better
to make commitments on & short term basis
and avoid longer term commitments; is that
correct?

Because of very bad experience of the long
term cODITacts, yes, in the recent past.

That sometimes long term purchase
commitments that koked like they were
good at the time rurned out to be not very
good decisions.

That's correct. Particulazly the Okio
Valley contfict.

And can you expiain to me what's different
between - what, if anything, is different
between 502 allowances and coal in terms
of the desirability of making - maybe T
shouldn’t even amsume it.

If you were deciding whether to buy
SO2 allowances, would you expect that it
wouid also be true that it's better to
make short term commitments than long term

PAGE 88
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at that,

BY MR. WEISSMAN:
Q  Mr. Stead, just to be clear, I'm not in

any way - [ have respect for you and I'm
not trying to in any way impune your
personal qualifications or credentials in
any way.

What 1 was really intending 1o ask
was just to explore essentially what kinda
of information or knowledge you feel you
would need in order to properly — in
order to be properly qualified to make
decizions as to whether to purchase SO2
allowances.

As in purchasing any item, you'd need to
know something about the market, its
availability, price ranges. Lot of
different things. You just need to know
something about that basic item.

I don't buy that item, not invoived
in buying it. [ haven't studied the
market or its motivadons.

Are you — to the best of your knowledge,
is there any — has the company made any
decision as 1o whether it's appropriate to

re—
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PAGE 89 PAGE 9N
[1] purchase allowances on a long term basis? (1 evaluation the SO2 adjustment was a
[2] A I don't know. [ 2} significant factor, are there
[31 Q  Are you aware of any effort to evaluate [ 3] circumstances — I'm sorry, let me oy
[ 4] whether it's apptopriate to make long term [ 4] that over, I'm trying to find a2 way to
[s) purchase commitments with respect to [ 5] frame that so we’ll get around some of the
[ 6l allowances? [ 6] problems we had in the morning.
[T A 1Idont know. [N In your judgment, once you know that
[ 8] MR. WEISSMAN: I think this (8] using the evaluated cost methodoiogy, Coal
[9] might be a good time to break for [9] A is cheaper than Coal B, are there any
10] lunch. o] other factors that are relevant?
11} MR. REGULINSKI: Before we [t1] A  No.
12} do, do you think you have maze for 2 Q S0 it wouidn't matter from vour
13] Mr. Stead? N3] standpoint, for exampie, if for Coal A,
14] MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. [14) you had to pay fifteen million dollars
15) MR. REGULINSKI: Can you teil 15} mare for the coal itself over a two year
16] me how much ionger you think — [16] period 23 compared to Coal B, that if
17} ... [t under the ¢cost evaluation methodology,
18] (Lunchcon recess had.) [18} after the adjustments for SO2, Coal A was
19} R [19] still cheaper, that would be irrelevant
[20] MR. WEISSMAN: Back on the [20 from your standpoint?
[21] record. {211 A But you wouldn’t be paying more if the
[22] BY MR. WEISSMAN: [22) towest cost — evaluated cost would be the
[23] Q  Mr. Stead, just to complete some line of [23) lowest cost.
[24] questioning that we were discussing [24)] Q  That's your understanding of the effect of
{25] carfier, let me just focus initially on [25] your evaiuated cost methodology; is that
PAGE 9% PAGE 92
[1] the decision-making process that yon just [1] correct?
[2] completed in determining which affers to 2] A That's how we make our decision, ycs.
[3) accept for coal for the last quarter of 3] Q Okay. So thatif you pick Coal A, it
[4 1997 at Eastlake and Ashtabuls. 4] means you're paying less for Coal A than
[5] Did you, before determining which 5] Coal B?
[9] coal to - which offers to sccept, did you 6 A No.
[7 attempt to caiculate the out of pocket 71 Q TI'msony?
[ 8] cxpenditure, the actual cash payments that 8 A  No, it's the evaluated cost. Tt's not
(9 the company would have to make during the [ 9] what you're paying for the coal. What
{10] iast quarter of 97 comparing different (10} you're paying for the coal is completely
11] alternatives? fu separate, you know.
12] A Ne. [z 1 mean you — just let me explain
13] Q  Would that have been relevant to you [13 again to you what the evaluation process
4 at all? [14) is then since you obviously don't
[15] A  Don't know. [15) understand.
(16f Q Okay. Are-the ciccumstances in which [16f @ No, I think 1 do understand it and I'm
17 you — it's conceivable that you might 7] just struggling for a way to frame the
18] conclude ~ let me withdraw that, (18] question that Mr. Regulingki will find
19} If, for example, you concluded that [19 satisfactory.
20] Coal A was cheaper than Coal B using your [20] If you were faced with the situation
21] evaluated cost methodology, but Cosl A was 21) in which on an cvaluated cost basis, the
22] a reiatively low sulfur coal, as to which [22} difference between two coals was very
23] the adjustrnent for SO2 was relatively [23] small, but on a ~ but that the cost for
[24] modest, and Caal B the more — was a [24] the coal itseif, the purchase price for
[25} higher sulfur coal, wherein making your [25] the coal and the transponation of the




coal to the plant was very different
between the two coals, would that factor
be relevant in your decision?

it bas not been, no, s0 no, it wouldn't
be.

It wouldn't be relevant?

No.

So if Coal A were a fraction of & penny
per niillion BTU cheaper than Coal B on an
evaluated cost basig, but the cost to
procure coal for Coat A was several
million dollars greater than the cost to
procure the coal for Coal B, that would
not be a factar?

Anm [ correct in understanding that
that wouid not be a factor that you would
take into account that you would select
Coal A?

Our responsibility is to look at total
evaluated cost and we would go with the —
with all other factors being equal, we
wouid go with the lowest evaluated cost.

Well, I'm wrying to understand to what
extent you look at other factors.

Well, I was talking about technical

o>

o>

o

MR, REGULINSK!: Objection,
reicvance, I'll iet the witness
answer.

I don't believe so.

Do you have any contracrual obligation
which, all other things being equal, would
require you to sélect - to purchase
additional coal from Ohic Valley Coal if
the price for such coal on an evaluated
cost basis were identical to the price for
other alternatives?

MR. REGULINSKI: Same
objection. I'il let the withess
answer,

T guess | don't know the answer to that.

In comparing a high sulfur coai and a
medium sulfur coal, would you take into
account in any way whether the company
planned to hoid the additional aliowances
that might be preserved by using medium
sulfur coal, or to try to sell those
allowances in the allowance market?

That's not a consideration in our
evaluation.

Would the existence or absent — absence

o» 0O »0
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factors, I'm sorry. There's no - 1 think
what you're trying to talk sboust is cash
flow differences.

Right.

We do not consider any cash flow
differences.

And would you not intend to consider any
cash flow differences in the future?

Have no plans to do that, no.

You have oo plans to. Would you consider
in any way poteatial impacts on the local
coal industry in Ohio?

For what?

In determining which coals 1o seleet.

No, no. It's not a factor in our
evaluatior—

That's compietely irrelevant for purposes
of your evaluation, correct?

That's correct.

Okay. Are there any special contract
obligations that you have to Obio Valley
Coal that subsequent to October 1s1, 1997,
wouid affect in any way your choice
berween coal offered by Ohio Valley Coal
and any other vendor?

>0

of an immediate demand for allowances be
relevant in any way in your anaiysis?

1 don’t know what you mean by an immediate
demand. By what? By what?

If you had two aiternatives that were very
close to one another, and one involved a
lower or medium sulfur coal, and the other
involved a high sulfur coal, would you
need — in selecting between those two
coals, would you need to know anything
at all about whether there was — there
were buyers to whom the company might be
immediately able to sell the allowances
preserved by using medium sulfur coal?

That's not a consideration in our
evaluation.

So if, in fact, there were no market for
allowances at the time - there was — 0o
one was interested in buying, that wounld
be irrelevant in making the determination?

Yes, that’s correct, or whether there was
8 market and someone wanted to buy them.
Either case is irrclevant.

Either way, it's irrelevant?

Yes.

Robert J. Rus & Associates
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Am 1 correct that you also wouldn't need
to know one way or another what the

company nceds might be planning to do with

the allowances preserved by using medium
sulfur coal, that ~

Nor the allowances consumed by using high
sulfur coal.

You wouldn’t care whether the company’s
plan was to hold the allowances for use at
a distant date, or to selt them
immediately in the market; that wouldn't
affect your analysis?

No.

Okay.

We evaluate, you know, EA’s in the
evaluation,

Do you try to take into account volatility
in the allowance market in anyway in
making your decigion?

I don't.

To your knowledge, does anyone in the
company?

They may. But I don't kaow if they do or
not.

Do you think it’s appropriate to take into

b F el

significant differences in the price paid
for delivery and for purchase and delivery
of the coal itself, do you intend to take
inta account at all the company’s
potential need for cash for other uses?
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
relevance. T let the wimess
answer if he can.

It's not part of our evaluarion criteria

right now. 1 have no opinion on that.
It's not something we da.

So at least in the last quarter of 1997,
you didn't take into account differences
in the - you didn't take into account
at all differences in the cash — in the
cost for the purchase and delivery of the
coal itself in evaluating otherwise
comparable alternatives; is that correct?

If you mean the cash flow --

Right.

And you've sid it in kind of a convoluted
way. If you mean that, then the answer is
no, we did not consider that,

T agree that was a convoluted way in
asking the question. [ just want to be

o>

o>

account the allowance price volatility in
choosing between two alternatives that are
atherwise fairly comparable uging the
evaiuated cost methodology?

We do not use that at this time.

Fair enough. T think that answers my
question. Let me ask a slightly different
question.

Given your experience in procurement
matters, including your experience in coal
procirement in your earlier comments
regarding volatility, in choosing between
alternative A that involves medium sulfur
coal and alternative B that involves high
sulfur coal, is it your judgment that
potential voatility in allowance prices
should be given some weight in choosing
berween the twa alternatives?

I don’t know.

In choosing between alternative A and
alternative B, in the last quarter of
1997 = I'm sorry, let me rephrase that,

In choosing between aiternatives that
may be otherwise comparable on an
eveivated cost basis, but involve
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A

absolutely clear, that both in terms of
what you did in the last quarter of 1997
and what you currently plan to do in
1998 ~

Yes, that's correct.

That if two coals are otherwise
comparable, using the evahuated — are
reasonably comparable using your evaluated
cost methodology, your intention would be
to purchase the coal that is the least
expensive, using that methodalogy
irrespective of the differences or
potential differences in the cash flow
required to pay for the purchase and
delivery of the coal itself?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
We've asked and answered that
question.

MR. WEISSMAN: Will you allow
him to answer?

MR. REGULINSKI: One more
time.

Yeah, again, that's not part of cur
evaluation consideration,

25] Q  Okay. So that in the last guarter of 97,

Robert J. Rus & Associates
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[1] you have no idea whether there were — let [1] that's not yet been covered or has a

[2 me back up a livtle bit, 2] portion of that alrecady been covered?

[3] In 98, in selecting coals for *98 at 3 A T guess [ can’t answer your question

[4) Eastlake an Ashtabuia 5, you'll give oo 4 because T don't understand why you're not
[ 5] weight whatsoever to whether there are 5 concerned about the other part of the

[ 6] other uses for cash that all other things {6 Eastlake plant.

[7] being equai, might favor purchase of high 7] Q  Well, I was just trying to save time.

{8 suifur coal; is that correct? 8 A But that does affect the answer. I gucss
9 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 9 the answer is I don't know the answer
[10} And perhaps we can get around it (o} to your questicn. [ spologize.

114 if you could define for me what [11]] Q To your knowledge ~

[12] you mean by other neceds or uses of [12] A 1 don't know the answer.

[13] cash. 13] Q  Just to try to shorwut a lirtle bit, am I
[14] Q  Let me ask it this way: Before you make a 14] correct that the company has previously
151 decision in selecting among two otherwise 15] made commitments (o cover a substantial
[é} comparable coals for use in 98 at [16] portion of its requircracnts at Eastlake 4
[17] Eastlake or Ashtabula 5 - [17] and 5 for 19987

[18} MR. REGULINSKI: May I just [18] A  We have some contracts to cover some
[19] ask, this is as a result of 3 coal [19] portion of that. T don't know if it's

[20) bid solicitation and these are [20] substantial or not, and 1 don’t look at it
[21] responsca (o bids? Is that the [21] as just 4 and S alonc. Again, you're

[22] context of this question? [22] asking a question [ just don't know the
[23] MR. WEISSMAN: Yes, and [23] answer to, I'm sorry.

{24 basicaily, let me back up a little [24] Q  Tt's hard w look at coal procurcment —
[25) bit then just to be sure we're [25] coal procurernent decisions with just two
PAGE 102 PAGE 104

[1] making the same assumptions here. {1 units at Easttake. You really have to

[2] BY MR, WEISSMAN: [2] look at the whole plant?

{3] Q  Before selecting coals for use in '98 at [3] A I juscan't do that, I'm sorry.

[ 4] Eastlake and Ashtabula 5, do you intend to 4 Q  Other than evaluated coy and compliance
[ 3] elicit bids? L] suitability for compliance with

[6] A TI'msorry, I'm lost now. Could you 6] environmental requirements, and other
[7 switch - could you ask that question — 7 technical factors, are there any other

[8] Q  Mr. Regulinski was just pointing out that 8] considerations of any kind that you intend
[9] T was making certain assumptions in my 9 to take into account in choosing among
[10} question, 30 I'm trying to step back 3 10] offers to provide coal 1o Bastlake or

[11] coupie paces and just ask a very straight [11] Ashtabula 5 in 19987

[12) forward question to make sure we're making 12) A 1don't know of any now. [ have no plans
(13} the same assumptions. 13] for any.

[14] Namely, T amyume you've not 14] Q Do you intend to consult with Mr. Hoag
[15] selected — let me make another 15) before selecting among those offers?

[16} assumptiom™ Take one more step back. [16] A T have no plans to do that.

7] Have you selected - have you [171 Q  Allright. Is there anyone within the
18] purchased all of the fuel required for (18] company who you expect to consult with
9] Eastlake 4 and 5 and Ashaabuia 5 in 19987 193 before selecting among such offers?

[200 A 1 don't believe s0. [200 A  Yes.

211 Q  Have you covered — let me phrase it this [21] Q Could you piease identify the individuals
[22} way. As between the units I've just — {221 you plan to consult with?

[23] all of the units I've just referenced [23}] A  Wike Kovach and the fuel purchasing staff,
[24] combyined, is there sall at least 1.2 [24] Q  Anyone else?

[25] million tons of expected requirement [25] A  There are several people that work for

Robert J. Rua & Associates



. Robert J. Rua & Associates .

PAGE 105 PAGE 107

[t] Mike; depends on who he would assign 10 do [1) Q  Prior to that time, do you intend to ask

[2] the evaluation. 1 don’t know who that [2] anyone eise in the company to evaluate or
[3] would be at this time. [ 3} re-evaluate the company's curtent policy

[4f Q  What information do you expect to request [ 4] regarding banking of allowances?

[ 5] that they provide you before you make your [ 5] A T have no plans 1o do that.

{ 6] decision? [6] Q Al right. Is there & current policy

{71 A  They would provide me the evaluation of [N regarding banking of allowances?

{8] the bids. [8 A T believe there is.

{9] Q By that, you mean the evaluation using the [9] @ Do you know what it is?

[10] evaluated cost methodology? 0] A No

[11] A Yes. [11]] Q  Is it fair to assume yon didn't take —

[12] Q Do you plan to seek any other information [12] haven't taken it into account in the coal

[13] from anyone within the company before 13 procurement decisions you've made to date?
[14] making the decision? [14) A That's correct.

15) MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. {155 Q Do you — and do you have any present plan
[16) We've gone through this. You're [16] to take it into account in your decisions

i1m asking the same questions now. [17] in '98?

{18) These are redundant. They've been [181] A  No plans to change what we've been doing,
9 asked and answered. [19] neo.

f20} T will let him answer this [2000 Q@ Do you personaily have any judgment as 1o
[21] but we've gone through this three [21] whether the size of the company’s

[22] times now. We really have. I [22] allowance bank is appropriate?

[23] object. It's been asked and it's {23 A  No, I have no opinion on that.

[24) been angwered. Tl let him try [24] Q Do you know of any plans by anyone else in
25 to answer it again, but I won't [25] the company to further evaluate the
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[1] let him go again, One more time? ] company's policy with regard to banking
[2] A I guess would like to add T would also [2] allowances between now and the end of the
[3] congult with legal. We alwaya consult [3] year?

[4] with legal on our contracts. [4 A No,Idonon

[5] Q  Would you make any effort to obtain [5] Q  Mr. Stead, are you — in recent years, has

[ 6] information about other needs for cash [ 6] demand for Ohio coal been diminishing?
[7 that may exist within the organization? {n MR. REGULINSKIL: Objection,
[ 8] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. [8] relevance. I'll let the witness

[9] Asked and angwered. Don't [ 91 answer the question,

[ respond. 0] A T1dont know.

{11 Q 1 take it from that that the answer is no? {11] Q  So you have no idea whether there's been a
12} MR. REGULINSKI: No. Ny shrinking of demand?

{13) Objection. Asked and answered. [13] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
{14] Do not respond. Go off the 14] Asked and answered.

{15] record, please. 15] A No, I doo't.

{16] .- 16 Q  Is there any reason that that might be of
nn (Discussion off the recard.) 17] concern to the company?

(18] --- 18 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
{19 Q  Mr. Stead, to your knowledge, let me ask [19 Relevance. T let the witness

{20] you this. Mr. Stead, when do you expect 20 attempt to answer the question.

2 to make a decision about what coals you 21 A I guess I dont know.

[22] will select to fill any currently unmet ps] Q  Mr. Stead, prior to making your decision
[23] requirements at Eastinke or Ashtabula 5 [23 regarding coals to select for use at

[24] for 19987 [24} Eastlake and Ashiabula 5 in the fourth

[25] A Sometime between now and the end of '97. (25} quarter of '97, did you read any of the
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[1] for purpase of the 20 year study, is 10 [1] the forecast.
[2] look — is to do a forecast over a very [2] Q TI'm also confused about one thing that's
[3] long period of rime and come up with a [3] really confusing to me, and that's the
[4] basic game plan in terms of what looks to [4] idea that you don't congider the
{5] be in the best interest of the customer [5] allowances that are needed to bumn the
[ 6] but at the same time, as we had said at [ 6] high suifur coal when you evaluate the
1 the time of that initial study that was [7 bids that you receive. That's 30
[ 8] first discussed in the first hearing, you [8 confusing to me.
[9 know, the decisions that arc made on a [9] 1 don't understand how you could
(10} year by year basis or on an award by award 10 purchase six pound coal, six pound sulfur
[ basis n¢eds to be based on the acruat [11 coal in phase one without considering the
2 conditions in the coal market, EA market N2 allowances needed to burn the coal,
N3] and all those factors that I've talked 13} whether you've got them banked or whether
[14] about over the last several hours, that [14] the coal supplier is going to supply them
{15] are present at the time because that's [15] to you.
[16] reality. [16] And T don’t understand how you can
A The study is a study and it's only a [17] say, 50 1 must be missing something so let
{18] forecast. What's reaiity is what you [18] me try asking it this way.
N9) actuatly have in your hand at the time [19] How would you justify oot considering
{20) you're going to make a decision that you [20} the allowances that are burned up by the
[21] make an award, and you certainly don't [21] use of the six pound sulfur coal?
[22] want to do something that's going to [2] A  Okay. We do consider those and I
{23] penalize the customer because there’s some [23] apologize. [ must have not been clear in
[24] proliferation in the coal market at the [24] my previous discussion, but there is &
[25) time you're going to make your decision to [2s} full consideration of the cost of

PAGE 122

make an award.

And that's what we evaluated as far
as the every six month fuel adjustment,
what was the actual decisions that were
made relative to what could have been made
and were we doing the best for the
customer during that time period? Still
meeting ail the environmental reg ismes
that have to be met and all those other
things.

So the least cost plan with the 20 year
horizon that's embodied in the study that
says that lower sulfur coal would be
burned st Ashtabula and Basmlske, would be
averridden say, on a year to year basis
based on the cvaluated cost of the coal;
is that correct?

Yes, that's correct. [ wouldn't use the
word overridden, though. You've got (o
make the proper economic decision under
the regulations, and award contracts based
on evaluated cost.

Sometimes thase may be different than
what the long term plan says they could
have been. Again, the lang term pian is
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allowances when we do that evaluation that
I've talked about in my previous
discussions. It includes a full

consideration of the cost of those
allowances.

You know, what's not considered is
whether we have to go buy new ones or use
ones we have, okay, but we do consider the
full cost or full value, whichever way you
want to look at it, of those allowances
and make a direct comparison of those
costs against low sulfur coals which would
not require the same amount of EA's, you
know, to allow them to be bumed.

Okay. So what you don't consider is the
source of the allowance, but you do
congider the value of allowances?

Absolutely, that's correct.

And T also believe you said that you )
weren't aware of ~ didn't consider the
bank of allowances that you have going in
when you make a fuel procurement decision.
That you're not considering how many
allowances you have in the bank. Was that
correct?
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EXAMINATION OF MICHAEL A. KOVACH

Good afterncan, Mr. Kovach.

Good afterncoa.

Could you please — could you please
deacribe what your role was in preparing
the Supplemental Fuel Switching Study
submitted to the Ohio Commission on
October 13t of last year?

Bagically my role was reviewing the srudy
that was dooe from the Fuel Procurement's
perspective.

What specific issues did you attempt to
review?

The pricing that they were using.

The pricing they were using for coal?

T'm sotty, for the coal; the different S02
specifications of coal.
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Okay. So is it basicaily the study
used — the study contained estimates of
the price for coal with different sulfar
contents?

Yes.

And you attempted to - you reviewed the
reasonableness of the estimates that were
used?

Well, reasonableness of the estimates and
where the estimates came from as far as,
you know, the traceability of the
estimates also, yes.

How were the estimates developed?

A buyer in aur section used the - an
estimate from EVA pricing coupled with
some of his experience as far as the FOB
fine pricing estimates and then the
transportation estimates I believe would
be, if there was actual rates like a
contract in effect. That's what they
would have usod in absence of some actual
contract vaine that they could use. They
would have used an EVA estimate.

Who was the individual who did that
analysis?

Robert J. Rua & Assoclates
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[1}] A Joe Lang. [ Q  Did you or anyone else in your section

[2] Q  And did you review his work? [2] review any other aspect of the work — of
(3] A Yea [3] the supplemental srudy that was being

[4] @ Do you know what the approximate date was [ 4} preparcd by Mr. Hoag?

[ 5} of the EVA study that he used? 51 A Ag far as review, we wouid have read the
[6] A  No,Idon't recall right now. 6] entire report. Is thar what you're

[71 Q  AndlIguess I'm u litthe bit unsure. Did 71 asking? Did we review the whole report?

[ 8] Mr. Hoag develop estimates with you which [ 8] Yeah, I would have read the whoie repont
[9 you then reviewed, or did you — did your [9] before it went in.

[10] group provide input to Mr. Hoag? 10] Q  Were you asked for comments on any other
[11] A  Mr. - I'm sorry, I don’t understand, 11] issues that were raised by the repornt?

2 Mr. Hoag as far as what estimates? 12] A 1 provided commenn whether T was asked or
{131 Q  On the cost for coais with different [t3) not,

[14] sulfur content for delivery at Eastlake [14f ©Q  What issues did you comment on?

[15] and Ashtabula, who provided the inital — 15] A 1don'trecall. T know I probably had

6] A I think I misunderstood one of your 16] some comments. Nothing major that stands
7 questions, as far as the costs for coal 17 out, that I wonld remember that [

[18] with different suifur content. 18] provided.

[19] What T had meant was here’s the cost [ Q Okay. Do you know who else was invoived
[20] that the Fuel Procurement was using for a [20] in either preparing or reviewing the

[21] six pound coal. This is the cost we're [21] supplementzl fuel switching study?

[22} using for 2.5 pound coal. That estimate [22] A  No, maybe Mr. Hoag would be better to ask
[23] in the table would have been produced by 23] that. T'm sure there were other people

[24) Mr. Hoag, if that's what you're referring 24} though, but T don't know at this time.

251 to; that combined S02 table, SO2 delivered [251 Q Okay.

PAGE 6 PAGE 8

[1] fitel price table that was in the study. [1] A T1don’t remember.

[2] That would have been done by Mr. Haag. [2] Q I planned to ask him, as well. You would
[3] Q OCkay. So wouid this be correct that the {3 assume on something like this that there

[ 4} Fuel Procurement section provided the coal [ 4] would be a number of people involved?

[5] related component of the figures that were (5] A Right

[ 6] used by Mr. Hoag? (6] Q  Just because of the importance?

[l A Yes [71 A Importance and the accuracy, correct.

[8] Q  And then Mr. Hoag provided the 502 [8] Q  When did - tc the best of your

91 allowance compoaent? [9] recollection, when was the issue of

{10] A  Correct {10] preparing a supplemental fuel switching

{111 Q  And then Mr. Hoag basically added the two {11 study first discussed? The study’s dated

[12] figures together in order to come up with 123 October 13t

13l the estimated ali-in number for both coal [13] I'm just trying to — did you start
[14) and SO2 allowances? f14} working op it 3 week beforekand or 2 month
15 A Ye. [15} beforehand, or a year beforehand?
[10] Q  That's a faie description of the process? {16 A T probably — it could have been in
71 A Yes. nn process before T was even in Fuel.
[18 Q  Okay. 5o that at least one fole that your 18} 1 actually started there as manager

[19] section performed was to provide the coal [19} towards the end of September, and it could
[20] related input into those numbers? [20} have been in progress before that. You
[21 A As far as fuel and transportation pricing, [21} know, could have been after. I'm not
[22] JFOB mine transportation price and [221 quite sure when Rich’s section started
[23] ransporation price which was delivered [23]) preparing that study.
[24 price of the different fuel [24) Q  Okay.
[25] specifications. [251 A You have to ask him that. As far as Fuel

Robert J. Rua & Associates
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(1 Procurcment, the pricing information that
[2] they were using was basically the same

{3] information that's in the corporate model
{4] so that wouid have been prepared around
[ 5] the beginning of the year sometime 30 that
[ 6] inforruation was definitely before a week
{7 before, [ think, but the rest of it, I'm

[ 8] not sure,

[ 9t You'd have to ask Rich, The fuel
[10] pricing wouid have been sometime in the
1] beginning of that year.

[12] Q  Beginning of?

3 A .

[i4] Q  Prior to the — just to back up, I'm

[15) SOTTY.

f16) As | understand, it was sometirne in
(17 late Septermber when you became manager of
[18} Fuel Procurcment?

191 A  Mm-bmm, yes.

[20] Q What was your position prior to that?
{21} A Weil, T was on a rotation of aasignment
[22) working on a fossil operation performance
[23] improvement program for a while and at
[24] that time, I was also the manager of

{25 Resoutce Planning.

PAGE 11

A No.

Q  Okay. Did you attempt to evaluate the
reasonableness of the input that Mr. Lang
provided for use by Mr. Hoag regarding
coal prices?

Yes, with Mr. Lang.

With Mr. Lang?

Yes.

How did you go about wrying to review the
input Mr. Lang was providing?

Basically, discussed with him where the
estimates came from, and how he went about
deriving that, and basically how they
compared to ciirent pricing.

Q  So essentially, you were just getting
started in Fuel Procurement at that point,
correct?

Correct.

And what you were doing was oying to make
sure that somebody who had more experience
in the area szcmed to be going about
developing estimates in a Teasonable,
orderly way?

Carrect.

Were you concerned at all by the facet that

> QPO»

Q>

o>
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[1] Q For how long had you been manager of
{2) Resource Planaing?

[3] A  Maybe four or five months.

[4 Q  Before that, what position did you hold?
[5] A 1 wasa senior engineer in System

[ 6] Planning.

[7T Q  And for how long did you hold that

[ 8 position?

[99 A  Coupie years, maybe.

[t0) Q Okay. In your position as a senior

[11 engineer in System Planming, did you have
[12] any responsibility for coal procurement?
[3 A No.

[14F Q  Had you had any responsibility for coai
[15] procurement before you became an

f16} assistant —s-senior enginesr in System
7 Planning?

[18 A No.

{199 Q In your position as manager of Resource
[20] Plapning, did you have any responsibility
{21] far coal procurement?

21 A No.

{23 Q Do you bave any prior training or

[24} experience or have you taken any course
[25] work relating to coal procurement?

PAGE 12

[ 1] he apparently was using an EVA report that
[2] was — had been prepared quite & number of
[3] months earlier?

[4 I'm not sure how much earlier it was

[ 5] prepared but no, I wasn't.

{6] I thonght you indicated that your

| recollection was that it was prepared

18] towards the beginning of the year.

[9] A  Right, but I'm not sure. I s3id the

[10} forccast. 1 don’t know when the EVA
] report was prepared.

[12] Q  So the forecast —

[13] A  That we were using.

[144 Q - was prepared towards the beginning of
[15] the year?

[16} A  Rigat

[17] Q Do I understand correctly that it, in

[18] turn, was based on an EVA report that
[19] might have been samewhat old?

[20] A  Correct. It could have been.

[21 Q Do you know how much older it was?
[22] A No.

[22] Q  Was that — was that & potential concern?
[24] Were you worried that the cstimates might
[25] be based on stale data?

~ Robert J, Rua & Associates
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[1] A Ne. [1] there may bave been other inputs, but |
[2] @  Whynot? [3 don't know who it would have been.

[ 3] A 1 wasn't concerned. [ 3] Q To your knowledge, was there any kind of a
[4] @  Ttjust waso't —_ [ 4] task force or review committee that was
[5] A Tdontkmow. Idon't know. It wasnta [5] involved in preparing or reviewing the

[ 6] concemn. [6] study?

[T Q Tt just wasn’t an issue you really (M I don't know. T don’t remember. You'd
[ 8] focussed on? 8] have to ask Rich.

[9] A Tt wasn't an issue that raised concem in 9] Okay. In reviewing the study, did you
{101 me. 101 atterapt to go back and look at the order
1) Q Well, did you have any specific reason to [11} that was issued by the Commission in 1995
[2] believe that the use of cariier estimates [12} with respect to the company's

f13} was still reasonable? 13 Environmenta) Compliance Plan?

[14] A 1 was relying on the opinion of my 14 A 1 can’t remember if I did pull that out
{15] workers. 15 again. I may have looked at that before 1
{1 Q Did you ask Mr. Lang whether he was [16] reviewed it. I don't remember.

nn concerned at all regarding the potential [M Q Do you remember the major issues that were
[18] staleness of the data that he was using? [18]) raised back then about the adequacy of the
[199 A  No, no. 19 company’s earlier Environment! Compliance
{200 Q Okay. So you don't know whether he was 20] Plan?

[21] concerned ooe way or the other? 21 A 1 could summarize for you what I thonght
[2] A N [22] the main issues weze.

[23) Q Okey. Do you know whether there's been 23] Q  Please.

[24) any volatility in the relevant coal [24] A  Or1 mean issue.

[25) markeis during the course of the last year [25] Q  Please do.

PAGE 14 PAGE 16

[1] or two? [1] A  The way [ undenstand basically the issue
{2 A My understanding is within the last year, 2] surrounding that is we were dealing in

{3] prices have been spiking. 3] this study with strictly the replacement

[4 Q Do you know why that's been occurring? 4] af the 1.2 million tons of higher sulfur

{5] A Tve beard numerous issues relating to a [ s} coal.

[ 6] cenein utility buying a lot more coal due 6 Q Mm-bmm.

(n to poor nuclear performance, lowering of 7l A Abd che general effect on that,

[8] coal inventories amongst different 8] Q  And what factors were relevant to take
[9] suppliers; things along those lines, 9] into account in determining whether to
[10f Q  So that your understanding is that any 10] replace the 1.2 million coal?

[L3}] spikes are due principaity o poor 1] A There was a fist of isvucs in that

[12) performance at some puclear units in the [12] stipulated agreement.

[13) region? [13] Q Do you recall what any of those issues
(141 A  Coukd be, yeah. Amongst probably some 14} were?

[15] other things. 15] A No, not off the top of my head.

[16] Q  And therefere, you expect that they'll be 16 Q In your judgment, is it appropriate for
nA temmporary in nature? nn the company to make a decision about
f18] A Yes. {18} whether to replace that 1.2 million tons
{199 Q 1 may have asked this already, in which [19] based solely oz the nse of the evaivated
{20} case 1 apologize, do you have any [20] cost maethodalogy described by Mr. Stead?
21] knowiedge regarding other inputs? That is 2] A Yes

[22] inputs other than yours that Mr. Hoag may [22] Just for clarity of the record, am [

[23] have obtained in preparing the (23] correct that you were present throughout
[24] supplemental study? [24] Mr. Stead's deposition?

[25] A Ok, T think I said I'm not sure. I'm sure 5] A Yes.




PAGE 17

Q

Are there — in your mind, are there any
concerns as to whether there might be
something missing if the company made its
decision on whether to replece the 1.2
million tons based salely on the use of
the evaluated cost methodology?

No. ! mean you never say never, but at
this time, nothing comes to mind.

Do you think that — as a person with a
lot of experience in planning, do you
think thar uncertainties regarding
sllowance prices are relevant in choosing
berween different coals for purposes in
connection with an acid rain compliance
program?

Well, let me answer that two ways because
I'm not quite sure. I know what you're
asking but [ mean when Rich’s section
actuatly does — runs — I'm assuming the
Promod runs they did in the — they would
look at the cerwinty or uncertainty of
S02 aliowance cost.

I'm certain they would do that, but
as far as fuel procurement when we're
doing it at our evaiuated cost, we would

probably middle of "94.

Q When is the first time you looked at an
allowance price forecast, for example?

A Probably the 93, 94 timeframe.

Q  What's the generai pattern been in terms
of the accuracy of allowance price
forecasts for that time period through the
present?

A My general impression in the beginning,
they were much higher than they turned out
to be right now. The forecasts are
probably pretty close is my general
impreasion.

Q U'm sorry, I'm not sure I heard that
correctly, excuse me if [ repeat a little
bit. Hearing T have a hard time
compensating for,

Wers you saying that the price
forecasts in '93 or 94 were about the
same as they've turned out to be or fairfy
different?

A No, I'm saying back in the beginning, like
maybe the '93 timeframe or maybe cven
sooner than that, it appeared that in the
beginning, the allowance forecass were

(1
[2)
[3]

4
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aiso like look at a base allowance price,
high and low allowance price saying that
high ailowance price, low allowance price
to see if it has any aifect in our
evaluation.

And Rich would also supply us, you
know, & high, low base forecast for
allowances.

Okay. What happens if it does have an
affect on your decision?

We probably discuss it, but it really
didn't in this evaluation that we had
done.

Do you recall for the last quarter of '97,
what the range was between the base, the
high and the.low?

No.

Was it significant?

I don’t remember. It couldn't have been
that significant becsuse 1 don't remember.

Well, am I correct that it's been a
number of years that you've been having at
least some involvement with issues
pertaining to ailowance prices?

As far as | was in System Planning since

PAGE 20
[ much higher than the prices actuaily — I
[ 2} real prices actually tumed out to be, and

3] if you look at 1996, 1997, it appears the

4] forecast prices are probably closer to

L] what's really happening.

6] Q  What happened the last time the company

n submitted an Environmental Compliance Plan

8] to the Commission? Were the allowance

9] price forecasts used then accurate?

10] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
[} relevance. If you can answer that
[12] question.

[13] A I don't know what you're asking.

[14) Q  With your system planning background, when
[15} you reviewed the 96 study, did you go
16} back and look at whether the assumptions
[17} used in doing the earlier srudy were

[18] accurate?

[19 A  No, I didn't.

[20) Q@ De you know whether anybody else did?
[21] A  I'm not sure if Rich would have or not.
[22] You'll have to ask him.

[231 Q  Would it bother you if the assumptions
[24] that were used eighteen months earlier
f2s] turned out to be off by a factor of 50

~Robert J. Rua & Associstes
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percent?

MR, REGULINSKI: Objection.
The witness has aiready indicated
that he did not consider the
forecast. That that was dope by
another individual.

MR. WEISSMAN: I'm trying to
take advantage of the individual's
background in System Planning, and
really ask him with your System
Planning background ~

MR. REGULINSKI: And | bave a
wimess who is going to respond to
the emission allowance price
forecast which your witness by the
way said was not unreasonable, by
the way,

You weren’t there at that
tisne when he told me that the
forecast was not unreasonable,

MR. WEISSMAN: Actually T
was, but he didn't think T was
listening.

MR. REGULINSKI: You were
sleeping, weren't you?

roind, sensitivity in analyses are pretty
important to making sound decisions,
aren't they?
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
relevancy. Can you tie this into
the issue before the Commission?
MR. WEISSMAN: Yes
MR. REGULINSKI: Pilcase do.
MR. WEISSMAN: We think that
the company has failed to
adequately take into account
uncertaintics regarding allowance
prices in its decision-making.
I'm trying 0 expiore with
the witness whether in making
proper pianning decisions, it's
important to take into account
uncertainty.
BY MR. WEISSMAN:
Q Isit?
A T think it is important to look at
different levels of uncertainty, yes.
Q In your experience as 8 system planner,
how often did price forecasts tend to fall
by 50 percent over a space of 18 1o 24

PAGE 22
BY MR, WEISSMAN:

[1
[2]
[3]
{4
5]
[ 6
[7]
[ 8
[9]

p—

Q

o >0 >

o»

From a System Planning perspective, is it
important to do sensitivity analyses?

From the System Planning perspective, |
would say yes.

Okay.

I'm here representing the fuel perspective
also.

Is the policy within the company that
every individual should be blind to
anything other than the responsibility of
his or her section?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Can you rephrase the question.

Is it or isn't it?

MR, REGULINSKI: Objection.
Can you rephrase the question for
me, please? -

I'm trying to understand, do you feel an
obligation to take into account your prior
experience and expertise in reviewing
decisions or studies in which you were a
participant?

Yes.

And with your system planner experience in

months for any input?

A 1 don't remember.

Q Can you recall off hand any instance in
which a forecast was that far off?

A T don’t remember right now.

Q@  Did you bave oceasion to examine in any
WAy at any time the accuracy of the
company's allowance price forecasts in
successful environmental compiiance plans?

MR, REGULINSKI: Objection,
previous environmental compliance
plans is outside the scope,
according to the examiner,

MR. WEISSMAN: ['m not asking
anything about the recommendations
in those reports. T'm asking the
witness about whether there were
any — whether he has reviewed
prior allowance price forecasts
and if so, whether he draws any -
would draw any conclusions from
that review regarding the level of
confidence that the company should
have in its current forocasts.

MR. REGULINSKI: This is
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regarding emission allowances?
MR. WEISSMAN: Thar's
correct,
MR, REGULINSKI: Okay.

As far as review, I've never been
tesponsible, you know, solely responsible
for doing emission allowance forecasts.
Ali T can say is my general impression of
different forecasts. s that what you're
asking for?

Yes.

Okay, 1 feel right through they're pretty
accurate. I mean, there's no feason to
teally doubt them now and as T stated
eatlier, it seems like in the past,
consultants were projecting very high
allowance prices and those really dida"t
materialize. They were lower. But as far
as now, I feei they're pretty accurate,

Do you have any assessment of why the
carlier forecasts didn’t materialize?

No.

Why do you have confidence in the current
forecasts?

T just feel based on my own assessment,

» 0

next five years, the next ten years, the
next fifteen years? How do you go about
making that decision?

All those factors that | just mentioned, [
basically would put them into a digpatch
model and see what develops as the least
cost plan.

Help me. How would & dispaich model -

Well, using some sort of a digpatch tool
such as Promod might heip as two give you
projected allowance levels, things along
those lines and let you know what the best
combination of fuel prices, allowance
prices, and, you know, unit firing rates,
things like that produces.

Okay. Are you awarc in connection with
the preparation of the supplemental study,
of any effort to examine the impact of
maintaining or displacing the 1.2 million
tons of high sulfur coal on the size of
Centerior’s allowance bank?

I believe that, yes, they did do a mun; a
study on that.

When you say "they,” who are you referring
to?

o>

Oo>0 >

that they're pretty close to where the
allowance — 1 mean they’re closer to
where allowances are selling.

There’s & real market that's
developed now and it seems like earlier
there was no true market. You know, back
1 guess in the '91-92 timeframe.

In connection with the preparation of the
'96 study, the 96 supplemental study, are
you aware of any effort to review the
appropriateness of the size of Centerior's
allowance bank?

No.

Do you have any views as to what
criteria — in your judgment, what
criteria shouid the company take into
account in determining the appropriste
size of its allowance bank?

Cost of coal, cost of ailowances, unit
dispatch levels, unit availnbilities.

Shouild the company remin —

Load.

Is the right thing to retain encugh

aliowances to cover poteatial needs for
the next three monthg, the next year, the

o>r0O>

Rich's section.

Rich's section. And when you say a study,
iz that something different chan the table
that shows the —~

Na. The table that was in the srudy.

That shows the size of the bank?

Mm-hmm.

Are you aware of any discustion that
occurred internally as to whether the bank
that resulted from displacing the 1.2
million tons of high sulfur coal was —~
T'm tempted tc say too bot, too cold or
just about right — essentially too large,
too small or just about exactly optimal?

Not that I recail.

Do you have any judgments on that issue?

Na.

Did you or Mr. Lang attempt to — in
connection with the preparation of the
supplemental study, did you or Mr. Lang
anempt to evaluate the potential impacts
of displacing the 1.2 million tons of high
sulfur coal on the Ohio coal market?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objectian.
Couid you tie that into one of the

"~ Robert J. Rus & Associates
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[ 1} seven items tisted in the 94-1698 [1] reievant is relevant under the

[2] order issued by this Commission on [2] stpulation that we're proceeding
[3] July 20, 19957 [3] under.

[4] MR. WEISSMAN: Sure. If it [4] Would you mind smending your
[5] would help, I'd be glad 0. [5] questions to stay reievant under

[ 6] MR. REGULINSKI: Maybe number [ 6] the stipulation?

[7 67 [ 7 MR. WEISSMAN: I disagree
{8} MR. WEISSMAN: The order is I8l with your iegsl assessment. Il
(9] in this pile? [9] be glad to modify the question.
[10} MR. REGULINSKI: T'Ii telt [10] BY MR. WEISSMAN:

[ you what. We can break - [11] Q Do you think it's relevant under the
it2) MR. WEISSMAN: T don't really [12) stipulation to consider the potential

[13} prefer to break. If you wouldn't N3} impact oo the long term production

[14} mind, if you could show me. (4] capability of the Ohio mining industry
[1s) --- i8] that might result from displacing 1.2

16} (Short interruption had.) [16} million tons of Ohig coal?

L] --- {171 A It could be relevant as far as the fuel
[18] BY MR. WEISSMAN: (18] projections that we're using.

[19] Q My apoiogies for the delay. One of the [19} My understanding is that, you know,
[20} factors that the company is required to 20} they wouid have some kind of projection in
[21] consider in preparing its supplemental [21] there as far as how that affects price

22} study under the Commission’s July 20, 1995 122} when we go out, yesh.

[23] order i, "A consideration of the impact [23] Q  Are there ciccumstances in which the
[24} of reduced consumption of Ohio coai and [24] company might want to increase its

(25) the resulting impact on Centerior's [25] consurption of high sultur coal in the

PAGE 30 PAGE 32

i customers.” [ future?

[2) Can you tell me what steps, if any, [21 A  There would be.

[3] you or anyone else in the Fuel Procurement f3] Q  Would any set action or st of actions

[ 4] section ook to evatuate the potential 4] that diminish the long term supply of high
[5) impact of displacing the 1.2 million tons [5) sulfur coal poteatially diminish the

{6l of Otio coal? [ 4] options available to the company in the
[7] A  We looked at that six pound estimaic as {n future?

(8] representative of an Ohio high sulfur coal [8] A Ttcoud

[9] estimate, 50 as far as how that was [9] Q Do you know whether over the last several
f10} integrated into the study that Rich did, [10] years, there have been significant

1] he can answer that. 11} declines in demand for high sulfur coal in
[12] Q  Did Fuel Procurement try to assess whether f121 this region?

[13} there would be any potential impact of (131 No, I'm not aware of any significant

[14] displacing — did the Fuel Procurement [14} declines in demand.

[15} section try o amess whether if the {15] Would it surprise you if there's been a
[16] company displaced the 1.2 million tons of 16] very significant drop off in demand for
nn Ohio coal and switched to an out of sute 17y high sulfur coal over the laxt four or

[18] codl, that there might be any impact on 18} five years?

{19] the number of surviving mines in the Ohio 19 A No.

[20] coal indusory? 20] Q Would it — do you think there's any
[21} A Not to my knowiedge. 21) resson to think that there might be major
[21 Q Do you think that's a relevant factor to 22] problems for the company and for its

[23] consider under the statute? 23] customers in the foture if some of the
{241 MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 24] existing Ohio mines were to shut down?
[25] The question I think which is 25) A There could be.

—
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What kinds of probierns might occur?

If all the mines would skur down,
potentially that couid have less suppliers
and raise prices. _

Could the impacts be significant?

They couid be. [ don’t know.

Have you made any impact - any effort to
study that issuc?

No, [ have been there. 1 have not studied
that issue.

Da you know whether anyone associated with
the company's fuel procurement activities
has attempied to asaess the company’s
potential long term need for high sulfur
coal?

T don't know.

Da you know whether anyone has atrempted
to assess the risk that a significant
number of high sulfur coal producers in
the region will be required to shut down
their activities, their mines?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
I don’t think — 1 think we've
gone well beyond the scope of this
proceeding when we swmrt talking

(o)

PIPLO>

Yes.

And is high muifur coal one of those
fuels?

Yes.

Since you became responsible for fuel
procurement, what steps, if any, have you
taken to aascas the adequacy of the iong
term availability of high sulfur cogl?

Well, first of all, in our bid proceeding,
we did ask for higk sulfur coal bids which
as you know, we are planning on pursuing
one for the fourth quarter of 1997,

And secondly basically, T read, you
know. And for cxample, like Ohio Valiey,
I've been reading that they've been
securing a lot of tonnage, 8o, you know, [
would assume that mine will be very
valuable in the future.

Do you have any idea whether some of that
tonnage resulted from other mines being
shut down?

No.

Wouid that be relevant in your opinion?

It could be, yeah,

If it rurned out that long term reiiance

A
Q

about shutting down of Ohio mines.
That question is not before the
Commission.

I think we've gone too far
beyond. T've given him some
leeway, but you've gone 14
sentences beyond the scope of this
proceeding.

MR. WEISSMAN: We just
disagree. Are you instructing the
withess not 10 answer?

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have
the question re-read?

(Record read.)

MR. REGULINSKL: The
objection stands. Ul ask the
witness to answer, if he can.

No, I don't recall.

In your responsibility as fuel - in your
position as fuel manager, do you believe
you have any responsibility to assess the
adequacy of the long term supply of the
fuels that the company's currently using?

or LD»

o>

on high sulfur coal were an imporant
aptioa for the company, and might well be
the most cost effective but there were

real questions as to whether an adequate
number of mines would remain open to
provide that coal, wouldn't that

potentially be a very major concern in
terms of the availability to produce
electricity at the lowest coat?

It could be.

Is anybody looking at that issue
internalty within the company?

Not to my knowledge.

Do you know whether anybody has looked at
it st any time gver the past two or three
years?

1 don't recall, ao.

Did Systern Planning ever ask that
anybody — during your tenure in System °
Planning, did anyone ask that issue be
assessed?

1 don’t know. No, I don't remember ever
asking that.

Okay. Were you involved in fuel
procurement st the time the company made

" Robert J. Rua & Asociates
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its decisions regarding sources of coal
for Eastlake and Ashtabula § during the
fourth quarter of 977

Yes, as far as they rclate to the
solicitation that was sent out in October
30, yeah.

What was your roie in making that
decision?

1 bhad people that worked for me do the
evaluation and then we presented the
results of the evaluation to Frank, and
discussed which bids we would award and
pursue awarding.

Did you give your staff any guidance as 1o
what factors they should consider in
evaluating the different bids?

As far as which criteria we would evaiuate
them on?

Right.

Yeah, yes.

What guidance did you give to your staff?

We discussed which would be the best
criteria to evaluare by and, you know,
came up with a list of things we wanted to
use.

Q¥

the evaluation with the high and low price
of allowances as well as the base pnce.

De you know in looking at furure
alternatives with respect to Eastlake 4
and 5, for purposes of the suppiemental
study, did the company leok at all of
the — at the poasibility of continuing 1o
bumn the same quantities of high sulfur
coal that it's curreatly burning at
Eastlake 4 and 5?

1 don't recall anything that was just done
for Eastlake 4 and 5, no.

Is there any reason that you're aware of
aot to look at the option of continuing to
do exactly what the company is doing now
in terms of the quantities of high sulfur
cosal burned at Eastlake 4 and 57

Neo.

Was the company — was the Fuel
Procurement section asked to provide
estimates for the delivered cost of high
sulfur coal at Eastiake 4 and 57

We provided high suifur coal at Eastiake 4
and 5. We provided estimates of the
differcnt coals at the different plants,

o>

What were the ~

Which were, okay, BTU evaluation. We used
$02, ash, grind, moisture, and seemed o
me there couid have been one more?

It's the same factors that Mr. Stead
dexcribed earlier today?

Yeah, right; same procedure Frank
described.

In other words, what you're describing are
the specific components that were taken
into account in the evalusted cost
methodology?

Mm-hmm.

And am 1 correct in assuming that there's
0o componeot in the evalnsted cost
methodoloBY for allowance price volatility
or the size of the bank or uncertainty
regarding allowance prices?

You're caorrect. There's no component for
that.

Were those factors considered in any other
way? ‘

As far as T think 1 said this earlier,
that Rich provided, you know, a base; a
high and low forecast, and we did look at

o>

and they ran the study based on the coal
prices that we provided. I mean, which [
guess 'm not sure exactly what the
question is leading to.

Just rying to determine if you recall
whether there were inputs used regarding
high suifur coal at Eastiake.

Yeah, T don't recall.

Okay. Cawn you tell me when you reviewed
the ¢stimates of delivered fuel costa for
different fuels that Mr. Lang provided to
Mzr. Hoag, if you recall the questions 1
asked at the outset of your deposition,
did you make any effort to compare
Mr. Lang's estimates with respect to
compare Mr. Lang's estimates with bids
that the company was receiving for
delivery of the same types of coals to the
same plants?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
No objection. May T just have
that guestion re-read? No
objection.

-

(Record read.)
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[1] . [11 A  Solmean ~

[2] A  No,lI did not [2] Q Inyour judgment, wouid it have been
[3) @  Okay. Do you know whether there were [3] desirable to elicic such bids?

{4} significant difiergnces berween the [4] A It couid have been. You know —

isl esrimates used for any pamtcular type of [5] Q  What about -

[ 6} coal in terms of sulfur content, and the {68 A Could have been.

(7 bids that the company had recently [71 Q  What about for 19997 Do you know whether
[8] received for delivery of the same types of [ 8] ptior to preparing the suppiemental study,
[ 9] coals to the same plants? [9] the company solicited bids for the

[10) A  Can T have that question? 10} detivery of high sulfur coal to cither

(1} MR. REGULINSKL: Yes, 11] Eastlake or Ashtabula in 19997

(12] “.- 12] A No,Idon’t know.

[t3] {Record read.) 13] Q  If offers to sell such coal were made for
14} .-- 14} all of *98 or all of '99, would there be

[15) A Nothing significant that comes 10 mind. [15) no reason not to use — would there be any
[16] @ I the company received bids for any [16} reason not to use the bid that was

n7n particular ~ for coal with any particular 17] actualiy roade in applying the cost

[18} levels of sulfur that were significantly 18] evaluation methodology and comparing
[19) lower than the estimates that Mr. Lang had 19] different compliance options?

[20] been — had developed, would there be any [200 A  Yeah. Nat to use it, yeah.

[21} reason not to use the lower actual bids? 211 Q  And what would the reasons be?

[2] A  What do you mean, not to use the lower 2] A  Ouoe bid doesn't necessarily represent

[23] acrual bids? [23) what, you know, what you would see from
[24] For purposes of evaluating acid rain [24] everyone else.

[2s] compliance, for purposes of developing an 251 Q@ Well - r
PAGE 42 PAGE 44

[1] acid rain compliance plan. Tf you have an 1] A  And in that, you know what I'm saying?
[2] estimate and an actuat bid for the same 2] Like if ane 2.5 pound person gives you
[3 product delivered to the same plant, and 3] this price, that doesn't mean you would

[ 4] the acrual bid is significantly lower than [ 4 get everybody at that same price tange.
[9] the estwrnate, is there any reason not to 5] Q Does that matter? [ mean isn't the only
[ 6] use the actual bid? 6 question what's the lowest cost for

[71 A  That depends on the circumstance. 7] getting a parricular fuel deiivered to

[8] Q  What circumstances might cause you not to & that particular plant?

[9] use the acrual bid? 9 A When you acrually go for bids, yes, but
[10] A  What was the actual bid for? You know, if 10] you're asking in context of this long

[t1] the actual bid was for one quarter, does 1 range study.

[12] one quarter represent a 20 year forecast, [12 Q  Right.

[13] you know. You have to ask questions like [13] A  And I'm saying [ wouldn't necessarily just
[14] that. [14) because you have one quarter or oo year
[15] Q  Prior to finalizing the suppiemental (b)) or two years of one low bid in 3 certain
[16] study, did-thve company seek bids for 16] S02 spec, I wouldn't just change all 20

17] delivery of high sulfur coal to Eastiake 17] years worth of data based on that one bid.
18 or Ashtabula § during 19987 18] Q  What's the longest term commitment that
19 A Not w my knowiedge, no. [19] the company bas for the purchase of coal
[20] Q  Why not? 29 for use ar Eastiake?

21] A I dont know. 21] A Probably at this point, through the end of
22 Q  Did you - did anyone ask you whether it 22) 97.

23 would be useful to solicit such bids? [23] Your belief is that there are no

24 A 1 wasn't down there at the time. [24] commitmenta for the purchase of coal at
[25] Q 1in your judgment — [25] Eastlake after 977

.
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[11 A  Nothing I can recall, no. [11 A  Anything more than five years, 1 don't
[2] Q  What about av Asheabula 57 [2] think I would pursue.

[3)] A  Ashtabula 5, no. ! mean, no, nothing T [3] Q  Why not?

{4 can recall. _ [4] A T just think the electric market right now
[5] ©Q  What about at other coal fired units? i3] is too volatile.

[ 6} MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. [6] Q  Why is that relevant?

{7 Is that necessary? (| A I don't know. The onset of different

[ 8] MR, WEISSMAN: TI'd like to [8] rewpiling aspects, things like that, 1

I 9] have some sense of whether there’s {9 would, you know, be less apt to go for a
{10) something speciai about Eastiake ho} longer term contract now,

{11] or Ashtabula. [11] Q  There's just too many uncertainties as to
[12) MR. REGULINSKI: It's before 2] what the company will be doing five years
{13] the Commission. That's what makes 13] from now?

114) it 80 special. [14] A Probably, yes.

[15] MR. WEISSMAN: 1 actuaily [15] Q@  And too many uncertainties about what the
{16) also would like the witness to be {16] total coal consumption will be; is that
7 the person who answers questions. i | correct?

(18} MR. REGULINSKL: Well, 'm {18 A Mmhmm.

[19] asking you to withdraw the [191 Q  And what fuel prices will be like; is that
[20] question. Will you withdraw it? [20] correct?

{21] MR. WEISSMAN: No. 2] A Mm-hmm.

[z2) MR, REGULINSKI: Objection. [22] Q  And whether there will be reguladans?
23] 1f you can answer the question, go [23) MR. REGULINSKIE: Objecrion.
[24) ahead. [24] We've gone way beyond the scope.
[25] A  Well, for Bay Shore, we are pursuing [25] I know you think it's in the acope
PAGE 46 PAGE 48

[1] western coal contracts, but to convert the f1 but it's not. We've gone way

[2] plant over to western coal which I'm sure {2 beyond the scope of the issue

(3 you're aware of that, but as far as like [3] before the State Commission,

[4] Eastlake and Ashubula, 98, [ don't know [+ 1 will let the witness answer, but

[ 5} of any commitments. 5 we're way out there now.

[ 6] Avon, you know we do have a long term 6] BY MR, WEISSMAN:

[7 commitnent at that plant. Actually two 7] Q  1Is one of the uncertainties whether we’ll
[ 8] CONTacts. 8] continne (0 bave the current form of

[99 Q  Over the roughiy two and a half years 9] comprehensive cost of service regulation,
(10 since you became Fuel Procurement manager, 10] or whether there will be some form of
[11] have there been any new long term coal 11] retil competition?

{12] commitments made? [12] A  Yes.

[13) MR. REGULINSKI: At any 133 Q 1Is it Erir to say that we're facing an

[14] units, Mr. Weissman? 14] unususl high level of uncertinty as o
[15] MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. 15) what the electric untility will be like?

[16] “MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 16} MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
f17] to relevance of the question, but (17 relevance. Don't answer the

[18) without waiving the objection, [18] question.

[19} T'l ask him to answer. 9] MR. WEISSMAN: T think what
[200) A  Since T became manager, no, not since T [20] might be most efficient at this

(21) became manager. 2] point would be if we could break
(221 Q  Asa genersl matter, do you think it's [22] for five or ten minutes or so.

23] desirable to avoid long term commitments? 123} MR. REGULINSKI: Yes,
[24] A  Depends on your definition of long term. {24} .--

[25] Q  Let's say five years or more. [25} (Short recess had.)

Robert J. Rua & Associates




Robert J. Rua & Assoclates .

PAGE 49 PAGE 51

[1l - [ 1} loak at any given number on the chart,
[2] {At this dme, Mr. Siegfried [2) that it will indicate 10 me for the year

[ 3] and Mr. Sarver teft [3] that I've chosen, and the pounds SO2 per
[4] the deposition at 3:3¢ p.r..) [ 4] million BTU that's perdnent, it will

{5] .-- [sl indicate the total of the estimated

{8l ’ MR. WEISSMAN: T'4 like to (6l delivered cost for the coal, and plus the
[n show the witness and ultimately n estimated value of the SO2 atlowances

[ 8] ask for requrn of, a document [ 8 needed to offset the sulfur in the coal;

{9 catitled Environmental Compliance [9) is that correct?

{10] Plan Review, Supplemental Fuel 0] A Yes.

[11] Switching, confidential [1l] Q@  Okay. And do you know essentially with
[12] information filed under seal. [12) respect to the SO2 component, is the cost
3] T'm going to show the wimess [13] figure that is used the cost figure

[14] the document solely for the [14} necessary (o esscntially zero out the

(151 purposes of allowing him 1o have 151 sulfur?

{16] in front of him tables 2 and 3 of [1é] A  Okay, I don't know that. There’s a couple
1mn that document while T ask certain 7 ways you could have done these. You could
(18] questions, but [ intend 10 ask the (18] kave just taken 1.2 as the Zero reference.
[19] questions in a manner that will [19) You could bave taken snything as & zero
20} avoid any need to creste a [20] reference. Zero is a zero reference. I'm
[21] confidential ranscript. Is that [21} pot sure how we did these tables.

[22] permissible? [221 Q 1T rephrase your statcrnent by saying
23] MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, that's [23] that you could use any refercnce point you
[24} my preference, as well. [24} wanted, as long as you used a consistent
[25] BY MR. WEISSMAN: {251 reference point?

PAGE 50 PAGE 52

[t] Q Hercis the document. And reaily, my only 1] A Right, whether you're going sbove or

[2] reason for showing it t0 you is to ask a 2] beyosd it, right. T'm not sure how he did
[3 question — & series of questions 3] this table. You'd have to ask Rich.

[ 4 conceptually regarding how the numbers on [ 4 You're not sure what the exact reference
{ 5] the tables were prepared. 5] point is?

[8] A Sure. 6 A Right

[7] Q  If I ask you to look at any particular 7 Q I I pick the number, for example, in the
(8 number, if we could just pick as an 8] column that's labeied 3.8 pounds S02 per
[9] example, the year 1999, value. I'd like 9] nillion BTU for the year 1999, can you
[} ta refer particularly to table 2, just as [100)) describe your undermtanding a3 to what the
mn an illustrative example, which 1 believe f11] components are that were used to develop
f12 pertains — 1 believe this is an 12 that sumber?

[13 indicstion on the top. [13] A It's the delivered cost of fuel in 1999

14) Tt pertains to the Eastlake plant and 14} and an allowance adder which would have
15} enother notation oa the top that states, 15] been equivalent in the sense of BTU that
16] "Deliveredtval costs ptus SO2 costs.” 16] Rich would have added onto here.

17) First of all, am T correct that what 177 Q  1s there any other cost element included
18] the table includes is the numbers that 18] for any other adjustment based on the

19] were actually used for purposes of the 19] characteristics of the coai?

20] study in evaluating the different fuel 20] A No, not that [ know of.

21] choice siternatives for the Eastlake plant 211 Q  Okay. 1s there — would the SO2 value
22] in different years? 223 used in calculating that oumber be based
23] A Ya. 23} upon the mble of sllowance — of

24] Q  Okay. And would it also be correct that [24] projected allowance prices contained

25] the numbers on the chart basically, if 1 251 elsewhere in the same supplemental study?
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Yeah, | would assume so, yes.

It’s something Mr. Hoag is probably better
able to confirm?

Yesh, 1 think s9.

That’s fine. Do you know when the company
evaluated bids for coal to be deiivered
during the fourth quarter of 19977

Did it use the same projected SO2
allowance prices that arc contained in the
table?

1 don't recall. 1t could have been
different. The allowance bid, we actuaily
solicired that I think in October, 30 it
would have been, you know, maybe a month
or two after this was turned in that those
were cvaluated, so it could have been a
different price.

What 502 allowance prices do you expect
the company to use in determining what
coals it will select for 19987

Well, what we do ~ it might be none of
these. We could ~ we'll ask Rich what
the most updated forecast is at the time.
You know, when we're ready to evaluate
bids, and that's what we would vse.

PAGE 55
1] Q
(2]
[3]
(4
{51 A
(6] Q
(1 A
I8
[9l
0] «Q
[11}
{12}
(13
[14}
[15}
[16]
17 A
sy a
f19}
[20]
[21]
-
23 Q
24 A
251 Q

Would the ransportarion cost used in
evaluating the high sulfur coal, the 6.0
coal option for Ashtabula 5 becn based
upon the EVA report as weil?

1 don't recall, you know,

Is that something you should ~

1t could bave been. Most likely it was
based on a contract to a certain point and
then went to an EVA projected price.

Have you attempted to examine — is there
2 — is the coal — is the cost for
transporting coal from Powhatan Ne. 6 to
Eastlake or to Ashtabula 5 the same or
different from the tansportation cost
sssociated with high sulfur coai from
other — obmined from other arcas?

In general, it could be different.

Was there ao effort made to take into
account those differences in determining
the value to be used for high sulfur coal
at Ashubula 57

Not to my knowledge.

Why not?

T don't know.

If there were significantly lower

o>

>0 QO

How frequently is the allowance price
forecast updated?

You'd have to ask him how often he updates
it, but for the purposes of any time we
would be buying coal, we would ask him for
an update.

And with respect to the transportation
cost that's included in each of the
figures, each of the numbers on this
chart —

Mm-hmem,

-~ would that ransportation cost have
been — what would that ransportation
cost have been based upon?

You asked me this earlier. T think what I
had said wag-if there's an actusl contract
in place for the particular plant, it
could have been based on that contract,
and if there was no contract, it was an
EVA projection of rail.

If T ask you to turn to table 3, T believe
it is, that pertgins 1o Ashtabuia 5.

Okay.

There's a column there far 6.0 coal?

Mm-hmm.

PAGE 56

transportation casts for coal for Powhaten
No. 6 or other mines servable off the zame
rail line, would there be any reason not

to take into account those — any valid
justification not to take into account

those lower rangportation costs?

Just to step back a minute, when we did
this study, my understanding of how this
works is you're just taking a
Fepresentative range.

The six pound represents in general.
It doesn't represent one in particuiar
mine, Or two niines; just represents, you
know, here's a representative example of
what, you know, a six pound coal could be
delivered to.

If there were a mine with inherently lower
trAnspoftation costs that was willing to )
make an offer to provide coal at a
delivered cost — on a delivered cost
basis that refiected that transportation
cost advantage, shouldn't that be taken
into account?

Well, the way I woukl bandle that is when
we - no, 0o, | don't think. Mot in this
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o>

study.

When you solicit the bid, and if they
turn in a bid and, you know, you put in
the actual ransportation cost and it is
lower, then it’s lower than what this
projected cost was, but, you know, |
wouldn't base thia column of this study
for this plant like T said earlier on one
particular bid or one particular mine.

Do you know whether historically the
transportation costs from the Powhatan No.
6 mine to Eastlakc and Ashiabula have been
lower than the transporiation costs
incurred by most ather high sulfur coal
vendons?

I don’t know off the top of my head.

Do you know whether there's a reason why
those costs shouid be lower?

One resson the Powhatan — [ don’t know
what the other mines were. Tt’s hard for
me 10 compare just off the top of my head
because of the fact that we use our
private equipment for Powhatan so that
cost doesn't appear in the sense from the
BTU, right off the bat, you know, It's

then that's what we use in our evaluation.

Do you do that even if the expected SO2 is
lower?

Yes. If they guarantee 2.5 pounds, then
we use 2.5 pounds.

Okay. Is it your practice to include
penalties or adjustment factors based
on — in your bid solicitations, do you
specify only a maximum or an average or
bath?

I can't remember what was in the last one.
I think there was an average and [ don't
think it went maximum. I don't remember.

As T undermand it, historically, C.E.L.,
correct me if I'm wrong, but owned the
trains that were used to haui coal from
Powhatan to Eastlake and Ashtabula; is
that correct?

Historically? T'm not positive. 1 know
we were using them since I'm there.
Historically, that's probably correct but
'm not positive historically or how far
back that went.

They're currently being used under a icase
ammangement?

(1
[2]
[3]
[4

51
{6l
{1
(8
[9]
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Q

P> P>

kard for me to just draw a comparison
without secing numbers.

Is the company — did the company - where
are we? Does the company plan to continue
using that same equipment during the
fourth quarter of 977

We're evaluating that now.

Is that an option svailable to the
company?

It's an option aviilable to the company.

Do I understand correctly that in
developing the estimates that are
contained in the wble, that the figures
that are used are based upon the maximum
potential sulfur content under each
option?

Are we an table 37 Basically the SO2
potential is just what we listed up top.

I mean we're assuming that is the SO2
potential, basically.

What about when you evaluate bids, do you
evaluate —

You adjust. If it's higher or lower, you
would just put in what they bid. If they
bid this is our maximum SO2 potential,

Yes.

Is there an option to extend thut lease
arrangement?

Yeah.

Is there any change in price? What are
the terms of that option? When does it
have 1o be exercised?

We're currently looking at that. It's
pretty soon.

Do you recall how soon?

Within the next coupie days.

Within the next couple duys?

Correct, yeah.

s there any risk that the company will
forfeit the option of continning to fetain
that service?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
1 think we're going again far
afield of what's relevant to the
study. We've already indicated
through this witness that the
study does not take into account
the different transportation modes
of uging our own equipment, rather
it bas six pound coal as 3
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MICHAEL KOVACH, of lawful age,
called by the Ohio Valley Coal Company
for the purpose of testimony in this
matter being by me first duly swomn,
as hereinafter said as follows:

MR. PERLIS: This is Mark
Peslis, counsel to the Ohio Valley
Coal Company resuming a deposition
that had been begun by Mr. Andrew
Weissman of Mr. Michael Kovach of
Centerior Energy.

Before we begin, since we
have peopie listening on the
speakerphone, [ would appreciate
it if we just take a roll call and
identify everyone who is in the
room here and on the speakerphone
at the other end.

So, for the record, my name
is Mark L. Periis, P as in Peter,
E-R-L-I-S. I'm aiso an attorney
with the law firm Dickstein,

Shapiro, Morin and Oshinsky in
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ALSO PRESENT: Ma. NBACy Ceasar, fatas ASSidtant
t201 Ar. michard $. Wosg
Wr. Frank Stead

Washington, D.C. and to my right
is?

MS. MOONEY: Colleen Mooney.
I'm with the Ohio Consumer’s
Counsel.

MR. HOAG: Richard Hoag,
Production Strategy Manager for
Centerior Energy.

MR. STEAD: Frank Stead,
Director of Supply for Centetior.

MR. REGULINSKI: Mike
Regulinski, counsel for Centerior.

THR WITNESS: Mike Kovach,
Manager of Field Planning and
Supply.

MS. CESEAR: Nancy Cesear,
Regulatory Affairs, Centerior
Energy.

MR. REGULINSKI: You guys on
the phone are up.

MR. SIEGFRIED: My name is
Stuart Siegfried,

S$--E-G-F-R-I-E-D, and U'm with
the Commission Staff.

MR. SARVER: Pat Sarver,
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anticipate that that solicitation would
cover?

A If T had to say at this point, I would
just go for one year in guarter
increments. -

Q  Is Centerior actively negotiating today

with any coal suppliers for the supply of

coal to Eastlake after January 1, 19987

No, not that I know of.
Why not? Have you made — for the record,
the counsel hasn’t answered the question.

Do you intend —

MR. REGULINSKI: The witness.

MR. PERLIS: The witness, I'm
sOfry, excuse me.

MR. REGULINSKI: Let's give
the witness some time.

A You know, well, we just went through a
merger and we're basically waiting to see
what happens with that, and we will most
likely solicit as First Energy.

Q Why does the merger affect how Centerior
Energy will pursue coat supply for
Eastlake?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as

o»
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A
Q

o

»0 > O»

in better opportunities for the purchase
of caal?

More buying power.

Is that because Chio Edison also purchases
substantial quantities of coal in the
gimilar grades that Centerior does?

1 don't know what they — yeah, I don't
know.

Where does the additional buying power
came from, if pot for their purchase of
coal of similar quality and
characteristics from Centerior’s needs?

I'm taiking totally on a tonnage basis;
volume tonnage.

Is there some possibility that the
utilization requirements at Eastlake
and/or Ashtabula would chenge as a result
of the First Energy merger?

I don’t know. It could, T don’t know,

How could those utilizations change as a
result of the merger?

They could go up or they could go down. [
don't know.

Why might they go up?

There could be — I don't know. T'm just

PAGE 30 _

{1 to relevance. Without waiving the
2] abjection, et the witness

[3] respond. ‘
[4 A  There could be more opportunities under
[ 3] the combined companies.

[ 6] Q Do you mean by that, more cost effective
[7 opportunities?

[§ A Yes

[9 Q  Could that in part be because the partmer
[10 in your merger may have other supplies of
11] coal that could be made aveilable to

12 Centerior?

13 MR. REGULINSKI: Same
[14] objection, and a continuing

[15] abjection to the relevance of the
16] First.Energy merger questions and
17] the impact of the First Energy

18 merger in this proceeding.

191 Without waiving the

[20] objection, let the witness respond
[21} to the best of his ability.

[22] A  Yeah, T don’t know what they have that we
[23) could use.

[24] Q  So why do you believe that Centerior —
[25) that the First Energy merger might resuit

saying it could go up or down. I don't
know.

Can you provide any factors that you might
expect would cause it to go up or down?

I don’t know. Are we talking about
Eastlake here?

Yes. Let's start with Eastlake.

Well, Eastlake is a more cfficient plant
than one of theirs and it could
potentially go up. If Bastlake’s a lesser
efficicnt plant, than there’s — it conld
go down and it could stay the same.

And by efficiency, what do you mean?

Total cost.

Per kilowatt produced?

Cents per kilowatt hour.

So in terms of cents per kilowatt hour, do
you have any idea how Eastlake stacks up
against any of Ohic Edison's plants?

Yeah, I'm not sure,

Do you have any idea how Eastlake stacks
up with respect to the industry in
general?

I'm not — I don't recall at this tme,

no.
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[1] Q Do you believe that the cents per kilowart
[2] hour for Eastlake is above average or

[ 3} below average?

i4] . MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[ 5] to relevance to this line of

[ 6] questioning. Would you care to

[7] rephrase that question?

[ 8] MR. PERLIS: Are you

[9] instructing the witness not to

[0 answer it?

[11] MR. REGULINSKI: I'm asking
[t2] if you can make the question

[13] televant for him.

[14} MR. PERLIS: T guess [ don't
[15} se¢ why the question is not

[16] relevant.

(17 MR. REGULINSKI: Withont
[18} waiving the objection, the witness
[t9] can answer.

[201 A  Above average to what? I don't know what
[21] you mean,

[22] Q  Above average to other coal fired

[23] generating facilities.

[24] A In the United States? 1 mean, in where?
[25] Makes a big difference.

PAGE 35

{ solicitation that would cover both

(21 Eastlake and Ashtabula?

[3] A  Or any other requirements we determine we
[4] have on the system,

[5] Q  And with respect to Ashtabula, are there
[ 6] particular characteristics, fuel needs

[n that you project in 1998 that wouid

[8) differentiate it from Eastlake?

[9 No. I mean, could you be more specific T
[10] guess?

[11} Does the company - is the company

[t2] considering some passibility of reduced

[13] urilization at either Eastlake or the

[14] Ashtabula units?

[15] A  Ashtabula units now? We were talking just
[16] about 5.

[t77 Q  Ashtabula Number 5.

[18] A  WNot that I'm aware of on Ashtabula 5.
[19] Q  Any — is the company considering any
[20] closure of either of these plants?

[21] A  Not that I'm aware of. Once again, we're
22} just talking about 5 and Eastlake?

231 Q Right

{2 A  No, not that I'm aware of.

[25] Q  And no reduction in the operations, the

PAGE M4

[1] ©Q  Let's say just in Ohio.

[2] A  Justin Ohio, I don’t know.

[3] Q  What about in the mid-west? What about in
[4 the region extending from any adjacent

[ 5] state to Ohio, including Ohio?

[6] A My thought is it would be in the top half.
[71 Q By that, do you mean the more expensive
[ 8] half?

[9] A No, the least; the leas expennive haif,

[10] Q  Now with respect to Ashtabula, are you
[11] aware of whether there are any commitments
2] for the purchase of coal for the Ashtabula
[13] 5 unit tkat extend beyond December 31,
[14] 19972

[151 A  None that I'm aware of.

[16f Q  And how do you uaticipate that Centerior
7 will meets-i-fuel needs at Ashtabula 5
(18} in 19987

[91 A  Once again, if you're referring to, you
[20] know, to get coal for — once again, when
[21] we send out an RFP, we would do mostly
[22) what we did the last ime. Just one

[231 systern RFP specifying all our requirements
24} and soliciting bids at that time also.

[25] Q 3o you would intend to do a joint

PAGE 36

[1] type of operations?

[2] A Yeah. As I zaid earlier, [ doa’t know.

[3] Q  What about other coal fired generating

[4 facilities?

[ 5} MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[ 6 to relevance.
[71 A 1dont know. I'm not doing — you know,
[ 8] T'm in fuel. T'm not doing system

[ %} studies,

1] Q  Okay. Mr. Kovach, how much high sulfur
11] coal is currently being burned at

12} Bastlake?

13] A 1 believe about 7 — depends on any given
14] year. [ mean, with the loads, given

15] loads, T wouid think it's somewhere

[16] between 600 and 850,000.

171 Q  And at Ashmbuls 57

18] A Once again, depending on the different
19] loads, T would think it could be anywhere
20] berween 350, and 500,000; somewhere in
[21] that ballpark,

2] Q  And is all of that high sulfur coal from

23 Ohio sources?

24 A T believe s0.

28] Q  How many different mines supply Ohio high
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{11 Q Right, and your answer was that he it There’s rail contracts that are in there.

[2] prepared the fuel price forecast for the iz} We had spot bids. I mean, they would have

{3] 1995 study. [ 3] had that in the projections.

[4] A  No, I was talking about the 96, who [4] Q  The response says long term coal supply

[5] prepared the 967 {5] contract prices. Do you consider bids,

[6] Q  So Mr. Lang prepared the fuel price [ 6} spot bids, long term coal supply contract

[N forecast for the '06 study? {7 prices?

{8 A  Correct. [8] A No. I mean the response might not be —

[99 Q  And did you review that fuel price {91 Q  Well, it might not be what, sir?

[10] forecast? [10] A I'm not responsible for these, right? I
[11j A Yes. [1] was nat the —

[12] Q  And do you know how Mr. Lang — the {121 Q  You said you reviewed Mr, Lang’s coal —

[13] evidence an which be relied upon in making 13 a Price forecasts, yeah.

[14] that fuel forecast? [14] Q  Then how would you characterize the basis
[15] A Yes. [15} for the coal price forecast?
[¢§ < And what was that, sir? [16] A T would - as T stated carlier, it was
[17] A He used an EVA study as the premise and 7] basically a projection by EVA which he had
[18] then he adjusted that based on his [18] done some tweaking to for the coal price
19} knowledge of what he knows going on in the [19] forecast, but any contracts would have
[20] market; makes minor adjustments to that. [20] been — any contracts we had in place
[21]] Q  T'm now making reference to the response {21 wouid be part of that.
f22] of Centerior Energy to the Interrogatories {221 Q  When did EVA produce this forecast?

[23} and document production, number 8 in which [23] A 1don'trecall
[24] Centerior stated, "The coal price forecast [24] ©Q  And what do you think EVA based their
[2s} used in the Supplemental Fuel Switching 125 forecast on in the absence of long term
PAGE 46 PAGE 48
[ 1} Study was developed based upon C.EL’s [1] contracts?

[2] long term coal supply contract prices in [2 MR. REGULINSKIL: Objection.
[3 place on the date the forecast was [3] That's the EVA's forecast, I
[4] prepared.” [4] don’t know if this witness is
[9] Then, "Coal contract prices are ] competent to testify as to what
[ 8] cscalated through the term of each 6] EVA did.

[N contract at an assumed annual escalation 71 Q  Let me rephrase the question. In your
[ 8] rate.” 8] review of the coal price forecast, would
{9 MR. REGULINSKI: Tt also says 9] you have just accepted the EVA analysis
[10] in addidon, a reference — 10] without inquiring into the basis for the
[11] Q “A market price for FOB mine coal prices 11] EVA’s price forecast of what Centerior’s
N2 is developed based upon information 12) coal price costs were going to be?

[13) provided by Energy Ventures Analysis known 13] A There is a basis in the repon.
[t4] as EVA.” (14 Q Did you inquire into what that basis was?

15) With that in mind, Mr. Kovach, you've {15) A 1looked atit. I don't knaw if T

16] previcusly ssated that for Bastlake and [16] thoroughly inquired though.

17] Ashtabuls, there are no long term coal 17 Q  And do you recall what that basis was?
[t8] supply contracts in place. So could you [18] A No. :
[19] please tell me how it is — on what basis {191 Q T asked you before whether Mr. Fink was-
20] the Suppiemental Fuel Switching Study {20] at all involved in the 1996 Suppiemental
21} determined coal price forecasts when there [21] Fuel Switching Study. Was he?

22] are no long term contracts for Eastlake or [22] A  Once again, [ have to say what his
23] Ashtabula? [23) involvement was before I came down there,
2] A Well, this study was done in 1996 and we [24] I don’t know. You know, he could have
[25) had a rail contract in 1996, you know. {25] casily been involved. You'd have to ask

——
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[ 1] Q And are you referring here generally to
{?2] what might be called integrated resource
{3 plan models?

[4 A Yes. _

[55 Q And PROMOD; dispatch modeis?

[6] A  That's one of them,

[71 Q  And there are other models as well?

[8 A  Yeah, there's a lot,

[99 Q  And you wouid have cxpected all of those
[10] models to have been utilized in the

[11] preparation of the 1996 Supplemental Fuel
121 Switching Study?

[13) MR, REGULINSKI: Objection.
[14] Objection. This is not the

[15] witness that prepared or

[16] coordinate the 96 study. What he
[17] wouid expect to have been used is
[18] not relevant, and 1 believe you're
[19] badgering this witness now asking
20} him questions that do not relate
21} ta the study.

[22] The witness is available for

(23 deposition who coordinated and
(24] prepared the study and is

[25] responsible for that study.
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Q
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o
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And would you have expected the
projections of load growth for the company
to have changed between January 20, 1995,
and October 1, 19967

1 don't know.

Would you have expected there to have been
any factors that might have affected load
growth projections, cause them to change
between January 20, 1995 and October 1,
19967

I don't know. [ doo’t know.

Weil, what are the major factors that
determine load growth projections for
a company?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
Relevance. Without waiving the
objection.

I'm oot here to talk about load growth. I
don’t know.

Mr. Kovach, does the load growth factor
into the supplemental - does the forecast
of load growth factor in at all in the
Supplemental Fuct Switching Study?

Yes, I would think it factors in.

And why would it factor in, sir?
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[1] MR. PERLIS: Well, I intend
[2] to ask Mr. Hoag a question along
3] the same lines for what he did,

[4] but I'm asking Mr, Kovach to

[5] claborate on his earlier response

[ 6] that he would have expected all of
(7 the required updates to be

[ 8 undertaken, given that he was the

[ 91 coordinator of the first repont.

[10] 1 think it is fair to inquite

f11] of him as a witness what he would
12} have expected to have been

[13) analyzed.

[14] MR. REGULINSKI: May we have
[i5] the question re-read, please?

(6] RO

"yl (Record read.)

18] - -

[19) MR. REGULINSKI: Without
[20] waiving the objection, let the

21} Witness answer.

(221 A  Notall of them. There’s a lot of models.
(23] You pick one or two you use in your

24} company, so whatever be used, T wounid have
[25) expected would have been updated.
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Amount of tons of coal would give — it
would affect tons of coal burned,

And that would in turn affect perhaps the
number of allowances the company aeeded to
have?

It could. Yeah, it could. I don’t know.

Okay. So what are some of the factors
that you would expect to influence load
growth projections for the company?

I don’t know.

Would projections of consumer demand for
power be one such factor?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
asked and anawered. He said he
doesn't know.

Let me rephrase it. When you said you
don't know, you don't know because you are
unfamiliar with the factors that might
effect load growth, or you're just not
sure which ones have been evaluated for
the 1996 study?

P'm not the witness on that.

MR. PERLIS: Can we go off
the record for a moment?

MR, REGULINSKI: Yes.
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5] A

(Short recess had.)

M. Kovach, we've returned after a brief
recess, and I world like to renew a line
of inquiry with a new question if T might,

In your capacity now as Manager of
Fue)] Planning and Supply, do you have
occasion to inquire as to the company's
projections of load growth?

There could be occasions. T haven’t since
I've been down there inquired into their
projections of load growth.

In your prior capacity as the Manager of
Resource Planning, would that have been an
area within your expertise and competence,
the evaluation of load growth forecasts of
the company?

Maybe. I'm not quite sure how to answer
that,

Weli, Mr. Kovach, could you describe for
me some factors, the major factors that
you think affect forecasts of load growth
for Centerior Energy Corporation?

T could give you some thoughts I had. T
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[1] effects of competition on that that may
[2] emerge on load growth?

[3] A Tt could be, you know,

[4 Q  What about the ability of Centerior to

[ 5] purchase power from other sources, in

[ 6] effect displacing its own generation? Was
[7] that a factor that would be considered in
[ 8] projection of load?

No, T don't know why.
What — how do you define the term load?
The load; the clectricity use within your

A
Q
A
[12] defined service territory.
{13] Q  How do you define electricity produced at
[14] your generating piants?
[15] A  Generation.
[16] @  Okay. Do you believe that the
7 availability of purchased power would
(18] effect the utilizarion of generation
{19] facilities of Centerior?
[200 A  Yeah, it could affect your generation. It
[21] has nothing to do with your load forecast.
[22) T mean, [ didn't understand what you were ﬁ
[23) asking.
[24] Q  Perhaps my question was inartful,
{25] Do you believe that both — that load
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izl Q
[3] A

B
o>

mean I'm not sure they're right.

Yes.

I would think population of your service
territory is one of them. If you know of
any potential new development coming in,
a9 far as industrial development,
something along those lines. Those are
prabably two of the biggest, I would
think.

Do you believe that the onset of
competition is another factor that would
be relevant to determinations of load
growth?

Tt depends on what kind of load forecast
you're doing I guess, I'm talking about
the service territory load forecast, 50 —

Right. With respect to the Supplemental
Fuel Switching Study, does it rely on a
projection of load over the full 20 year
period of the study?

Yes.

So, in the context of a 20 year load
growth analysis, do you consider it — to
the best of your kaowiedge, do you
consider it relevant to consider the
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[1] growth will affect the amount of emissions
[2 that the company system-wide would have?
[3 A It could,

[4 Q  And aiso the level of generation, the

[ 5] operation of the generating facilities

[ 8] would affect the level of emissions?

[7 A Yeah. Once again, it could, yeah.

[8 Q  Ts there any way in which the capacity

{9 utilization of your generating plants

[10] would not affect the output of emissions?
1" A Well, I could think —~ yezh, off the top
12 of my head, [ don't know what waa done, 1
[13 could just give you a case where, for

[14) example, you raised the capacity factors
15] on non-phase one effective units and

{16} lowered them on phase one effective.

L] That’s a case right there where, you know,
[18] in the same proportion where it could have
[19] no effect at all on what went on.

[20 Q  Butin terms of the total generating

[21] capacity, the total generating utilization
[22) of generating capacity, that would affect
[23] emission levels?

[24} MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[25] to relevance on total gencration.
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[1] We are focuasing on two generation [1] Q And do you believe that the — to the best
{2 facilities. Without waiving the {2) of your knowledge now, do you believe that
[ 3} objection, I'll let the witness {3] the Supplemental Fuel Switching Study
[4] respond., [ 4} could take into account the likely effects
[S] A  Again, I didn't - could you repeat the [ 5} or possibie effects of competition on the
[ 6] question again? (6 ability of Centerior to sell power in
[N Let me approach it from a different [7 other jurisdictions?
[ 8] direction. The ¢mission allowance nceds [ 8] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
[ 9} of Centerior are determined on & unit [9] to relevance. Without waiving the
[10] basis, or on a system basis? [0} abjection, I'll let the witness
[11] A System. [11] respond.
[12] Q  So looking at the systems needs for [12] I'm not sure to0 what extent it was taken
[13] emission allowance, is the systems needs [13] into account,
{14) affected by system generation levels? [14] Do you believe that it should have been
[15] A Yeah, it should be. [15} taken into account?
[16]1 Q@  Can you identify any significant factors [16] MR. REGULINSKI: Same
[17} that you think are likely 1o affect the na objection. Without waiving,
[18] level of generation production at [18] A T don't know.
[t9] Centerior's plants? [19] Q Weil, Mr. Kavach, if the total level of
[20} MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have {20] generation matters to the allowance needs
21 that gquestion read back to us, 211 and competition affects — both
[22] please? [22] opportunities and challenges affect what
[23) --- [23] your generation ievel might be, isn't it
[24] {Record read.) [24] sort of obvious that the presence of
[25) .. 25 competition will have an affect on the

k|
»

I den't know. T don’t know.

Will load growth be such a factor?

Yeah. Our ioad growth could be, yeah.

Could competition be such a factor?

T don't know.

If Centerior's service territory is opened
to other competing suppliers of power,
might that affect the level of both the
load as Centerior's load as well as ity
generating?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
to relevance, Without waiving the
objection, the witness can angwer.

It could. Tt coukl go up or it could go
down.

How might it go up?

If our service territory was opened up, T
would assume everyone around us was and we
would have the opportunity w sell there.

I mean so it could ectually increase.

And would that be most likely 1o happen if
your costs were such that you could offer
the power at attractive prices in other
utility service territories?

Tt could.

A

A

allowance needs for the company?

It could. As we said, T mean it could.
You couid need more allowances, you could
need less, [t just depends on what's
going to happen.

You might need more, you might need less
but do you not think that the company
should determine whether it's going ta be
more or less under different scenarios?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
This question's been asked and
answered. The witness has
responded he doesn’t know.

MR. PERLIS: Michacl, he
just —

MR. REGULINSKI: Without
waiving the objection, we will let
the witness respond again to the
same question.

Could you repeat the what the question
was?

(Record read.)

Yeah, I don’t know. It could be looked at
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as an uncertainty analysis. 1I’'m not sure.
You'd have 10 ask Rich if he had done that
or not.

Okay. You mentioned before that one
possible scenario’is that Centerior would
be able 1o sel! power in other
jurisdictions.

Yeah, veah.

And do you think that the potential for
sales by Centerior will depend upon the
cost structure of the generating
facilities and their fuel costs?

That would be a factor, yeah.

And do you know how Centerior's — do you
know how the Eastlake plant’s cost
structire compares to — let me rephrase
this question. Let me start over again,

Earlier you stated that you thought
that the Eastlake plant had below aversge
costs compared to the region of states
adjacent to Ohio. Do you recall giving
that answer?

T don't know if it was in those exact
words, but eiuding to the fact that if,
you know, T would guesa that they're in
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steps in making sales of power to recover
the costs of emission allowances
associated with those sales?

I don’t know.

Would you say that the potential for
sales, either wholesale or retail outside
your service territory are significant?

Qnce again, what do you mean by
significant?

Do you believe that in the future, the
advent of competition will increase the
significance of outside sales of power
cither at wholesale or at retail?

Yeah, [ would agree it will increase in
significance. Wherever that ievel is now,
1 don't know.

As it increases in significance, will that
affect the allowance requirements of
Centerior?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,

Yeah, it could.

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
to reievance. Without waiving the
objection, I'll let the witness
respond.

Q
A

Q

folr 4

the better half, T mean.

That’s Eastlake; what about Aghtabula?

I'm not sure about that.

Unit 5. What don't you knaw abaut
Ashtabula that you do know about Eastlake
that ailows you to say that Eastiake would
be in the better half, but you're not sure
about Ashtabyla?

I'm giving you my basic feeling and in
general, it seems that the overall fuel
cost at Eastlake was lower than Ashtabula
in the past or numbers T may have seen.

Now to the extent that Centerior would
sell power in other jurisdictions to other
customers, would Centerior expect its
customers to.pay for the emission
allowance requircments associated with
that power?

MR. REGULINSKL: Objection as
to relevance and speculative
nature of the question, Without
waiving the objection, T'll let
the witness angwer.
1 don't know what we would, you know.
Do you know if the company has taken any

ES
o> o>

B
>

Tt could. I don’t know.

You stated before that you thought
Aghtabula’s costs were above Eastlake's in
the past, correct?

Yeah, I'm not — once again, I'm not sure
those were the exact words but —

‘What about Centerior's other plants,
Bayshore and Avon Lake, T believe they
were?

MR. REGULINSKI: Avon Lake.
Objection as to relevance.
Without waiving the objection.

I'm not sure.

You're not sure about either one of them
and where they compare in costs?

Not really, no.

Do you believe that in the worid of more
competition, that Centerior might be :
purchasing power from incrcasing the
significance of purchase power from other
sources?

They could be, 1 don't know,

If Centerior were to increase its
purchases of power from other sources,
would that affect the allowance

Robert J. Rua & Associates



Robert J, Rua & Associuies

requirements of the Centerior system?

If they did, it could affect the allowance
requirements, yeah.

So do you think that in preparing the
supplemental - a 20 year — in preparing
a 20 year forecast of emission allowance
requirements, that you would take into
accaunt the likely significance of
increased purchases of power from outside
the Centerior system?

MR. REGULINSKI: Obijection,
relevance, Without waiving the
abjection.

That could be an uncertainty. Once again,
I'm not sure what they iook at.

With the advent of competition, do you
belicve that it becomes more likely that
Centerior wili reduce utlization of its
generating facilitics?

As T said earlier, I don’t know. Tt could
increase. 1 don’t know.

As to the higher cost of Centerior
facilities as opposed to the system wide
ones, looking at it system wide, just
considering the higher cost of the
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[1 which C.E.I. might consider retiring coal
[2] fired units because costs were too high?
[3 A There could be.

[ 4] Q  To your knowledge, has C.E.I. considered
[5] such retirements of any of its coal fired

[ 6] generation facilitics?

[7] A My understanding is we are mothballing a
[ 8] unit at Avon Lake and at Ashtabula C
[9] plant; certain units ar Ashtabula C piant.
[} Q And is that because their costs were too
[11] high relative to the costs of other units
[12] and the system load?

[13] A Yeah, I don't know the exact reason, A
[14] lot of it was age of units, is what I

[15] wouid guess. The age of the units,

[16] Q  Was there a reduced need for those units?
[171 A Not that I'm aware of, no.

[18] Q  Werc there — do you think there is any
{19] likelihood that additional coal fired

[20] units might be retired or substantiaily

[2t] reduced in utilization in future years?

[22] A  AgT said, and I keep saying, I don't

[23) know. They could increase, they could go
[24} down. T don't know.

[25) Q  When you prepared the 1995 — when you

o>

Centerior facilities, do you think it’s
more likely that they would increase their
production level or decrease with the
advent of competition?

They could increase. 1 mean when I'm
talking about this, I'm looking at, you
know, thinking of historical costs, and
those included, you know, some higher
price fuel contracts that are ending or
over with, so, you know, that's what I'm
logking back at. As far as how it looks
now, I'm not surc what would happen.

Based on historical coal prices, and some
eacalation of those coal prices, do you
think that the higher price — the higher
cost Centerior units would face increased
utilization -ordecreased utilization with
the advent of competition?

I don't know.

What factors might C.E.I. consider in
determining whether or not to reduce
utilization of a particular plant, coal
fired plant?

Total cost, I would think.

And would there be circumstances under
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[1] coordinated the 1995 Environmental

[ 2} Planning Review, did the company look at
[3] the zize of its emission allowance bank?

4] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as
to relevance. Without waiving the
objection, let the witness

7 respond.

8] A I'm sure it was looked at, yes.

9] Q  And what were the factors considered in
[10] determining the appropriate emission

1] allowance bank?

12] A 1 don't recall. Rich Hoag had done that.
{13] And, you knaw, that's a question more
[t4] appropriate to ask him. [ don't remember.
[15] Q Do you recall whether outside cxperts or
[16] consultants were retained to assist the
nn company in evaluating its allowance bank?
18] MR. REGULINSKI: For the '95
19] study we're sill talking about?
20] MR. PERLIS: Yes.
[21] A 1 don't remember. There could have been.
22] Q Do you know how C.BE.L.'s emission
[23] gllowance bank compares to other coal
24) fired utilities?
25] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
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[1]) relevance. Without waiving the [1] Q  Are there other people within the company
2] objection. [2] who you think might be able to evaluate
I3 A Ne. [ 3} Centerior's emission allowance banking
[4) Q Do you know what steps, if any, the [ 4] strategics as compared to other urilities’
[ s} company has tak?n to re-evaluate its [5] banking strategics?
[ 8] emisgion allowance bank since the January [6] A  Yesah, Rich might do it, T would think,
[ 7 20, 1995 study? [7] @  Other than Mr. Hoag?
[8] A  No,Idon't recall at this time and once [8] A 1don't know of anyone clse.
[9] again, Rich might be able to tell you ail [9] MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go
[0} that. f10} oif the record for a moment,
flf] Q@  Which other individuals within the f11] please?
2] Centerior company are familiar with the [12] MR. PERLIS: Yes,
[13] allowance banking decisions in the [13] -e-
f14} company? [14] (Discussion off the record.)
[15] A Once again, that's a question Rich would [15] --- |
[16] ask - you'd be able to ask him. T'm not [16] MR. PERLIS: We're back on
7} sure who he discusses that with. He is [ the record.
[18] the allowance manager also of the [18] BY MR. PERLIS:
[19} corporation. 199 © Do you have any knowledge or views as to
[200 Q Do you have any knowledge or view on [20] whether C.E.1.’s emission allowance bank
[21) whether C.E.I.’s bank in the first decade [21] at the end of phase one would be
[22] of phase two is greater or less than any [22] significantly greater if the fuel
(23] other Ohio utility? 23] switching that is recommended in the study
[24] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, [24) is undertaken as opposed to the continued
[25) relevance. Without waiving the [25] burning of high sulfur coal at current

[1]
[2]
[3]
[4]
5]
[ 6]

—
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A

. objection,

No, I doa't know, and T don’t reaily have
any view,

Compared to any other utilities east of
the Mississippi River?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
relevance. Without waiving the
objection.

No, I'm not sure. I've never scen a layed
out projection for the utilities of what
their banks are in each year, at least
that T can recall.

Can you identify any factors that you
think might jusify C.E.I. having the
largest bank of allowances of any phase
one utility?__

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Assumes a fact not in evidence.

Well, let's assume that that were the
case. Can you imagine what the factors
are that would cause C.B.I. to have among
the largest banks of emission allownnces?

No, T can’t identify them right now. And
once again, I would thipk that would be a
question Rich could answer.
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[1] levels?

[2] A No. What do you mean by views? I mean
[3] can you be more — I don't know.

[4] Q Do you believe that C.E.I. will have a

[5] significantly larger emission allowance

[6l bank at the end of phase one if as

[T recommended in the Supplemental Fuel

(8] Switching Study, C.E.I. switches to lower
9 sulfur coal coals in place of the high

101 sulfur coals that it's historically been

] using?

[12] A  Yeah, I don't know how to answer that. My
[13) thought wauld be whatever was in that

[14] study reflects the fuel switching.

f15] Q And I'm asking you whether you think that
[16] is a significant increase in the bank az a

n result of that fuel switching?

[18] MR. REGULINSKIL: Compared to
[19] what the Commission has reviewed
[20] previously? Compared to what?

[21] MR. PERLIS: No, I'm asking
{221 for Mr. Kovach's characterization

[23} as 10 Whether he views the bank

[241 increase as significant.

[25] A 1 don't even recall the numbers, but just
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[1] A  How much this effects that or not. [t be in a position 1o change back and forth,
[2] Q I'm oot talking about the SIP limits. [2] if that's possible.

[ 3] Let's just talk about the study, the 1996 [3] Q So you want to make the comparison on a
[4] study. [4] year by year basis rather than a five year

[ 5] Doesn't the 1996 study show that the [ 5} or a ten year at a time basis?

[ 6] delivered cost of lower sulfur coal is [6] A  Welil, we want to position ourselves to be
{7 higher than 6.0 coal? [7 able to, you know, take advantage of any
[8] A  Yes. [ 8] changes, if that’s possible.

[81 Q  Those higher costs for purchasing the low [9] Q So in some future year, if you find in the
[10} and medium suifur coal are incurred in the fio} future year that the evaluated cost of the
f11] year in which you make the fuel switch; is [11] higher sulfur coal is cheaper than the

2] that not correct? [12) evaluated cost of the lower sulfur coal,
[13] A Yes [13] you would want to be able to purchase the
[t14] Q  And the allowance — the increase in [14] higher sulfur coai?

[15] allowances that that provides for your [15] A  If possible, yeah.

[16] bank, those allowances might not be used [160 Q  An when you're making the comparison of
[17] until some future year; is that not also [17] the evaluated costs of coal, you would

[18] correct? [18] like to make it as of the year in which

[19] A  Might. I'm not sure, you know. (19] you are purchasing the coal?

[20f Q  To the extent the nliowances were used in [201 A  I'm nat sure [ understand that one, what
[21] some future year, is there not a carrying [21] you were saying there.

{22] cost, an implicit cost of funds incurred 22] When you make your decision - let me
[23] by the company to switch the fuel to build (23] rephrase the question.

[24) the bank? {24] When you make the decision today as
[25] A  There could be a camying cost. I'm not [25) to whether or not you're going to fuel
PAGE 82 PAGE 84

{1] familiar with it. T doa’t know what that [1] switch, are you projecting the evaluated
[2) is, and once again, maybe Mr, Hoag can [2) cost against the evaiuated cost today for
i3 answer thar. {3) high sulfur coal, or the evaluated cost in
[4] Q  The report focuses oo evaluated cost of {4 future years for the high sulfur coal?

[5) coal. Would you please describe what [ 5] A I'm not mre how to answer that. When

[ 6} evaluated cost, how it differs from [ 6] we're using those projections, each year
[7 delivered cost? ] has its own projection and as far as the
[8 A  For the terms of this report, 1 believe [ 8] study, 1 think what was done and once

[9] evaluated cost was putting in an emission [9] again, you'd have to ask Rich what they
[t0] ailowance adder. And, you know, doing BTU [0} looked at just for a 20 year period. Does
[11] equivalents of all, you know, the [1} that answer what you're asking?

2} different types of coals. [121 Q@ T'm not asking 30 much with respect to the
[13] Q  Anddo you understand the report's basic [13] study. I'm asking in terns of the

[14] conclusion to be that if the fuel [14] planning process, should evaluated cost of
[15) switch — if the evatusted cost of fuel [15] coal, comparing the low sulfur option with
[16} switching of the lower sulfur coal is [16) the higher sulfur option today, are you
7 lower than the evaluated all-in cost of [ comparing the evaluated cost of the high
[18] the higher sulfur coal, then the fuel [18] sulfur coal or rather of the allowances

[19} switch should be made? 9] using the today's allowance prices, or

[20] Almost. T agree with that up 0 a point. [20] future years' allowance prices?
[21] Q  What point don't you agree with it? [21] A  Assuming T understend what you're asking,
[22] As we stated in the report, we also want [22] you would be using today’s allowance
[23] to tcmain Fexibie to things that can 231 prices; the most current allowance
[24] happen. Therefore you don't — if yon see [24] projection.
[25] & changing from year t0 year, we want to [25] Q  When you increase the bank of gllowances,
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some of those allowances are going to be
used in a future year, are they not?

Yeah, I would assume,

And the cost incurred to increase that
bank was a curréat fuel cost. The higher
fuel cost for the lower sulfur coal, the
delivered fuel cost, than the higher
sulfur coal, comect?

If it was necessariiy that case?

Yes.

Once again, like 1 said, I'm not sure it
necessarily has to be that case. For this
study it’s that case, but when you
actually solicit bids we go outs and we
get a whole range and they do not just
fall in the order, 30 T mean T've said
that pumerous times now.

For the allowances that are being banked
and to be used in future years, wouldn't
you congider the allowance prices in the
future years to be the relevant factor in
determining the evaluated cost of a high
sulfur coal option rather than today’s?

Weil, we're going back to two questions
before I think and I'm still not sure T
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projection of future market prices of
allowances?

That's not my area but I'll say, yeah. 1
mean we would probably do it based on
future projected prices but once again,
you'd have to ask Rich. He's really the
one doing that.

So if today's emission allowance prices
were less than present value terms, what
you wouid expect allowances to be worth in
the future, or to cost in the future,
shouid C.E.I. be making a decision to
purchase ailowances to build the bank?

I'm — I don’t know. I'm not sure.

Would the decision be any different than
the decision made to fuel switch to be
abie to build the bank?

Yeah, it could be. I'm not sure.

What factors might affect it?

1 don't know.

Is the decision to buy an allowance any
different in economic terms than the
decigion to incur additional delivered
fuet costs today to obtain the benefits of
an increased bank of allowances?

fol Nl

understood what you were talking about,

We have an allowance projection in
each year, and you have a fuel projection
in cach year and you're going to use that
projection in cach year when you're
evaluating that year. ls that what you're
asking? I'm not —

No, I'm asking —

-~ understanding.

Ut asking that if you think emission
aliowance prices in the future are going
to be very expensive compared to today,
that iy, they increase at & faster rate
than your coal prices are increasing,
would that affect the way you evsluate the
coal optiond.joday?

The only way I can answer that, it could
be because if that's what you truly
believe that it was going to escalate at a
much fagter rate than it is, then that
would be in your base projection and
that's what you'd be working off of.

Do you believe that C.E.L should be
making decisions on whether it purchases
or sclis emission allowances based on its

=
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Once again, I'm not exactly sure how it's
treated economically, so [ don't know,
You've previously agreed that there may be
under some circumstances higher delivered
fuel costs for the medium and low suifur
coal.

Couid be.

Than for the higher suifur coal.

Right.

And that incurring that cost allows you to
have & greater bank of aliowances for use
in the future, correct?

Mm-hmm.

Another way to get a greater bank of
allowances for use in the future is to
purchase allowances in the market?

Right.

Economically, is the decision to buy an
allowance versus the decision to incur
increased delivered fuel costs any
different economically?

{ don't know. It could be. 1 don't knaw
what the — let me say, I'm not totally
familiar. T don't have memorized what the
recovery mechanism is for allowances and
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[1] how that's treated. If you're just asking
{2) pure analysis wise, it could be, but, you
(3] know.

[4 Q Ina world in which your rates were not
[s] regulated as a cost of service matter,

[ 6] would there be any difference economically
[7 between buying ah allowance to increase

[ 8] your bank or incurring higher delivered
{9l Fuel costs 1o increase your bank?

1o MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
{11] relevance. Without waiving the

[12] objection.

(13 A  Tdon't know. There could be.

[t Q  What might that be? What differences?
[15] A  You know, T don't know what the situation
[16] is.

171 Q  Well, earlier you said that the one

[t8) difference you could imagine was the way
[19] in which the allowance purchases were

[20} treated for rate purposcs, and whether

[21] that was different from the delivered fuel
[22] costs, Assuming we're not in a regulated
(23} environment, what difference might there
[24] be?

[25] A 1 don't know what kind of deal you could
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and Ashtabula separately, although the
answer may be the same.

Does that apply both for high sulfur
coal as well as iow and medium sulfur
¢oal? That there are no longer term low
or medium suifur coal contracts that will
be in place after December 31, 19977

Unless I'm forgetting something, there’s
nothing at Ashtabula that I know of.

And same with the Eastlake?

There's no contract for Eastlake piant,
no.

And when you say Ashtabula, does that
refer to 5 through 9 or just unit 5?7

I'm thinking in terms of 5.

Right. With respect to Ashtabula units 6
through 9, those are phase two units,
correct?

Yeah.

Do they have any long term coal contracts?

No, not that I'm aware of.

They, too, have no in place contracts that
will be in effect after December 31, 19977

Ne.

Okay. Thank you. Do you know if
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[1] have worked out, If you're just giving
[2] cash for cach right up at the same time,

[ 3 there probably won’t be a differcuce,

[4 MR. PERLIS: Now I think

[ 5 we'te pretty close to 12:25,

[ 6] probably a littde past it, so

[N perhaps this is when we should

[8] take a break,

[9 MR. REGULINSKI: Off the
[10} recard, please.

11} -.--

[12} (Luncheon recess had.)

13] ---

[14] MR. PERLIS: We're resuming
[15] the deposition of Mr. Kovach.

[16] -+HE WITNESS: Kovach.

[171 BY MR. PERLIS:

[18] Q 1 want to return to one question that 1
9l asked sort of at the outset this morning,
[20} but I want to make sure [ asked the right
211 question and for the answer that you gave.
[22] You stated earlier that Centerior has
[23] no coal contracts for Eastlake or

[24] Ashubula § after December 31, 1997. That
(23] ig for - I'm asking this now for Eastlake

Centerior bas any formal guidclines
governing when it would purchase or seil
emission allowances?

I believe we have guidelines, but once
again, that's Rich's area and, you know,
he would be able to let you know if we
have them and what they are.

But for the environmental compliance
planning process that’s before the Public
Utilities Commission, does Centerior have
guidelines as to determining when you will
switch fuels from one grade of sulfur to
another?

Are you asking does the PUCO have
guidelines?

No, does Centerior have guidelines for
¢riteria for switching fuel other than
what's been presented in the Supplemental *
Fuel Switching Smdy to PUCO?

Other than what's been presented, our
guideline is t0 make sure we're complying
with clean air in the most effective way.

Assuming you are complying with the clean
air, I'm presuming there would be multiple
ways you could comply with SIP limits with
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different mixes of coal at different
units; is that not correct?

You couid.

Okay. Does Centerior have any written
guidelines that govern the fuel choices,
fuel switching, if you will, fuel
switching opportunities, if you will, that
are all within the SIP guidelines?

We have a procedures manual which, you
know, outlines some things but basically
the guideline is you procure the most cost
effective manner looking at an evaluated
cost for coal.

And by evaluated cost, you mean what for
in this context?

Evaluated, the way I look at it can mean a
couple things and you would probably want
to evaluate things a couple different
ways.

Like in the context of this report,
we said earlier that the table of
evaluated cost took into account under
evaluated cost for BTU evaluation. When
you actually get into bids, you actually
have ash, you might throw in grind, you
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what is our philosophy and what should it
be.

Do I take it from the fact that Eastlake
and Ashtabuia units have no contracts
going out after December 31, 1997, and
today being April, 1997, that the
company's philosophy now is disfavoring
longer term commitments and is more
focussed on spot opportunities in the coal
market?

I don't know if that would be a sole
conclusion.

Has there ever been & time in the past
that you're aware of when either the
Eastlake plant or any of the units at
Ashtabulz have been without coal contracts
covering at least a portion of their needs
that extend for more than 12 months?

T don’t know that. I'm not aware of that,
you know.

Why ig it that the company is ~ seems to
be focussed more now on spot purchasing of
coal rather than longer term commitments?

Well, as I stated earlier, with the
upcoming merger, there could be more

o » o @

might throw in moisture or numerous other
things.

And do criteria — does Centerior have
criteria guidelines or manuals that
provide criteria for determining whether
you will enter into long tertn versus short
term versus spot contracts for your
purchasing strategy?

That’s one of the things we're looking at
now as far as —

My question is do you have those written
guidelines now.

I'm not sure if there's written
guidelines,

You've spoke in answer to a previous
question sbeut a procedural manual. Do
you have a procedural manual that relates
to criteria for determining whether you
purchase coal on a short, medium or long
term horizon or a spot basis?

Yeah, I'm not exactly sure what's in that
manual as [ stated carlier. [ mean [
don’t recall exactly what's in there but
that's one of the things that we're
loaking at it right now is re-evaluating

Q>
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opportunity, we feel.

Do vou feel that that merger will be
consummated before January 1, 19987

Ohb, T have no idea. T don’t know.

If you were to go into the market for spot
bids for cosl, starting for the year or
for the first quarter in 1998, when would
you anticipate having to issue those
RFP's?

We were thinking sometme in July, June
July, timeframe.

Do you believe that the merger will be
approved by all regulatory authorities and
in effect by June or July, 19977

{ bave no idea. T don't know.

Has anyone in the company given you any
reason to believe that the merger will be
consummated by June ot July, 19977

Not that I can recall.

So does that mean then that you would
expect to have w go out for bid as
Centerior alone without First Energy or
Ohio Edison?

That's a possibility, yes.

Is it fair to say that it's a strong

Robert J. Rua & Amociates




. Robert J. Rua & Associates .

o»

£
>O>0>0> O

likelihood?

Tt could be.

Could be a strong likelihood?

Yeah.

Da you know thie status of the merger
application at this time?

MR. REGULINSKIE: Objection,
relevance, Without waiving the
abjection.

No.

If you were to go out on your own, is
there any way that the buying power of
QOhio Edison and Centerior could be
combined before the merger becomes
effective?

I have no idea. T dont know.

Has Centerior ever purchased coal with
another company?

Not that [ have knowledge of.

Da you think —

You mean in combination with like another?

Right.

A joint?

Joint purchase of coal.
Not that I recall, no.

PAGE 99

[t] to be focussed on a short term horizon a
f2] spot hatizon for coal?

[3] A T guess yon said there’s - can you repeat
[ 4] what you said?

[§] Q  Yes, let me rephrase it. That was a very
[ 6] lengthy staterent in the form of a

[N question.

[ 8] When I asked earlier as to what the
[9] basis was for the company’s decigion —
[10] secming decision to focus on spot

[11] purchases of coal rather than longer term
[12] purchases, the first factor you mentioned
[13] was the possibifity of the merger, the

[14] First Energy merger providing

ns opportunities.

[16] In subsequent questioning, you stated
17 that it could be substantially likely that
[18] the merger will not occur by the time that
[19] you have to prepare your first bid.

[20] That being so, what other factors are
[21] there that would cause the solicitation to
[22) be a short, spot term spot solicitation?

[23] A  Increased flexibility.
[24] Q  What do you mean by increased flexibility?
[25] A  Having more options available to you
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Have you ever gotten counseled that that
would be legal for the company to combine
with another?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.

MR. PERLIS: Tm simply
asking if he's received advice of
counsel on this, not what the
counsel’s advice is.

MR. REGULINSKE: With that
clarification, T'll permit the
question,

No, I've never talked 1o anybody about
that.

So let me return then to the question as
to why the company is more focussed on
short term-purchases, spot purchases in
particular in one year horizons, rather
than longer term horizons for the purchase
of coal.

You stated that it was in part
because of the First Energy merger. It
now seems it could be substanvially tikely
that that merger won't occur.

Let’s assume it doean’t occur. What
other ressons wouid there be for Centerior
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[1] instead of being contracted long terr.
2] Q  And what would the advantage of that those
3) options be? What's the advantages of the
4) flexibility?

{51 A You could be more responsive to changing
market conditions.

71 Q@  More responsive in terms of mzking

8] commitments of cash that’s required to

9 purchase the coal?

(10] A  Yeah, that definitely could be one thing,

(1] yes.

{121 Q  And why in the past do you think the

[13] company may have thought that conditions
{14) were appropriate for longer tesm purchases
[15] of coal?

{16] A T don’t know.

[17] Q  Can you imagine any factors why Centerior
18] might in the future want tc look at longer
[19] term purchases of coal?

[20] A None come right to mind, but I'm sure

[21) there are some reasons.

{22 Q  And why is it advantageous to the company
[23] not to have to make long term commitments J
(24] of cash?

[25] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
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[1}) relevance. Can you tie that into [1} ©Q In your experience, would you say that the
[ coal burning? [2) projections are accurate at least within

{3] Q Yes, to make commitments of cash for the [3] 10 or 15 percent when you're looking at

[ 4] purchase of coal. [ 41 only a one year or two year horizon ahead
[5] A  1f there's a decrcase in coal prices, then [ 5) of you?

[ 6] you don't take advantage of that. [6] A  Oneyear, T don't know. I don't know,
[71 Q  And has there been volatility in coal [7]1 Q Isthere reason to believe though that

[ 8] prices in the recent past? [ 8] sometimes the forecasts - the market

[99 A Yes, there seems to be. [9] changes in 2 way that the forecasts didn’t
{10 Q Do you have reason to believe that there [10} anticipate?

[11] will remain volatility in the coal price [11]] A  Oh, sure.

[12] markets in the future? [12] Q  Sure. Now are you aware of — you said
[13F A TItcould. [13} you were not aware of any written

[14f Q By volatlity, do you mean that prices [14] guidelines on when o purchase or seil
[15] tend to go up and down? [15] emission aflowances. You're not aware if
[16f A  Well, up and down, or go down while your [16] the company has any such guidelines?

(17] cantract price stays up. [17 T said we could. You'd have to ask Rich
[18] @ Mm-bmm. [18] about that.

[19] A  Things along those lines. [199 Q  Right. Now, if the company were to I
[201 Q  Now, the company is regularly making (201 develop guch guidelines or cvaluate the
[21] forecasts of future coal prices. [21] guidelines that it has, would you expect
[22] A Well, what do you mean regulariy? [22} those guidelines to take into account

[23] Q  Does the company make forecasts for [23] volatility in emission allowance prices?

(24] internal planning purposes, fuel [24] A Yeah, it could be one consideration.

[25] purchasing decisions, make forecasts of [25] Q  Wouid you expect it also to take into
PAGE 102 PAGE 104

[1] future coal prices? [t account the reliability, the ability of

[2] A Yes. [2] forecasts to actually track what happens
[3] Q Does the company rely on outside [3 in the future?

[ 4] consultants to do that on a regular basia? [4 A That could also be something, yes.

[5] A  Forinput, yes. Ly Q  When the company makes fuel purchasing
[6] Q  And one such consultant’s forecast was 6] decigions, does it ever explicitly take

(N utilized in the 1996 supplemental study; 7] into account the company’s cost of capital
[8] is that correct? for incurring higher costs today for some
[9] A Yes, an [ stated, EVA, 9] future beaefit?

[10] Q  Were there other allowance — I mean other 10] A  Not that I'm aware of.

[11} coal price projections made by outside 11] Q Do you know what the company’s cost of
12} consultants that were available but not 121 capital is?

13] used in the Supplementsl Fuel Switching {13 A T'mootsure. I think it's about 10

4] Study? 14 percent.
[151 A  There could have been, yeah. 15] Q Do you know if Centerior enters into any
[16) Q  With respact to those projections that are 16} long term power sale agreements?
7 made, | assume the company’s been 17] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[18] making — having projections made for a 18] Relevance.

19] number of years now. [19] MR. PERLIS: Because power of
20] A Yes. [20] sale agreements depend upon the
21} Q Do you track the accuracy of the [21] cost of fuel, T want to sec

22] projections to what actually turns out to [22} whether or not there is a

23] be the case and how accurate the (23] consistency in the plaoning

24] projections tend to be? [24] horizon as utilized by the

25) A [ have never done that, no. [25] company.
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MR. REGULINSKI: T'll allow
the question,

We have a wholesale power section, so
hopefully they are pursuing long term
sales., 1 don’t kdow what any of them are
though.

Do you know if the company has any long
term — you don’t know if the company has
any long term power —

1 think we have some. T don't know what
they are though. I think there's a
couple.,

And when the company considers undertaking
long 1erm power sale commimments, is the
Fuel Department consulied as to the
ability or benefits of such commitments
based on the fuel price projections?

I don’t understand the question.

When the company considers undertaking
long term power purchases or power sales,
is the Fuel Department and are you as the
Fuel Mgnager consulted so as to dring to
bear on that power sale or power purchase
decision expertise that you have regarding
directions of coal markets?
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October 1, 19967

Absolutely.

Since of that time, whenever it was, has
there been any subsequent EVA. study
commissioned?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Relevance.

MR. PERLIS: Let me finish
the question.

MR. REGULINSKI: T know, I'll
let you finish the question.

Have there been any subsequent EVaA
forecasts commissioned with respect to
determine or to predict crisis in the coal
markets in 19987

MR. REGULINSKI: Same
objection. Without waiving, the
witness can answer.

Yeah, 'm not sure. There might be
another projection. If there is, I'm not
using it, or we're not using it for
anything.

Why would you not be using it?

If there is one, I'm not sure when we
wouid have gotten it at that time.
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We're consulted as far as providing the
fuel forecasts that is used in the
analysis and it's really Rich’s section
that does the analysis.

Your section provides the fuel forecasts?

Forecasts, yes.

When you provide those fuel forecasts,
what do you base those fuel forecasts on?
Same things as we've said before. Usually
what we would use is the EVA projection
with some minor changes to it.

Has EVA made & coal price projection for
19987

Well, in terms of the forecasts we have,
it does have a projection for 1998, Is

that what you mean? Is therc a brand new
forecast?

When was that EVA forecast made that
contnins the projection of 19987

You asked that earlier. I'm not sure what
the date of that forecast was.

That's the same EVA forecast that was
utilized in the October 1, 1996 study?

Yeah, to the best of my knowiedge.

So that forecast bad to have pre-dated
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S0 you're going forward, your department's
going forward in its forecasts in
evaluation for the bids, the RFP that
might be put out in June or July without
any EVA projection that's more recent than
the one that was utilized in the study?
I didn't say that. [ said there could be,
you know, If we do that in July, we would
pursue something, If we dan’t have
something newer, we would pursie something
for that.
Can you tell me again why, if at all, you
think the decision to bank allowances for
the long term is different from the
decision to purchase fuel for the long
term?
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
Asked and answered. Ia there
somcthing about his answer you
dida't understand, or we nced to |
go over this again?
MR. PERLIS: I think I should
be given a leeway. I don't
believe T asked the question
exactly this way, and we're son
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of getting close to summing up
right now.

MR. REGULINSKI: Okay. Go
ahead.

Could you repeat that?

Yeah, is there any reason why you believe
that the decision to bank atlowances over
the long term should be any different than
the decision, the criteria used for making
a decision to purchase coal over the long
term?

I have no reasons I can give you right
now,

So that reasons of volatility and inberent
unreliability of forecasts might equally
apply to allowance prices as they do to
coal prices?

It could, yeah.

And the flexibility that is much wanted by
you for coal could exist just as much for
banking allowances?

1t could.

Do you believe that it’s possible within
three to five years that Centerior Energy
or First Energy, if the merger goes
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It was a little different set up because
Rich was in my section at that time so he
basically did ail that, kind of as an
independent. Once again you can ask him
for morec details on how it went and then
when I left, he just maintained all the
responsibilities and so it was more at a
manager level when Rich took over.

Was there a reason why one person was now
being asked to take on multiple
responsibilities that had been shared by
different people in the prior regime?

We're zll being asked to take on more
responsibility the way I see it. Yeah, I
don’t know. There’s less people and the
same amount of work,

Why are there less peopic and the same
amount of work?

Tt just seems like there's less people.

Has the company been trying to reduce the
number of managerial empioyees relative to
the work lpad?

I'm just looking at relative statistics,

I think about four or five years ggo we
had 10,000 employees and we're down to
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through — let’s assume the merger gocs
through — that if the merger goes
through, is there any possibility in your
mind that the generation and distribution
functions of the company would be
effectively disaggregated?

That couid, yeah, that could happen with
ar withour a merger, 1 would assume.

Do you think there's some possibility that
if there were no merger, Centerior would
not be in the generation business three to
five years from now?

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection,
relevance. Without waiving, the
wilness can answer.

Well, 1 would say, no, we would always be
in the generation business, but I mean [
don’t know that.

Can T ask you who replaced you in your
position in power planning as Manager of
Resource Planning, 1 think you called it?

That’s right, yeah. Rich Hoag.

So when you were in that position, you
didn't have responsibility over allowance
banking decisions, and planning?
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6,200 now.

So is it fair 1o say that you're all
spread a little thinner now than you were
before?

You could say that.

And the size of the staff in the Fuel
Planning and Supply ares of the firm, has
that similarly undergone a change where
before, there used to be several people
and now there are fewer people doing the
work?

Secms that there — [ don't know that far
in the future, but scems it's about the
same ievel asg it was before.

I've seen reference in your easlier
depositions to Mr. Salowitz and Mr. Fink.

Mm-hmm.

Do you perform work that each of those -
gentlemen used to do?

I ¢could. 1 mean basically Frank would be
analogous to Mr. Salowitz and Fink. Yeah,
T would be performing a lot of those
duties.

And how much experience did you have
buying coat before you assumed this
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[1} position?

[2] A  Buying coal, [ had no experience buying
(3 coal.

[ 4] Q And Mr. Fink had quite a number of years
[5] buying experience buying coai.

[ 6 A T'm not aware of his experience. 1

[7 couldn’t teil you.

[8] ©Q  Are there other people in your department
[9) junior to you who have extensive

{10] experience in buying coal?

[} A Basically, everyone in our department has
{12} extensive experience buying coal.

[13. Q Do they have extensive experience in

[14) preparing projections of coal prices?

{151 A  Some of them do, yes.

[16) Q@  Who would some of those individuals be?
17} A Well, as [ relayed earlier, Joe Lang was
[18) the one that did this, and 1 think he

[t19) would be the one that has the most

[20} experience as far as putting together

21} forecasts.

{22 Q Do you believe you had more or less

23] experience than Mr. Fink in coal

24} purchasing?

{251 A I honesly don't know. T said I don't
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[1] A Tdon't recall

[2] Q Do you have any idea what the — how EVA
{31 goes about forecasting coal prices?

[4] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
{5} MR. PERLIS: I'm not guite

[ 6] sure what the grounds for the

[ 7] objection is.

[8] MR. REGULINSKIL: This witness
[9] doesa’t work for EVA, It'sa

(10} forecast suppilied by an outside

[t1] consultant. T don't know if —

[12} T'm certain this withess isn't

[13] competent to testify as to EVA's

[14] actions nor is it reievant to this

[15] proceeding.

[16] MR. PERLIS: He hires them,
[n he oversees them. He has some

[18) ability t0 comment upon what he

[19} knows about EVA's basis.

{20] MR, REGULINSKI: They're also
[21] a nationally recognized consulting
22 firm.

[23) MR. PERLIS: 1 don't dispute
[24] that. T'm just asking this

[25] individual management cmployee
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(1 know what his experience was at fuel

[2] before he came there.

{3] Q Do you know if ather utilities have

[4] similarly inexperienced coal buyers

[ 3] managing their fuel departments?

[ 6] MR. REGULINSKL: Objection,
;] relevance.

[ 8] MR. PERLIS: The witness

[9 shook his head saying no. If you
{10] just give me a moment, I'll sce if
[11] I have anything else.

[12] - -

3] (Short recess had.)

4] ---

[15] MR. PERLIS: T do have

(16} another question.

[N Q Eatfier after the lunch break, I asked you
[18} whether EVA had conducted a forecast
(191 subsequent to the one that was retied upon
[20] in the 1996 study.

2] A Mm-hmm.

{2] Q  With respect to the BVA forecast that was
[23] relied upon in this study, do you recail

[24) whether it provides projections of spot

[25) coal prices for 1997, 1998, and 19997
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[1] what his knowledge is of EVA’s

(2] basis for their fuel price

[3] projections.

[ 4) MR. REGULINSKIE: T allow
[ s} the question.

[6] A 1do not know their exact basis for their
i} fuel price projections.

[8 Q If you were going to project fuel prices,
[9] what would you look at?

[10] A  Meaning if I was a consuitant, what would
] I look at?

[t2] Q  No, in your capacity as signing off on the
3] company’s fuel price projections, do you
[14) just automatically send down the road

[15] whatever EVA says?

fi6] A No.

[17] Q  You cxercise some independent judgments
(18] along with all the other individusls like
9] Mr. Lang and others within your company in
[20] your department.

21 A Mm-bhmm.

[22] ©Q  As you exercise that judgment, what arc
[23] the factors that you look at for making
[24] coal projections?

[25] A  Well, I would look at coal publications
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PAGE 1t7 PAGE 119
[1] that give you some indication of what some {1 me if for asking. Bear with me if I ask
[2] pricing is. Basicalty, you couid look at [ 2] it a second time,
[3] some of your past solicitations, talking [3] Do you know what the embedded
[4] to people, you know. [ 4] transportation costs are that were assumed
{s] Q When you received the results of the 1996 { 5} for purposes of the delivered cost of coal
[ 6] solicitation for fourth quarter 1997 of [ 8l in the 1996 srudy?
[n coal — let me start that question over {71 A  Yeah, you did ask me that before and [
18] again, please, 18) said 1 wasn't sure exactly what was used
[9 1 don't recsll the date for when you 19 in there.
[10] issued your RFP, but with respect to the {i0] G  You have some rough sense of it?
{1 RFP that you issued for fourth quarter, [1t] A Of the exact numbers? No.
[12] '97 coal deliveries, what forecasts did [12] Q@  Yeah
(131 you have in you place for coal in that (13 A TIdont
[14) pericd? As you went about setting the {141 Q@ Do you know whether it's ten dollars a
[15) RFP, what coal price forecasts did you 15] ton, or five doilars a ton?
{16} have or did you rely upon? ns] A Wo.
[17 A  We were using this EVA forecast. [171 Q Do you know whether the rail
[18] Q  The same EVA one that's in the 1996 study? [18] transportation costs for unit 5 at
[19] A  Yeah, that I recall, yeah. [19] Ashtabula is different from the Eastlake
[200 Q  And as you evaluated - did you evaluate [20 plant?
[21] the results of the RFP and compgre them to 21] A My recollection is it’s different, yeah.
{22 that coat price forecast? [22] Q@ How much?
[23] A That may bave been done. T did not do [23] A Tdon't know. I know it’s different,
[24] that myself, no. {241 Q  What abeut the difference bstween
[251 Q Do you have any knowledge as to whether or [25] Ashitabula 5 and Ashtabula units 6 to 9, is
PAGE 118 PAGE 120
[1] not the prices for the winning bidders [t there any difference in the ransportation
9 came in above, below or right at what EVA [2 costs for those unita?
[3 forecasted for 1997 prices to be? [3 A T would say, yeah, because Asbtabula 5
[4 1 loaked at that. I don't recall —- no, I [4 right now is rail or truck, and T thought
[ 5] don’t recall at this time; don't know. §] C plant is all truck, so just in that fact
{6] 1s that something that you would consider [ 6] itself.
[7] an important evaluation 1o make as you go [7] Q I'm sorry, which plant is all truck?
[8 forward into the next RFP bid process? [ 8 A You said the smaller, right? C plant is
9] Yeah, yes, to look at that in handling [9 truck delivery.
[10] that. [10] Q 1Is that the same thing as Ashtabula units
m And your knowledge and your expertise and (LK} 6 through 9?
12] the expertise in your whole department, [12] A Yeah. We call that C plant.
[13] are there reasons that you have to believe 3 Q  C plant as in the letter C?
{14 that coal prices may be going down for the (14 A Yeah.
[15] ‘98 bid compared to where they are for 15 Q  So Ashtabula C is all truck and not rail?
(6] year '97 bid] f1sf A Mmhmm.
11 I don't know. They couid be going dawn 177 Q  And so you would expect that
[18] and they could be going up. T don’t know. (18} transportation coats for that arrangement .
9] Q Do you have any reason to believe that 9 to be different than for the rail?
[20] whatever differential there is between the [200 A  Right
[21} high sulfur coal and the medium and lower 211 Q  And Ashtabula unit 5 is a mixture of truck
[22] suifur coals, that that differential will [22) and rail?
[23) either widen or narrow? [23) A Tt's basically rail. T think it could be
[24f A  No, o, nothing that comes to mind, f24] either though.
[25] Q 1 think I asked this before, but forgive [25] Q Looking back at tabie 2 from the

r——
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confidential version -~
MR. PERLIS: Can we go off
the record for a minute, pleasc?
MR. REGULINSKI: Yes.

(Short recess had.)
MR. PERLIS: We're back on
the record now.

Turning your attention to table 2, revised
that was provided as OQVCC-27 in the
document production, we're going to try to
ask this question in a way that doesn't
require you to disclose any confidential
information on that tabie,

So please, in giving your responses,
keep that in mind. Looking at the bottom
of the page, the footnote that is
associated with the column for the
delivered coal cost plus S02 cost for a
3.6 pound coal biend, or mix, I'm not -
the foomote says, "This is based on
alternating burmn at 58 percent 2.5 pound
coal, 16 percent 3.8 pound coal, and 26
percent 6.0 pound coal ”
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[t necessary applicability in the future?

[2] MR. REGULINSKI: Objection.
[3] The difficuity with responding to

[4] that question is that Mr. Kovach

[ 5] has only before him the table that

[ 6] was provided to OVCC counsel under
[71 number 27, and not the question

[ 8] nor the angwer for OVCC number 27,
[9] and I'm wondering if counsel

(10} wouldn't mind, I can show it to

[11} him now the question for OVCC
[t2] number 27 and the response to the
13} Ohio Valley Coal Company

[14] Interrogasory number 27.

[15] MR. PERLIS: Well, I'm not
[16} asking the question that was put

7] in the question 27 of this

[18} witmess. I'm asking a different

[19] question.

[20] MR. REGULINSKI: Yeah, I
[21) thought it was the same question.
22} MR. PERLIS: No. I'm asking
[231 a very different question.

{24} MR. REGULINSKI: Could you
[25] restate the question for me,
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o»

o>

or L» L»

And I take it from the next sentence
in this footnote that these percentages
are basced on historical 1996 mixtures at
Eastlake of coal of these different
percentages; is that correct?

Yeah, as far as — yeah, as far as 1 know.

And those coals were purchased in 1996
under contracts that will nat be in effect
after September 30, 1997; is that correct?

Yecah, as far as 1 know, yeah,

8o, going forward, there's no reason to
believe that these percentages will
necessarily be the same in furure yearns
when youn do your spot purchases, will
they?

No, couid be higher or lower.

For each of the three components, but for
what the PUC decision might be?

Right.

They couid be higher or lower for any of
the sulfur content of coal?

(Indicating yea.)

So what is the utlity of presenting a
projection as your sole projection that's
based on percentages that have no

PAGE 124
[1] please?
[2] MR. PERLIS: Right.

(3] BY MR. PERLIS:
[4 Q My question is since these percentage

[ 5] aliocations of coal between 2.5, 3.8 and
[6] 6.0 coal are not necessarily going to be
[7 applicable in the future as you purchase
[8] on 1 spot basis, why should they have been
[ 9 nsed in any study of cvaiuated coal costs?

[t0] A TIs that it?

[111 Q  Yes, that's the question.

121 A  Okay. There's an infinite ~ like you

013} said earlier, T think infinite number of
(4] combinations that could make up this.

[15] Q Andin your -

{11 A  And I'm not sure any one in particular is
nn relevant. My understanding is the reason
18] why this was done is because we were asked
{19 to prodice an cxampie and onc was

[20] produced.

[21] Q  Well, looking at the question 27 now that
[22] your counsel called te your artention

23] before, that question doesn't ask for the
[24] 1996 historical allocations of coal, does
23] i?
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Q

MR. REGULINSKI: Well, the
question will speak for itseif.
Can you formuiate another
question?

On its face, that's all I'm asking since [
don't want to read the question for the
record, on its face docs question 27 refer
to 1996 historical experience of —

My interpretation i3 yes, it does because
it asks for a continued use. To me that
implies doing what’s going on right now so
whoever answered this probably would have
done it the same way. I would have done
it the same way.

I see. Sc when the company makes its
recommendation in the Supplemental Fuel
Switching Study that it prefers to have
the flexibility of the fuei switch rather
than continted burning of high sulfur Ohio
coal, that judgment iy simply that you
prefer the flexibility aver the current
ailocation in the future of 6.0 versus 2.5
and 3.8 pound coal?

MR. REGULINSKI: That's
a long question. Can we have that
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[ combinations of things that could have

[2] been done. This was one way to do it and
[3] that’s how Rich's group chose to do that.
[4] Q Couid another combinaton of continued use
[ s} of Ohio high sulfur coal been all 6.0 and
[6] 3.8 pound coal and some percentage o mect
[ the SIP limitation?

[ 8] A It could have been.

{99 Q  And as far as you know, there's no

[10] environmental reason why Centerior

[} couldn’t limit itself to 3.8 and 6.0 pound
[12] coal and meet the SIP limitations?

3 A Not that T know of that are in the right
14} combination to make sure you're always

[15] maintained under that SIP limit.

[16] Q  And when you received the bids for the
17} fourth quarter 1997, were they in the

[18] allocation of 58 percent 2.5 coal, 16

[11 percent 3.8 pound coal and 28 percent 6.0 7
{201 pound coal?

1] A I don't know what allocations they were.
{22] We were just looking at first evaluating

[23) lowest evaluated cost and then looking at
[24) the SIP limit,

[25) Q  Starting then on table — the third page
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Q

question read?
{Record read.)

I'm not sure T would agree exactly with
what you said. What we said in the
Supplemental Fuel Switching Study is that
we wanted to remain responsive and
flexible, and therefore different
combinations of coal, sulfur content
bunched with emission allowances and what
appears in the study could be burned.

Right, and the company concluded that the
flexibility from doing the foel switching
was better than the continned uge of coal
at the histogic 1996 allocation
percentages. Isn’t that in effect aaying
that the substance of the response w0
question 27 is?

No, T don’t know. 1 have to read this.
Once again, I'd say, T thought this
was done because of what was asked, you

know.

Well, do you think —

There could be a lot of different
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(1 that OVCC-14, keeping in mind that I'd
[2] like to keep this on the record, and not
3] require you to discloge any confidential

[4 number.

[ 5] If T should misspeak, we'll take it

()] off the record, or put it in the

[7 confidential portion of the record.

I 8] As you jook down OVCC-14 and the
[9 Eastlake 1997 coal bids, you say that they
(10} were put in order of evaluated cost,

[11] meaning that the lowest cost comes at the
{12} top.

[13] As you look at those evahiated costs,
[14 do you see any bids or combination of bids
[1s that result in allocations similar to 58

18] percent 2.5, 16 percent 3.8 and 26 percent
[17] 6.0?

[18] A Tdon't know. Something could come up to
[19] that. We didn't look at that when we did
(201 thia to come up with this.

[211 Q Do you know how many, if any, of these
[22] bids the company intends to proceed to
23 contract with?

[24 A Yes, some of them. I don't know the exact
(2s] ones but some of them.
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[ know, my predecessor mast likely would
[2] Rave had the contact or whenever the

[3] projection was developed.

[4 Q  But do you know that just in general,

[ 5] whether there are separate coal price

6] forecasts done for spot versus long

(7 term —

[8 A No.

[9] Q - contracts?

[10] A I don't know. T would think there could
[11] easily be, but I haven't used zny.

[12] MS. MOONEY: Okay. That's
[13) all T have right now. Thank you.
(14] MR. REGULINSKY: Let's take a
{15} short break before we start with
4] Mr. Hoag.

[17 ---

(18]

{19]

(20] MICHAEL KOVACH

[21} {Deposition concluded.

[22] Signature not waived.)

[23] -
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